AGENDA ITEM 2:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

August 6, 2019, Regular Meeting
August 6, 2019, Closed Session



MINUTES

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
TUESDAY, AUGUST 6, 2019

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday,
August 6, 2019, at 8:30 A.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina.

PRESENT:  John Welch, Chairman
Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman
Larry Turnbow, Commissioner
Charlie Wallin, Commissioner
Perry Yates, Commissioner
Andrea Capua, County Attorney
Deron Geouque, County Manager
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board

Chairman Welch called the meeting to order at 8:31 A.M.

Commissioner Wallin opened with a prayer and Commissioner Turnbow led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the July 23, 2019, regular meeting and
closed session minutes.

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to approve the
July 23, 2019, regular meeting minutes as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Vice-Chairman Kennedy requested to take action after closed session on the July 23, 2019,
closed session minutes to allow for the review of proposed amendments.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the August 6, 2019, agenda.

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to approve the
August 6, 2019, agenda as presented.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0



BACK 2 SCHOOL FUNDING REQUEST

Ms. Kendra Sink, Back 2 School Festival Coordinator, stated that this will be the seventh year
the Back 2 School Festival has been held and the first year as a 501(c)(3) non-profit. It will be
held on Saturday, August 10, from 10:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. Ms. Sink stated that Rumple
Church has also dedicated a room for the Back 2 School Festival to keep stocked throughout the
year and to be used for students as referred by school counselors. This could be new students or
students who have used the supplies given at the Festival. Ms. Sink shared the checks and
balances used to ensure that only children of parents who are struggling to meet their needs
receive the services. Ms. Sink stated that $4,700 was needed to meet the current year Festival’s
funding goal.

After discussion, the Board agreed to allocate $4,700 to the Back 2 School Festival with funds to
be allocated from the Administrative Contingency line.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

[Clerk’s Note: After closed session, the Board took further action to increase the amount to be given to
the Back 2 School Festival to $5,000.]

PARKS AND RECREATION OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST

Mr. Stephen Poulos, Parks and Recreation Director, requested to travel out-of-state to attend the
North Carolina and South Carolina joint conference for the Recreation and Parks Association
which will be held in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. Mr. Poulos stated that he has been provided
lodging and, therefore, the only expense to the County is the $275 registration fee.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to approve the out-of-state
travel request as presented by Mr. Poulos.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

BUDGET AMENDMENTS

On behalf of Finance Director Misty Watson, County Manager Geouque reviewed the following
budget amendments:

Account # Description Debit Credit
105911-471000 NC Lottery Funds $167,000
103300-349909  Lottery Projects $167,000

The amendment allocated funds for NC Lottery projects as requested by Watauga County
Schools and approved by the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction. The expenditures
were for the roof renovations and were recognized at the July 23, 2019, Board meeting. The
above budget amendment recognizes the revenues for Fiscal Year 2019.



103980-398121  Transfer from Capital Projects Fund $20,000

104920-463000  General Appropriation $20,000
213991-399101  Appropriated Fund Balance $20,000
219800-498010  Transfer to General Fund $20,000

The amendment allocated funds from Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) set aside funds for
projects as requested by the Economic Development Commission to be utilized for the
“Boonies” project and was approved by the Board of Commissioners on July 23, 2019.

104311-451000 Capital Outlay — Furniture and Equipment $100,000
103980-398121  Transfer from Capital Projects $100,000
213991-399101  Appropriated Fund Balance $100,000
219800-498010  Transfer to General Fund $100,000

The amendment allocated funds from Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) set aside funds for
projects as requested by Emergency Management for Fiscal Year 2020.

Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to approve the budget
amendments as presented by County Manager Geouque.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Boards and Commissions
County Manager Geouque presented the following:

Watauga County Nursing Home Community Advisory Committee

Regional Ombudsman, Ms. Stevie John, had requested that Ms. Barbara Hunsucker be
considered for appointment to serve on the Watauga County Nursing Home Community
Advisory Committee for a three-year term. This was a first reading.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to waive the second reading
and appoint Ms. Barbara Hunsucker to the Watauga County Nursing Home Community
Advisory Committee for a three-year term.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Workforce Development Board

Mr. Keith Deveraux, Director of High Country Council of Governments Work Force
Development Board, had requested the reappointment of Ms. Tara Brossa for a two-year term
ending on June 30, 2021. This was a first reading.



Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to waive the second reading
and reappoint Ms. Tara Brossa as a Watauga County representative on the High Country Council
of Governments Work Force Development Board with her term ending on June 30, 3021.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission

The Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission terms of Ms. Maria Hyde, who is the Chair and
lives in the district, and Mr. Allen Culler, who is the Vice-Chair and a Community Council member,
will expire on August 31. Both are willing to be reappointed to three-year terms. Three members
live in the district and two members must be Community Council members as well. These were first
readings.

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to waive the second reading
and reappoint both Ms. Maria Hyde and Mr. Allen Culler to the Valle Crucis Historic
Preservation Commission for three-year terms each.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

B. Announcements

County Manager Geouque announced the following:

e The 112th NCACC Annual Conference will be held August 22-24, 2019, in Guilford
County. Visit http://www.ncacc.org/775/2019-Annual-Conference for full information.

e The High Country Council of Governments’ Annual Banquet is scheduled for Friday,
September 6, 2019, at Linville Ridge.

Chairman Welch announced that local law enforcement agencies, including the Sheriff’s Office,
are hosting an inaugural National Night Out event in Watauga County in the 36th year of the
national event. National Night Out is an annual community-building campaign that promotes
police-community partnerships and neighborhood camaraderie to make our neighborhoods safer,
more caring places to live. It is on August 6, 2019, at the Peacock Lot on Rivers Street from
5:00 to 8:00 P.M. The event is free and will host fun and games for kids.

PuBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.


http://www.ncacc.org/775/2019-Annual-Conference

CLOSED SESSION

At 9:03 A.M., Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to enter
Closed Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3), and Land
Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i).

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to resume the open
meeting at 10:00 A.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to approve the
July 23, 2019, closed session minutes as amended.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to increase the amount of
funds to the Back 2 School Festival from $4,700 to $5,000 with the funds to be allocated from
the Administrative Contingency Fund.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

ADJOURN

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to adjourn the meeting at
10:02 A.M.

VOTE: Aye-5
Nay-0

John Welch, Chairman

ATTEST:
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board



AGENDA ITEM 3:

APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 20, 2019, AGENDA




AGENDA ITEM 4:

SHERIFF’S OFFICE VEHICLE BID AWARDS
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The Sheriff’s Office received bids from Ross Automotive for five (5) new 2020 Dodge Durango
AWD SUVs for $28,859 per unit; two (2) 2020 Dodge Chargers AWD sedans for $23,971 per
unit; and one (1) 2020 Jeep Grand Cherokee AWD SUV for $26,392 per unit. In addition, up
fitting for the vehicles was priced at $33,684. Ford substantially increased their prices causing
the county to review other vehicle options.

Board approval is required to accept the bid from Ross Automotive in the amount of
$225,235.87 including taxes and tags and Dana Safety Supply Inc. in the amount of $33,684 for
up fitting of the seven (7) vehicles.

Board direction is requested.

























































DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Telephone: 800-845-0405

Sales Quote

Sales Quote No.

298194-A

Customer No.

WATAU

Bill To | [

Ship To

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

184 HODGES GAP ROAD

BOONE, NC 28607

USA

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON
Telephone: 828-264-3761
E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@iatgov.org

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT
184 HODGES GAP ROAD

ATT:
BOONE, NC 28607
USA

Contact: MAJOR KELLY REDMON

Telephone:

E-mail: Kelly.Redmon@watgov.org

Quote Date Ship Via F.O.B. Customer PO Number Payment Method
07/29/19 GROUND PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE 2 CHARGERS NET30
Entered By Salesperson Ordered By Resale Number
Dempsey Owens Dempsey Owens - Greensboro MAIJ. KELLY REDMON
Order | Approve S ' Unit Extended
T I
Guantity | Otlantity ax tem Number / Description Brive Price
1 11 Y | INSTALL 0.0000 0.00
DSS INSTALLATION OF CUSTOMER'S EQUIPMENT
Warehouse: GBOR Vin #:
RADIO
ANTENNA
COAX
2 2| Y [ INSTALL KIT 130.0000 260.00
MISC INSTALLATION SUPPLIES L.E.
Warehouse: GBOR Vin #:
LOOM, WIRE, HARDWARE, CONNECTORS, ETC
ok gokock ko ok ok ook ok kR ok ok ok ok kokok okoclokskkokokokok ok ookl ok Rk oRok
1 I| Y | INSTALL 910.0000 910.00
DSS INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT
Warehouse: GBOR Vin #:
*#*INSTALLATION|IN GRHENSBORO***
Approved By:
[] Approve All Ttems & Quantities
Ouote Good for 30 Davs
Print Date | 08/01/19 Subtotal 4,943.22
Print Time | 09:00:02 PM Freight 0.00
Page No. [ 5 6.750 % Sales Tax 333.67
Printed By: Dempsey Owens
Order Total 5,276.89




AGENDA ITEM 5:

EMERGENCY SERVICES VEHICLE BID AWARD AND UP-FITTING

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The Emergency Management Office recently solicited bids for a new 1/2 ton 4x4 pickup truck.
Ross Chrysler Jeep Dodge was lowest responsive bidder in the amount of $23,151.60. In
addition, the up fit for the vehicle is $9,399.58. Adequate funds have been budgeted in the
current fiscal year to cover the purchase.

Staff recommends the Board award the bid for a 2019 Dodge 1500 4x4 pickup truck in the
amount of $33,251.73 which includes tax and tag and $9,399.58 to Dana Safety Supply, Inc. for
up fit and equipment of the new vehicle.



ROSS CHRYSLER JEEP DODGE

2282 HIGHWAY 105 SOUTH
BOONE, NC 286077813

Configuration Preview

Date Printed: 2019-07-24 12:24 PM  VIN: Quantity:

Estimated Ship Date:

Sold to:

ROSS CHRYSLER JEEP DODGE (60046)

2282 HIGHWAY 105 SOUTH
BOONE, NC 286077813

Vehicle:

Model:
Package:

Paint/Seat/Trim:

Options:

Non Equipment:
Bid Number:
Discounts:

Destination Fees:

Order Type:
Scheduling Priority:
Salesperson:
Customer Name:
Customer Address:

Instructions:

Sales Code
DS6L41
22B
ERB
DFL
PR4
APA
*TX
-X8
4DH
4ES
MAF
ADB
5N6
4FM
4FT
166
4EA
4FA
TB9076
XKN
YGE

Fleet
1-Sold Order

USA

VON: Status:
FAN 1:
FAN 2:
Client Code:
Bid Number:
Ship to: PO Number:
ROSS CHRYSLER JEEP DODGE (60046)
2282 HIGHWAY 105 SOUTH

BOONE, NC 286077813

1
BA - Pending order

49768 County of Watauga

TB9076

2019 1500 CLASSIC ST QUAD CAB 4X4 (140 in WB 6 FT 4 IN box) (DS6L41)

Description

1500 CLASSIC ST QUAD CAB 4X4 (140 in WB 6 FT 4 IN box)
Customer Preferred Package 22B
3.6L V6 24V VVT Engine

8-Spd Auto 845RE Trans (Make)
Flame Red Clear Coat

Monotone Paint

HD Vinyl 40/20/40 Split Bench Seat
Black/Diesel Gray

Prepaid Holdback

Delivery Allowance Credit

Fleet Purchase Incentive
Protection Group

Easy Order

Fleet Option Editor

Fleet Sales Order

Zone 66-Orlando

Sold Vehicle

Special Bid-Ineligible For Incentive
Government Incentives

Flex Fuel Vehicle

5 Additional Gallons of Gas

Total Price:

PSP Month/Week:
Build Priority: 99

MSRP(USD)
34,695

OO0 00O OO0 o oo

295

O OC O O oo o oo

1,695

Note: This is not an invoice. The prices and equipment shown on this priced order confirmation are tentative and subject to change or
correction without prior notice. No claims against the content listed or prices quoted will be accepted. Refer to the vehicle invoice for final
vehicle content and pricing. Orders are accepted only when the vehicle is shipped by the factory.

Page 1 of 1



UALE: 1‘, U U w PHONE (H)
STK # AUTOMOTIVE PHONE (8)
SALESPERSON: 2282 HIGHWAY 1055 SOURCE
PURCHASER / LESSEE DL# BOONE, NC 28607 PURCHASER / LESSEE DL#
PURCHASE OR LEASE §28.264.3626 EMAIL ADDRESS
Purchaser / Lessee DOB SS#
Co-Purchaser / Lessee DOB SS#
Physical Address County
P.O. Box
Year / q Make KM Model /fao Body QV"‘ A Cee cyl é
Color Trim Color BIQC/C Vin ‘S}?"'C Ocde Miles

Trade-In Lien Holder (1) Trade-In Lien Holder (2) MSRP Before Discount €, 6857
Lender Lender Discount / L/ N O L{é . °°
Address Address MSRP

Dealer-Installed Equipment:
Acct, # Acct. #
Phone# Phone#
Pay Off Amt. Pay Off Amt.
Good Through Good Through Total Cash Price
Dally Rate Daily Rate Trade Allowance
Talked W/ Talked W/ Difference
Date: Time: Date: Time: | Sales Tax
Special Directions: Cancellations: Adm. Fee 499.00

Inspection Fee

[3.€

Tag Fee / Transfer

( Tag#

/ Inspection Fee

The Accessories and/or Service

Sub Total

23,15) 2

Agreements listed below are Non Mopar

products and are not warrantied by Payoff on Trade

Chrysler Corporation: Rebate Type:
Sub Total
| UNDERSTAND THAT IF THE ACTUAL Deposit
LIEN PAYOFF IS GREATER THAN THE
AMOUNT ESTIMATED, | WILL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYING THE Cash on Delivery (Chk# ) ;}\ 3 ’S[ do
! ’ -
DIFFERENCE. Note: Date Due
X X Amount to be Finc. / Lease
(Customer Signature) (Customer Signature)
TRADE INFORMATION 2nd TRADE INFORMATION
YEAR MAKE MODEL YEAR MAKE MODEL
COLOR TRIM COLOR COLOR TRIM COLOR
VIN VIN
MILES MILES
THE ONLY WARRANTIES APPLYING TO THIS VEHICLE ARE THOSE OFFERED
INSURANCE CO: BY THE MANUFACTURER. THE SELLING DEALER HEREBY EXPRESSLY
POL # DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING
GENT: ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A
AGENT: PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND NEITHER ASSUMES NOR AUTHORIZES ANY
ADDRESS: OTHER PERSON TO ASSUME FOR IT ANY LIABILITY iN CONNECTION WITH
THE SALE OF THIS VEHICLE. BUYER SHALL NOT BE ENTITLED TO RECOVER
COL. DED: COMP. DED: FROM THE SELLING DEALER ANY CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, DAMAGES
TO PROPERTY, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF TIME, LOSS OF
EFF. DATE: EXP. DATE: PHONE: PROFITS, OR INCOME, OR ANY OTHER INCIDENTAL DAMAGES.
. IME: BY: THE MANUFACTURER'S WARRANTY HAS BEEN FULLY EXPLAINED TO ME,
TALKED W/: DATE: TIME: : AND | FULLY UNDERSTAND THIS WARRANTY.

Purchaser sgraas that this Order includes all of the terms and conditions on both the face and reverse hereof, that this Order cancels and supersedes any other agreement and as of the date hereof
an

relating to the subject matters covered hereby, and that this Order shall not become binding until accepted by the Dealer or his authorized

the
vaprssonlslwe Inthe event of a time sale, Dealer shall not he obligated to sell until approval of the terms hereof is given by a bank or finance company willing to purchase a retail installment contract between
the parties hereto based on such terms. Purchaser, by execution of this Order, certifles that he/she is of lagal age to execute binding conlracts In this State and acknowledges that he/she has read its terms
and conditions and has recslved a true copy of this Order.

X

X

Dealer 7 Authorized Repressntative

Date Purchaser / Lesses Signature(s)

Date




DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC

4809 KOGER BLVD

GREENSBORO, NC 27407 Sales Quote No. 292653-E
Telephone: 800-845-0405 e WATAU

Sales Quote

[ Bill To | Ship To |
WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT WATAUGA CO EMERGENCY SERVICES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 184 HODGES GAP ROAD
184 HODGES GAP ROAD ATT: WILLIAM HOLT
BOONE, NC 28607 BOONE, NC 28607
USA
Contact: Contact: WILLIAM HOLT
Telephone: 828-264-3761 Telephone: 828-264-4235
E-mail: E-mail: Will.Holt@watgov.org
Quote Date Ship Via F.O.B. Customer PO Number Payment Method
06/16/19 GROUND PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE 2019 RAM NET30
Entered By Salesperson Ordered By Resale Number
Dempsey Owens Dempsey Owens - Greensboro WILL HOLT
Order Approve .. Unit Extended
Quantity Qll)ll:ln tity Tax Item Number / Description Price Price
1 1| N | INFO 0.0000 0.00
VEHICLE INFORMATION 2019 DODGE RAM CREW CAB
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
2019 DODGE RAM CREW CAB
1 1] Y | EVP 2,444.6000 2,444.60
WEC EMERGENCY VEHICLE PRODUCTS
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
Whelen EVP
NCSA Contract # 2
Includes:
1 - GB2SP3 Legacy Light Bar 54" Red/White Duo with Rear
Red/Amber Traffic Advisor. Up Charge $203.10
2 - MKEZ86 Mounting Strap Kit
3 -295SDA1 Whelen Siren Light 200 Watt Controller Up Charge
$197.00
4 - SA319P Siren Speaker (2 Qty) Up Charge $135.00
5 - SAK1 Speaker Bracket (2 Qty) Up Charge $21.20
1 1] Y | GB2SP3R 0.0000 0.00
WEC LEGACY 54" R/W fronttcorners, R/A rear
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
Included in EVP Legacy 54" Light Bar Red/White Full Flood Front Red/Amber
Rear Traffic Advisor
Print Date | 07/30/19
Print Time | 05:57:28 PM
Page No. | 1

Printed By: Dempsey Owens

Continued on Next Page




DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC

4809 KOGER BLVD

GREENSBORO, NC 27407 Sales Quote No. 292653-E
Telephone: 800-845-0405 e WATAU

Sales Quote

| Bill To | Ship To |
WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT WATAUGA CO EMERGENCY SERVICES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 184 HODGES GAP ROAD
184 HODGES GAP ROAD ATT: WILLIAM HOLT
BOONE, NC 28607 BOONE, NC 28607
USA
Contact: Contact: WILLIAM HOLT
Telephone: 828-264-3761 Telephone: 828-264-4235
E-mail: E-mail: Will.Holt@watgov.org
Quote Date Ship Via F.O.B. Customer PO Number Payment Method
06/16/19 GROUND PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE 2019 RAM NET30
Entered By Salesperson Ordered By Resale Number
Dempsey Owens Dempsey Owens - Greensboro WILL HOLT
Order Approve . . Unit Extended
Quantity Qll)ll:ln tity Tax Item Number / Description Price Price
1 11 'Y | MKEZ86 0.0000 0.00
WEC 2012+ DODGE RAM 1500 LIGHT BAR BRACKETS
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
Included in EVP
Mounting Strap for Light Bar
1 1] 'Y | 295SDA1 0.0000 0.00
WHELEN Remote Dual Tone Siren/Switch Controller
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
Included in EVP
Dual Tone Siren, For Two100 Watt Speakers, with Full Function Control
Head
2 2] Y | SA315P 0.0000 0.00
Whelen 100W Compact Black Composite 122DB Speaker
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
Included in EVP
100 Watt Speaker, Nylon Composite
1 1] 'Y | SAK48 0.0000 0.00
WEC SA315P DRIVER SIDE BRKT FOR 2012+ RAM 1500
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
Included in EVP
Driver Side Mount for SA315P
Print Date | 07/30/19
Print Time | 05:57:28 PM
Page No. | 2

Printed By: Dempsey Owens

Continued on Next Page




DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Telephone: 800-845-0405

Sales Quote

Sales Quote No.

292653-E

Customer No.

WATAU

Bill To |

Ship To

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

184 HODGES GAP ROAD

BOONE, NC 28607

WATAUGA CO EMERGENCY SERVICES
184 HODGES GAP ROAD
ATT: WILLIAM HOLT

BOONE, NC 28607
USA

Contact: Contact: WILLIAM HOLT
Telephone: 828-264-3761 Telephone: 828-264-4235
E-mail: E-mail: Will.Holt@watgov.org
Quote Date Ship Via F.O.B. Customer PO Number Payment Method
06/16/19 GROUND PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE 2019 RAM NET30
Entered By Salesperson Ordered By Resale Number
Dempsey Owens Dempsey Owens - Greensboro WILL HOLT
Order Approve .. Unit Extended
Quantity Qll)ll:ln tity Tax Item Number / Description Price Price
1 1] Y | SAK47 0.0000 0.00
WEC SA315P PASS SIDE BRKT FOR 2012+ RAM 1500
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
Included in EVP
Passenger Side Mount for SA315P
2 2| 'Y | FEN-FSM-40-RW 73.0600 146.12
FEN Fusion Surface Mount Red/White
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
Fusion Surface Mount
2 Mounted in Grill
Red/White
2 2| Y | FEN-FN-4016 6.5000 13.00
FEN Fusion L Bracket
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
Print Date | 07/30/19
Print Time | 05:57:28 PM
Page No. | 3

Printed By: Dempsey Owens

Continued on Next Page




Sales Quote

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407 Sales Quote No. 292653-E
Telephone: 800-845-0405 Customer No. WATAU
| Bill To | Ship To |
WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT WATAUGA CO EMERGENCY SERVICES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 184 HODGES GAP ROAD
184 HODGES GAP ROAD ATT: WILLIAM HOLT
BOONE, NC 28607 BOONE, NC 28607
USA
Contact: Contact: WILLIAM HOLT
Telephone: 828-264-3761 Telephone: 828-264-4235
E-mail: E-mail: Will.Holt@watgov.org
Quote Date Ship Via F.O.B. Customer PO Number Payment Method
06/16/19 GROUND PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE 2019 RAM NET30
Entered By Salesperson Ordered By Resale Number
Dempsey Owens Dempsey Owens - Greensboro WILL HOLT
Order Approve o . Unit Extended
Quantity Qll)ll:ln tity Tax Item Number / Description Price Price
1 1| Y | FEN-FN-0616D 359.7600 359.76
FENIEX 6-HEAD DUO COLOR LIGHT STICK
Red/Amber
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
SPECIFY HEADS & COLORS DESIRED - SEE ATTACHED
MOUNTING BRACKETS ARE SOLD SEPERATELY
sfesfe 3t sfe e 3 s sfe s sfeshe s e sfe s sfeshe s s sfe s sfeshe e s sfe s sfeshe e sfesfe s sfe stk sfesieok sk
Feniex Fusion 600 Light Stick
Red/Amber
Dual Color
Traffic Advisor (Arrowstick)
Mounted in Rea window of Camper Top
1 1| Y | 7170-0579-04 429.0200 429.02

GJ KIT - Universal Sloped Front Console with Cup Holde
Warehouse: GBKO  Vin#:

Kit: Universal sloped console box with a cup holder, armrest and Mongoose
™ motion attachment

Includes 3 faceplates and 3 filler panels.

*7160-0339 Whelen Siren 295SDA1

*7160-0322 Motorola APX8000

Print Date | 07/30/19
Print Time | 05:57:28 PM
Page No. | 4

Printed By: Dempsey Owens

Continued on Next Page




Sales Quote

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407 Sales Quote No. 292653-E
Telephone: 800-845-0405 Customer No. WATAU
| Bill To Ship To |
WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT WATAUGA CO EMERGENCY SERVICES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 184 HODGES GAP ROAD
184 HODGES GAP ROAD ATT: WILLIAM HOLT
BOONE, NC 28607 BOONE, NC 28607
USA
Contact: Contact: WILLIAM HOLT
Telephone: 828-264-3761 Telephone: 828-264-4235
E-mail: E-mail: Will.Holt@watgov.org
Quote Date Ship Via F.O.B. Customer PO Number Payment Method
06/16/19 GROUND PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE 2019 RAM NET30
Entered By Salesperson Ordered By Resale Number
Dempsey Owens Dempsey Owens - Greensboro WILL HOLT
Order Approve o . Unit Extended
Quantity Qll)ll:ln tity Tax Item Number / Description Price Price
1 1| Y | 7160-0085 45.1500 45.15
GJ LONG MCS TOP PLATE (29.0)
Warehouse: GBKO  Vin #:
NOTE: VEHICLE LEG KIT SOLD SEPERATELY---
************************************************MCS TOp Plate
(Long)
1 1| Y | 7160-0985 50.9600 50.96
GJ Leg Kit, RAM Truck with Center Seat
Warehouse: GBKO  Vin#:
Console Box Leg Kit
2011-2018 Ram 1500-5500 & 2012-2018 SSV with Center Seat Leg Kit
1 1| Y | 7160-0250 187.1700 187.17
GJ NOTEPAD V UNIVERSAL COMPUTER CRADLE
Warehouse: GBKO  Vin #:
WILL ADJUST FOR COMPUTERS WITH THE FOLLOWING:
WIDTH - 10.62 TO 16.5 INCHES
THICKNESS - UP TO 1.50 INCHES
DEPTH - 9.00 TO 12.38 INCHES
sfesfe s sfe she 3 s sfe s sfeshe s s sfe s s she e s sfe s sfeshe s s sfe s e she e s sfe e sfesfe e sk sfe stk sl slesiok seoleok
REPLACES NP-NOTEPAD4-XL
1 I Y | TH750 59.2100 59.21
ALL POWER SUPPLY 750 WATT THOR INVERTER
Warehouse: GBKO  Vin #:
Print Date | 07/30/19
Print Time | 05:57:28 PM
Page No. | 5

Printed By: Dempsey Owens

Continued on Next Page




DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC

4809 KOGER BLVD

GREENSBORO, NC 27407 Sales Quote No. 292653-E
Telephone: 800-845-0405 e WATAU

Sales Quote

Bill To |

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

184 HODGES GAP ROAD

BOONE, NC 28607

Contact:

Telephone: 828-264-3761

E-mail:

Ship To

BOONE, NC 28607
USA

Contact: WILLIAM HOLT

Telephone: 828-264-4235

E-mail: Will.Holt@watgov.org

WATAUGA CO EMERGENCY SERVICES
184 HODGES GAP ROAD
ATT: WILLIAM HOLT

Quote Date

Ship Via F.O.B.

Customer PO Number

Payment Method

06/16/19

GROUND PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE 2019 RAM

NET30

Entered By

Salesperson Ordered By

Resale Number

Dempsey Owens

Dempsey Owens - Greensboro WILL HOLT

Order
Quantity

Approve
Quantity

Tax Item Number / Description

Unit
Price

Extended
Price

1

I Y [ MISC

Ranch Model: Sierra Camper for 2019 RAM Crew Cab
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:

2019 Ram Crew Cab - Short bed

New design Ram

Front Picture Window Tinted

Solid side windows Tinted

Rear Door Tinted

Rear Door Double Locked

Carpeted

Two LED light strips

Rubber seal for bed- included

Clamps- included (4)

Ranch Model: Sierra Color- TBD
MISC

Loadmaster FE2 Bed Slide Out
Warehouse: GBKO

Loadmaster FE1- Full Extension - 100%
1000 Ib weight capacity
INSTALL KIT

MISC INSTALLATION SUPPLIES 1.E.
Warehouse: GBKO Vin #:
LOOM, WIRE, HARDWARE, CONNECTORS, BREAKER, ETC

stttk sk otk st s stk sk sk ol ks sk skl Rtk stk stk skl Rk skl Rk sk R ok

Vin #:

1,546.4200

1,263.5200

140.0000

1,546.42

1,263.52

140.00

Print Date
Print Time
Page No.

07/30/19
05:57:28 PM
6

Printed By: Dempsey Owens

Continued on Next Page



DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC
4809 KOGER BLVD
GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Telephone: 800-845-0405

Bill To |

Sales Quote

Sales Quote No.

292653-E

Customer No.

WATAU

WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

184 HODGES GAP ROAD

BOONE, NC 28607

Contact:

Ship To

184 HODGES GAP ROAD
ATT: WILLIAM HOLT
BOONE, NC 28607

USA

Contact: WILLIAM HOLT

WATAUGA CO EMERGENCY SERVICES

Telephone: 828-264-3761 Telephone: 828-264-4235
E-mail: E-mail: Will.Holt@watgov.org
Quote Date Ship Via F.O.B. Customer PO Number Payment Method
06/16/19 GROUND PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE 2019 RAM NET30
Entered By Salesperson Ordered By Resale Number
Dempsey Owens Dempsey Owens - Greensboro WILL HOLT
Order Approve o . Unit Extended
Quantity | Quantity Tax Item Number / Description Price Price
1 1| N | INSTALL 1,560.0000 1,560.00
DSS INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT
Warehouse: GBKO  Vin #:
INSTALLATION TO BE PERFORMED AT THE
DSS LOCATION. CUSTOMER TO PROVIDE
VEHICLE AT THE APPOINTED TIME & PICK-UP
SAME UPON COMPLETION OF THE INSTALL
CUSTOMER WILL PRODIDED THE RADIO AND THE COAX AND
ANTENNA
1 1| Y | DECAL 495.0000 495.00
DECALS
Warehouse: GBKO  Vin #:
1 1| N | INSTALL 175.0000 175.00
DECAL INSTALLATION
Warehouse: GBKO  Vin #:
INSTALLATION TO BE PERFORMED AT THE
DSS LOCATION. CUSTOMER TO PROVIDE
VEHICLE AT THE APPOINTED TIME & PICK-UP
SAME UPON COMPLETION OF THE INSTALL
#%*[NSTALL IN GREENSBORO***
Approved By:
[] Approve All Items & Quantities
Ouote Good for 30 Davs
Print Date | 07/30/19 Subtotal 8,914.93
Print Time | 05:57:28 PM Freight 0.00
Page No. | 7 6.750 % Sales Tax 484.65
Printed By: Dempsey Owens
Order Total 9,399.58




DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC

4809 KOGER BLVD

GREENSBORO, NC 27407

Telephone: 800-845-0405

Sales Quote

Sales Quote No.

292653-E

Customer No.

WATAU

| Bill To Ship To |
WATAUGA CO SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT WATAUGA CO EMERGENCY SERVICES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 184 HODGES GAP ROAD
184 HODGES GAP ROAD ATT: WILLIAM HOLT
BOONE, NC 28607 BOONE, NC 28607
USA
Contact: Contact: WILLIAM HOLT
Telephone: 828-264-3761 Telephone: 828-264-4235
E-mail: E-mail: Will.Holt@watgov.org
Quote Date Ship Via F.O.B. Customer PO Number Payment Method
06/16/19 GROUND PPAY & ADD TO INVOICE 2019 RAM NET30
Entered By Salesperson Ordered By Resale Number
Dempsey Owens Dempsey Owens - Greensboro WILL HOLT
Order Approve o . Unit Extended
Quantity | Quantity Tax Item Number / Description Price Price
Print Date | 07/30/19 Subtotal 8,914.93
Print Time | 05:57:28 PM Freight 0.00
Page No. | 1 6.750 % Sales Tax 484.65

Printed By: Dempsey Owens

Order Total

9,399.58




AGENDA ITEM 6:

TAX MATTERS

A. Monthly Collections Report

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be
available for questions and discussion.

The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required.



Monthly Collections Report

Watauga County

Bank deposits of the following amounts have been made and credited to the account of Watauga County. The

reported

totals do not include small shortages and overages reported to the Watauga County Finance Officer

Monthly Report July 2019

Current Month, Current Moath  Current FY

Current FY

Previous FY

Collections Percentage Collections

General County
Taxes 2019 6.00 0.00
Prior Year Taxes 69,784.84 69,784.84
Solid Waste User Fees 5,039.03 5,039.03
Green Box Fees 189.30 18930
Total County Funds $75,013.17 $75,013.17
Fire Districts
Foscoe Fire 650.68 650.68
Boone Fire 1,252.70 1,252.70
Fall Creck Service Dist. 0.00 0.00
Beaver Dam Fire 33992 33992
Stewart Simmons Fire 189,60 189,60
Zionville Fire 107.37 107.37
Cove Creek Fire 899.21 89921
Shawneehaw Fire 125.64 125.64
Meat Camp Fire 75425 75425
Deep Gap Fire 390.35 39035
Todd Fire 30.22 30.22
Blowing Rock Fire 698.30 698.30
M.C. Creston Fire 19.77 19.77
Foscoe Service District 202.68 20268
Beech Mtn. Service Dist. 15.65 15.65
Cove Creek Service Dist. .00 .00
Shawneehaw Service Dist 15.99 15.99

$5,692.33 $5,692.33
Towns
Boone 7,044.01 7,044.01
Municipal Services 175.72 175.72
Boone MV Fee NA NA
Blowing Rock NA NA
Seven Devils NA NA
Beech Mountain NA NA
Totat Town Taxes $7,219.73 $7,219.73
Total Amount Collected $87,925.23 $87,925.23

(éé Tax Collections Director

Tax Administrator

Percentage

NA
NA
NA
NA

Percentage

NA
NA
NA
NA




AGENDA ITEM 6:

TAX MATTERS

B. Refunds and Releases

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Warren will present the Refunds and Releases Reports. Board action is required to accept
the Refunds and Releases Reports.



NIs

er erp solution

WATAUGA COUNTY ' P 1

07/31/2019 14: 34
Larry. Warren RELEASES - 07/01/2019 TO 07/31/2019 tncrar pt
CAT YEAR Bl LL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR
OMER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
1587416 PROBI NSKY, JEAN PP 2012 3025 07/ 31/ 2019 Q01 14. 30
PO BOX 1695 587416999 Q0 c02 16.91
TAX RELEASES ) 6873 LF 62. 00
BOONE, NC 28607 owner passed away- nobil e hone park sold
to apartnment conpl ex 93.21
1587416 PROBI NSKY, JEAN PP 2013 3080 07/31/2019 Q1 13.87
PO BOX 1695 587416999 Q02 Q02 16. 39
TAX RELEASES 6874 SWF 62. 00
BOONE, NC 28607 owner passed away-mh park sold to apartm Q1L 1.39
ent conpl ex co2L 1. 64
95. 29
1587416 PROBI NSKY, JEAN PP 2014 2951 07/31/ 2019 Q1 13.87
PO BOX 1695 587416999 Q02 Q02 18. 16
TAX RELEASES 6875 SWF 80. 00
BOONE, NC 28607 mh park sold to aparnment conpl ex Q1L 1.39
mh owner deceased Cco2L 1.82
115. 24
1587416 PROBI NSKY, JEAN PP 2015 2897 07/31/ 2019 Q1 13.87
PO BOX 1695 587416999 Q02 Q02 18. 16
TAX RELEASES 6876 SWF 80. 00
BOONE, NC 28607 mh owner deceased Q1L 1.39
mh park sold to apartnent conpl ex co2L 1.82
115. 24
1587416 PROBI NSKY, JEAN PP 2017 3111 07/31/2019 Q1 15. 64
PO BOX 1695 587416999 Q02 Q02 18. 16
TAX RELEASES 6877 SWF 80. 00
BOONE, NC 28607 MH OANER DECEASED
MH PARK SOLD TO APARTMENT COWPLEX 113. 80
1587416 PROBI NSKY, JEAN PP 2018 2990 07/31/2019 Q01 15.18
PO BOX 1695 587416999 Q02 Q02 17.63
TAX RELEASES 6878 SWF 80. 00
BOONE, NC 28607 MH OANER DECEASED Q1L 1.52
MH PARK SOLD TO APARTMENT COWPLEX Cc02L 1.76

116.



%% %% Mmunis

. .
L4 a tyler erp solution

07/ 31/ 2019 14: 34 WATAUGA COUNTY P 2
Larry. Warren RELEASES - 07/01/2019 TO 07/31/2019 t ncr ar pt
CAT YEAR Bl LL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR
OMER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
1721517 RANGEL, RAQUEL CERVANTES PP 2016 8 07/31/2019 0 FO02 2.58
9266 ELK CREEK RD 24 F02 @1 13. 46
TAX RELEASES 6879 SWF 80. 00
DEEP GAP, NC 28618 OMER SOLD MH TO JUANA ESCLI ARA FO2L . 26
Q1L 1.35
97. 65
1721517 RANGEL, RAQUEL CERVANTES PP 2017 6 07/31/2019 0 FO02 2.58
9266 ELK CREEK RD 24 F02 @1 15.18
TAX RELEASES 6880 SWF 80. 00
DEEP GAP, NC 28618 OMER SOLD MH TO JUANA ESCLI ARA FO2L . 26
1L 1.52
99. 54
1721517 RANGEL, RAQUEL CERVANTES PP 2018 6 07/31/2019 0 FO02 2.50
9266 ELK CREEK RD 24 F02 @1 14.72
TAX RELEASES 6881 SWF 80. 00
DEEP GAP, NC 28618 OMER SOLD MH TO JUANA ESCLI ARA FO2L .25
1L 1. 47
98. 94

DETAI L SUMVARY COUNT: 9 RELEASES - TOTAL 0 945. 00



NIs

er erp solution

07/31/2019 14: 34 WATAUGA COUNTY ‘ P 3
Larry. Warren RELEASES - 07/01/2019 TO 07/31/2019 tncrar pt

RELEASES - CHARGE SUWMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

YEAR CAT CHARGE AMOUNT
2012 PP Q02 BOONE PP 16.91
2012 PP @01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 14. 30
2012 PP LF SOLI D WASTE PP 62. 00

2012 TOTAL 93.21
2013 PP (€02 BOONE PP 16. 39
2013 PP CO2L BOONE LATE LI ST 1.64
2013 PP @01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 13. 87
2013 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.39
2013 PP SWF SOLI D WASTE PP 62. 00

2013 TOTAL 95.29
2014 PP (€02 BOONE PP 18. 16
2014 PP CO2L BOONE LATE LI ST 1.82
2014 PP Q01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 13. 87
2014 PP @G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.39
2014 PP SWF SOLI D WASTE USER FEE 80. 00

2014 TOTAL 115. 24
2015 PP (€02 BOONE PP 18. 16
2015 PP CO2L BOONE LATE LI ST 1.82
2015 PP @01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 13. 87
2015 PP @G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.39
2015 PP SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE 80. 00

2015 TOTAL 115. 24
2016 PP F02 BOONE FI RE PP 2.58
2016 PP FO2L BOONE FI RE LATE LI ST .26
2016 PP Q01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 13. 46
2016 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.35
2016 PP SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE 80. 00

2016 TOTAL 97.65
2017 PP (€02 BOONE PP 18. 16
2017 PP FO2 BOONE FI RE PP 2.58
2017 PP FO2L BOONE FI RE LATE LI ST . 26
2017 PP @01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 30. 82
2017 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.52
2017 PP SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE 160. 00

2017 TOTAL 213. 34
2018 PP (€02 BOONE PP 17. 63
2018 PP CO2L BOONE LATE LI ST 1.76
2018 PP F02 BOONE FI RE PP 2.50
2018 PP FO2L BOONE FI RE LATE LI ST .25
2018 PP @01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 29. 90
2018 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 2.99
2018 PP SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE 160. 00

2018 TOTAL 215.03



. munis

a tyler erp solution

07/ 31/ 2019 14: 34 WATAUGA COUNTY P 4
Larry. Warren RELEASES - 07/01/2019 TO 07/31/2019 t ncr ar pt

RELEASES - CHARGE SUMVARY FOR ALL CLERKS
YEAR CAT CHARGE AMOUNT

SUMVARY TOTAL 945. 00



erp solution

07/31/2019 14: 34 WATAUGA COUNTY P 5
Larry. Warren RELEASES - 07/01/2019 TO 07/31/2019 t ncrar pt

RELEASES - JURI SDI CTI ON SUMVARY FOR ALL CLERKS

JUR YEAR CHARGE AMOUNT
C02 2012 C02 BOONE PP 16. 91
02 2012 01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 14. 30
C02 2012 LF SOLI D WASTE PP 62. 00
C02 2013 €02 BOONE PP 16. 39
C02 2013 C02L BOONE LATE LI ST 1.64
02 2013 01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 13. 87
C02 2013 V1L WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.39
C02 2013 SWF SOLI D WASTE PP 62. 00
C02 2014 C02 BOONE PP 18. 16
02 2014 CO2L BOONE LATE LI ST 1.82
02 2014 01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 13. 87
C02 2014 V1L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.39
C02 2014 SWF SOLI D WASTE USER FEE 80. 00
02 2015 C02 BOONE PP 18. 16
C02 2015 CO2L BOONE LATE LI ST 1.82
C02 2015 01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 13.87
C02 2015 01L WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.39
C02 2015 SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE 80. 00
C02 2017 Q02 BOONE PP 18. 16
C02 2017 @01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 15. 64
02 2017 SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE 80. 00
02 2018 C02 BOONE PP 17. 63
C02 2018 CO2L BOONE LATE LI ST 1.76
C02 2018 01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 15.18
C02 2018 V1L WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.52
C02 2018 SW SANI TATI ON USER FEE 80. 00
C02 TOTAL 648. 87

FO2 2016 FO02 BOONE FI RE PP 2.58
FO2 2016 FO2L BOONE FI RE LATE LI ST . 26
F02 2016 Q01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 13. 46
FO2 2016 V1L WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.35
FO2 2016 SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE 80. 00
FO2 2017 FO2 BOONE FI RE PP 2.58
FO02 2017 FO2L BOONE FI RE LATE LI ST . 26
FO2 2017 01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 15.18
FO2 2017 &01L WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.52
FO2 2017 SWr SANI TATI ON USER FEE 80. 00
F02 2018 FO02 BOONE FI RE PP 2.50
FO2 2018 FO2L BOONE FI RE LATE LI ST .25
FO2 2018 (01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 14.72
FO2 2018 (&01L WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LI ST 1.47
FO02 2018 SWF SANI TATI ON USER FEE 80. 00
FO2 TOTAL 296. 13

SUMVARY TOTAL 945. 00



AGENDA ITEM 7:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Proposed Renewal of ASU Greenhouse Lease
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Appalachian State University Foundation is requesting the renewal of the lease for the
greenhouse located at the Watauga County Landfill.

Property owned by the County may be leased or rented for such terms and upon such conditions
as the Board may determine, for up to ten (10) years. Property may be rented or leased only
pursuant to a resolution of the Board authorizing the execution of the lease or rental agreement
adopted at a regular Board meeting upon 10 days' public notice. Notice shall be given by
publication describing the property to be leased or rented, stating the annual rental or lease
payments, and announcing the Board's intent to authorize the lease or rental at its next regular
meeting.

The advertisement requirement has been met and the Board may approve the lease as presented.

Staff seeks direction from the Board.



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF WATAUGA

Resolution of Watauga County Board of County Commissioners

Pursuant to NCGS 160A-272, notice is hereby given that at the regular commissioner meeting of
the Watauga County Board of County Commissioners on July 23, 2019, the Watauga County
Board of County Commissioners adopted a resolution which authorized Deron T. Geouque,
County Manger, of Watauga County to lease to the Appalachian State University Foundation,
Inc., a certain property located adjacent to the Watauga County Methane Flare Station
described as a point 2 feet from the Landfill Road directly south of the power pole proceeding
east along Landfill Road 160 feet and heading due south from those two points to the Watauga
County property line in Watauga County, North Carolina, for a term of three (3) years. The rent
to be paid by the Appalachian State University Foundation to Watauga County during the term
of the lease is One Dollar (51.00) per annum. The lease shall become effective ten (10) days
after the publication of this notice and formal adoption of the lease by the Board of
Commissioners.

ADOPTED this the 23rd day of July, 2019.

ZlL

J /Webl’ch, Chairman
Watauga County Board of County Commissioners

ATTEST:

A2 M=

Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board—




COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE, made this 1st day of May 2019, by and between Watauga County, a body politic of
the State of North Carolina (hereinafter referred to as “Landlord” and/or "County™) whose
principle place of business is 814 West King Street, Suite 205, Boone, North Carolina 28607, and
Appalachian State University, a constituent institution of The University of North Carolina
(hereinafter referred to as “Tenant” and/or "Appalachian”), whose principle place of business is
438 Academy Street, Boone, North Carolina 28608.

WHEREAS, Appalachian desires to lease space adjacent to the County’s Methane Flare
Stations to establish a greenhouse and research facility for use by its faculty members and students
for training, workshops, public tours, research and other educational activities; and

WHEREAS, the County desires to lease property to Appalachian for the above stated
purpose, subject to the following terms and conditions.

WITNESSETH:
1. LEASED PREMISES

The County, for and in consideration of the rents, covenants, agreements, and stipulations
hereinafter mentioned, provided for and covenanted to be paid, kept and performed by
Appalachian, leases and rents unto Appalachian, and Appalachian hereby leases and takes upon
the terms and conditions which hereinafter appear, the following described property (hereinafter
called the "Premises™) further described and depicted in the attached Exhibit A, to wit:

Beginning at a point 2 feet from Landfill Rd. directly south of the power pole providing
service to the Watauga County Animal Control Office, proceeding east along Landfill Rd.
for a total of 360 feet and heading due south from those two points to the Watauga County
property line.

2. TERM.

Appalachian shall have and hold the Premises for a term of three (3) years beginning on the 1%
day of May 2019, and ending on the 30" day of April 2022, at midnight, unless sooner terminated
as hereinafter provided.

3. RENTAL
Appalachian agrees to pay the County, without deduction or set off, an annual rental of One Dollar

($1.00) per year, payable on the date of this Lease and each annual anniversary of that date during
the term hereof. Upon execution of this Lease, Appalachian shall pay to the County the first year's



rent due hereunder. Rental for any period during the term hereof which is less than one year shall
be the pro-rated portion of the annual rental due.

4. UTILITIES

@ Appalachian shall pay the following utilities: Electric and any other utility
associated with Appalachian’s use of the property.

(b) The County shall pay the following utilities: None

Responsibility to pay for a utility service shall include all metering, hook-up fees or other
miscellaneous charges associated with the installation and maintenance of such utility in said
party's name.

S. COMMON AREA RULES AND REGULATIONS

Appalachian shall be subject to Rules and Regulations for the common areas of the County
property as may be made from time to time by the County.

6. USE OF PREMISES

The Premises shall be used to: operate a prototype greenhouse and to conduct research on biogas
and biofuel production, solar electricity and solar hot water production, biochar production,
greenhouse heating methods, aquaculture and associated technologies. The Premises shall not be
used for any illegal purposes, nor in any manner to create any nuisance or trespass, nor in any
manner to vitiate the insurance or increase the rate of insurance on the Premises. In the event
Appalachian's use of the Premises results in an increase in the rate of insurance on the Premises,
Appalachian shall pay to the County, upon demand and as additional rental, the amount of any
such increase.

1. LIABILITY; INSURANCE

Appalachian will be responsible for the negligent conduct of its officers and employees arising out
of the performance of this Agreement to the extent permitted by the laws of North Carolina,
including the North Carolina Tort Claims Act, the Defense of State Employees Act, and the excess
liability insurance policy administered through the North Carolina Department of Insurance,
subject to the availability of appropriations and in proportion to and to the extent that such liability
for damages is caused by or results from the acts of Appalachian or its employees. Appalachian
shall, during the term of this Lease and any extension or renewal thereof, and at Appalachian’s
expense, maintain in full force and effect self-insurance with limits of at least One Million Dollars
(%$1,000,000.00) per person under the North Carolina Tort Claims Act (N.C.G.S. § 143-291 et seq.)
and excess liability insurance for its employees.



8. REPAIRS BY THE COUNTY

The premises are being rented “as is” and the County shall have no obligation to repair any
improvements thereon during the term of this lease.

9. REPAIRS BY APPALACHIAN

Appalachian accepts the Premises in their present condition and as suited for the uses intended by
Appalachian. Appalachian shall, throughout the initial term of this Lease, and any extension or
renewal thereof, at its expense, maintain in good order and repair the Premises.

10. ALTERATIONS

Appalachian shall not make any alterations, additions, or improvements to the Premises without
the County’s prior written consent. Appalachian shall promptly remove any alterations, additions,
or improvements constructed in violation of this Paragraph upon the County's written request. All
approved alterations, additions, and improvements will be accomplished in a good and
workmanlike manner; in conformity with all applicable laws and regulations, free of any liens or
encumbrances. The County may require Appalachian to remove any alterations, additions or
improvements (whether or not made with the County's consent) at the termination of the Lease and
to restore the Premises to its prior condition, all at Appalachian's expense. All alterations,
additions and improvements which the County has not required Appalachian to remove shall
become the County's property and shall be surrendered to the County upon the termination of this
Lease, except that Appalachian may remove any of Appalachian's machinery, trade fixtures or
equipment which can be removed without material damage to the Premises. Appalachian shall
repair, at Appalachian’s expense, any damage to the Premises caused by the removal of any such
machinery, trade fixtures or equipment.

11. REMOVAL OF FIXTURES

Appalachian may (if not in default hereunder) prior to the expiration of this Lease, or any extension
or renewal thereof, remove all fixtures and equipment which it has placed in the Premises, provided
Appalachian repairs all damage to the Premises caused by such removal.

12. GOVERNMENTAL ORDERS

Appalachian agrees, at its own expense, to comply promptly with all requirements of any legally
constituted public authority made necessary by reason of Appalachian's occupancy of the
Premises. The County agrees to comply promptly with any such requirements if not made
necessary by reason of Appalachian's occupancy. It is mutually agreed, however, between the
County and Appalachian, that if in order to comply with such requirements, the cost to the County
or Appalachian, as the case may be, shall exceed a sum which the respective party desires to pay,
then the County or Appalachian, whichever is obligated to comply with such requirements, may
terminate this Lease by giving written notice of termination to the other party by registered mail,
which termination shall become effective ninety (90) days after receipt of such notice and which



notice shall eliminate the necessity of compliance with such requirements by giving such notice.
13. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Appalachian shall not, without the prior written consent of the County, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld, assign this Lease or any interest hereunder, or sublet the Premises or any
part thereof, or permit the use of the Premises by any party other than Appalachian. Consent to
any assignment or sublease shall not impair this provision and all later assignments or subleases
shall be made likewise only on the prior written consent of the County. The Assignee of
Appalachian, at option of the County, shall become directly liable to the County for all obligations
of Appalachian hereunder, but no sublease or assignment by Appalachian shall relieve
Appalachian of any liability hereunder.

14. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

The happening of any one or more of the following events (hereinafter any one of which may be
referred to as an "Event of Default™) during the term of this Lease, or any renewal or extension
thereof, shall constitute a breach of this Lease on the part of Appalachian: (a) Appalachian fails to
pay the rental as provided for herein; (b) Appalachian abandons or vacates the Premises; and/or
(c) Appalachian fails to comply with or abide by and perform any other obligation imposed upon
Appalachian under this Lease.

15. REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the County may pursue any one or more of the
following remedies separately or concurrently, without prejudice to any other remedy herein
provided or provided by law; (a) if the Event of Default involves nonpayment of rental and
Appalachian fails to cure such default with five (5) days after receipt of written notice thereof from
the County, or if the Event of Default involves a default in performing any of the terms or
provisions of this Lease other than the payment of rental and Appalachian fails to cure such default
within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of default from the County, the County may
terminate this Lease by giving written notice to Appalachian and upon such termination shall be
entitled to recover from Appalachian damages as may be permitted under applicable law; or (b) if
the Event of Default involves any matter other than those set forth in item (a) of this paragraph,
the County may terminate this Lease by giving written notice to Appalachian.

16. EXTERIOR SIGNS

Appalachian shall place no signs on the Premises, except with the express written consent of the
County. Any and all signs placed on the Premises by Appalachian shall be maintained in
compliance with governmental rules and regulations governing such signs and Appalachian shall
be responsible to the County for any damage caused by installation, use or maintenance of said
signs, and all damage incident to removal thereof.

17. THE COUNTY'S ENTRY OF PREMISES



The County may enter the Premises for any reasonable and necessary purpose, provided it is during
reasonable hours.

18. WAIVER OF RIGHTS

No failure of the County to exercise any power given the County hereunder or to insist upon strict
compliance by Appalachian of its obligations hereunder and no custom or practice of the parties
at variance with the terms hereof shall constitute a waiver of the County's right to demand exact
compliance with the terms hereof.

19. ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

@ Appalachian shall not bring onto the Premises any Hazardous Materials (as defined
below) without the prior written approval by the County. Any approval must be preceded by
submission to the County of appropriate Material Safety Data Sheets (MSD Sheets). In the event
of approval by the County, Appalachian covenants that it will (1) comply with all requirements of
any constituted public authority and all federal, state, and local codes, statutes ordinances, rules
and regulations, and laws, whether now in force or hereafter adopted, relating to Appalachian’s
use of the Premises, or relating to the storage, use, disposal, processing, distribution, shipping or
sales of any hazardous, flammable, toxic, or dangerous materials, waste or substance, the presence
of which is regulated by a federal, state, or local law, ruling, rule or regulation (hereafter
collectively referred to as "Hazardous Materials"); (2) comply with any reasonable
recommendations by the insurance carrier of either the County or Appalachian relating to the use
by Appalachian on the Premises of such Hazardous Materials; (3) refrain from unlawfully
disposing of or allowing the disposal of any Hazardous Materials upon, within, about or under the
Premises; and (4) remove all Hazardous Materials from the Premises, either after their use by
Appalachian or upon the expiration or earlier termination of this lease, in compliance with all
applicable laws.

(b) Appalachian shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits in connection
with its use, storage and disposal of Hazardous Materials, and shall develop and maintain, and
where necessary file with the appropriate authorities, all reports, receipts, manifest, filings, lists
and invoices covering those Hazardous Materials and Appalachian shall provide the County with
copies of all such items upon request. Appalachian shall provide, within five (5) days after receipt
thereof, copies of all notices, orders, claims or other correspondence from any federal, state or
local government or agency alleging any violation of any environmental law or regulation by
Appalachian, or related in any manner to Hazardous Materials. In addition, Appalachian shall
provide the County with copies of all responses to such correspondence at the time of the response.

(©) If Appalachian fails to comply with the Covenants to be performed hereunder with
respect to Hazardous materials, or if an environmental protection lien is filed against the premises
as a result of the actions of Appalachian, its agents, employees or invitees, then the occurrence of
any such events shall be considered a default hereunder.



(d) Appalachian will give the County prompt notice of any release of Hazardous
Materials, reportable or non-reportable, to federal, state or local authorities, of any fire, or any
damage occurring on or to the Premises.

(e) Appalachian will use and occupy the Premises and conduct its business in such a
manner that the Premises are neat, clean and orderly at all times with all chemicals or Hazardous
Materials marked for easy identification and stored according to all codes as outlined above.

()] The warranties and indemnities contained in this Paragraph shall survive the
termination of this Lease.

20.  ABANDONMENT

Appalachian shall not abandon the Premises at any time during the Lease term. If Appalachian
shall abandon the premises or be dispossessed by process of law, any Personal Property belonging
to Appalachian and left on the Premises shall, at the option of the County, be deemed abandoned,
and available to the County to use or sell to offset any rent due or any expenses incurred by
removing same and restoring the Premises.

21. DEFINITIONS

The “County" as used in this Lease shall include the undersigned, its representatives, assigns and
successors in title to the Premises. "Agent" as used in this Lease shall mean the party designated
as same in Paragraph 22, its representatives, assigns and successors. "Appalachian” shall include
the undersigned and its representatives, assigns and successors, and if this lease shall be validly
assigned or sublet, shall include also Appalachian's assignees or sublessees as to the Premises
covered by such assignment or sublease. The “County”, "Appalachian”, and "Agent" include male
and female, singular and plural, corporation, partnership or individual, as may fit the particular
parties.

22. NOTICES

All notices required or permitted under this Lease shall be in writing and shall be personally
delivered or sent by U.S. certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices to
Appalachian shall be delivered or sent to the address shown at the beginning of this Lease, with a
copy to Office of General Counsel, Appalachian State University, ASU Box 32126, Boone, NC
28608. Notices to the County shall be delivered or sent to the address shown at the beginning of
this Lease and notices to Agent, if any, shall be delivered or sent to the address set forth in
Paragraph 3 hereof.

All notices shall be effective upon delivery. Any party may change its notice address upon written
notice to the other parties, given as provided herein.



23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Lease contains the entire agreement of the parties hereto, and no representations,
inducements, promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, between the parties, not embodied herein
shall be of any force or effect. This Lease may not be modified except by a writing signed by all
the parties hereto.

24.  AUTHORIZED LEASE EXECUTION

Each individual executing this Lease as director, officer or agent of a party hereto represents and
warrants that he/she is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf of such party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals, the
date and year first above written.

LANDLORD: TENANT:

WATAUGA COUNTY: APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY:
By: (SEAL) By: (SEAL)
Title: Deron Geouque, County Manager Title: Sheri Everts, Chancellor

Date: Date:

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
and Fiscal Control Act.

Misty Watson, Watauga County Finance Officer



Exhibit A: Property Description/Diagram

Greenhouse/Bioshelter research site at Watauga County Landfill
Estimate of leased area : 50,000 ft?

June 3, 2016

« lMeasurements

Q ¥ | safest ~

Measurement Result

g 49,8982 SqFeet




EXISTING SEPTIC PIPE
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED 4" SEPTIC DRAIN PIPE OR AS
REQUIRED FOR CONNECTION TO NEW ADDITION

NORTH CAROLINA FORESTRY SERVICE BUILDING
POWER POLE AND LINE
CLEAN OUT FOR SEPTIC LINE

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

DESIGN LOADS

ELEVATION: 3346 AMSL

WIND ZONE: 110 MPH

SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY: C

FLOOR LIVE LOAD: 40 PSF

FLOOR DEAD LOAD: 75 PSF

GROUND SNOW LOAD: 35 PSF

ROOF DEAD LOAD INCLUDING SOLAR PANELS: 15 PSF
DESIGN FROST DEPTH: 24 INCHES

MATERIALS

[/
NRRIR ./
NN ')/’/
~ * > CA
SO KBz
SO0 ©w Ve
SN Se wEFo
=<2 <o T o=
=09 uwe S.==
2%, S Si&S
oy
2500y, © G
,’ .'.d t'. \\\
a®
S
TN
(_')O
29’ o ~
x% < 2
23 Qg
.Za RS
08 K5z
B, wo 235
z aqgPp
o WosE
0 <
9 -
rZ o>FE
=9 w53
@ Z <0w??
<O x%ﬂf -
z0 Q=34
<9 E -5
;Z < o
S o m
-z
[a) [a)
o I~
4 ~l02%2|0
uole e
= Qo a % a
O n 9|a o
< E({l < <
= ©
z I N[>
0 Folaz|o
Oulz3|uw
T |0
w2123
" |E58|L
x o

CONVENTIONAL LUMBER: SPF OR SYP, #2 OR BETTER
BOLTS: ASTM A307 OR BETTER

CONCRETE: 3000 PSI AT 28 DAYS

REINFORCEMENT REBAR: 60KSI

(V/V COMMUNICATIONS UNDERGROUND LINE EPOXY: SIMPSON SET EPOXY OR EQUAL
%, PROPOSED WATER LINE WELD ROD: E70XX
% PLATE STEEL: ASTM A36
@O PROPOSED GRID TIE POWER LINES HARDWARE: SIMPSON STRONG-TIE OR EQUAL
‘ DRAINAGE PIPE: MEET ASTM F405
DRAINAGE STONE: #57 TYPICAL
MASONRY: 8x8x16 CMU BLOCK.
LANDFILL RD.

NOTES

1. ALL CONSTRUCTION TO MEET 2012 NORTH CAROLINA STATE
BUILDING CODE: COMMERCIAL CODE.

2. ALL HARDWARE AND FASTENERS CONTACTING PRESSURE
TREATED MATERIAL SHOULD BE APPROVED FOR USE WITH

PROPOSED RESTROOM CORRESPONDING WOOD TREATMENT.
AND ENTRY ADDITION 3. ALL LUMBER CONTACTING CONCRETE TO BE PT.
|—_| 4. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, DRAWINGS
EXISTING OPEN STORAGE —— 1 REPRESENT TYPICAL CONDITIONS. AS-BUILT CONDITIONS MAY
EXIST.
WITH SHED ROOF 5. BATHROOM ADDITION AND FIXTURES TO ADHERE TO ADA AND ANSI

117.1 REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCESSIBILITY.

6. ENGINEER NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR UN-COMPACTED FILL.

EXISTING GREENHOUSE 7. ELASHING, COUNTER-FLASHING AND WATERPROOFING BY OTHERS.
EXISTING STORAGE BUILDING
SITE PLAN
1 SCALE: NTS

COPYRIGHT IONCON, PLLC, THESE DRAWINGS ARE INTENDED FOR A SINGLE USE ONLY AT THE

ADDRESS SPECIFIED HEREIN. DISCLAIMER: THESE DRAWINGS ARE MADE ON A BEST EFFORTS BASIS

AND INTEND TO REPRESENT ACCURATE FIELD CONDITIONS. CONTRACTOR/INSTALLER IS

RESPONSIBLE TO VERIFY ACCURACY AND FOR FINAL ASSEMBLY AND FIT AND FINISH. THESE

DRAWINGS RELATE ONLY TO THE STRUCTURAL ELEMENTS OF THE GIVEN JOB.

SITE PLAN AND NOTES

APP STATE BIOSHELTER ADDITION
649 LANDFILL ROAD
BOONE, NC 28607

PROJECT NUMBER
167002

DATE
06-01-2016

SCALE
AS SHOWN

SHEET:G1

OF: 3 SHEETS]




AGENDA ITEM 7:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

B. Proposed General Records Retention and Disposition Schedule for Local Government
Agencies

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The Government Records Section of the State Archives of North Carolina created a new Records
Retention and Disposition Schedule for the general records of Local Government Agencies.
When adopted, the new schedule will supersede the following standards on all local schedules
published prior to March 1, 2019:

Administration and Management Records
Budget, Fiscal, and Payroll Records
Geographic Information System (GIS) Records
Information Technology Records

Legal Records

Personnel Records

Public Relations Records

Risk Management Records

Workforce Development Records

Board action is required to adopt the General Records Retention and Disposition Schedule for
Local Government Agencies as presented.



RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSITION
SCHEDULE

GENERAL RECORDS SCHEDULE

FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT
AGENCIES

Issued By:

HEN
]| NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.l= NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

North Carolina Department of Natural and Cultural Resources
Division of Archives and Records
Government Records Section

March 1, 2019



CONTENTS

Front Matter

X B UL IV SUMIMIAIY cettiitiiiiie ittt e et et e et ettt eaeeaetaestaestaesnsesnsesassasstnsssnsesnsesnsesnssnssnsssnsssnesrnses i
Managing Public Records in NOrth Caroling ........ueeeeeeeueuriiririieiiiiiiieierererererererererererere——————————. iii
Audits, Litigation, and Other Official ACLIONS ......uuvvviiiiiiiiiiiiireeeee e e e s e e naraeeees Vi
=T 1T Y =T o] e Fy vii
Legend for RECOIAS SCREAUIE. .....ueviiiiii ittt e e e et r e e e e e seseaabreeeeeeeessenanes ix

Records Retention and Disposition Schedule

Standard 1: Administration and Management RECOrds........ccccvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 1
Standard 2: Budget, Fiscal, and Payroll RECOIAS..........couevurrrreiiieeiiiiirreeeeee et ee e e s eenareeeees 18
Standard 3: Geographic Information Syste€ms RECOIAS......uveeeiieeiiiicirrreeiieeeeeiiiireeeeeeeeseennareeeees 30
Standard 4: Information TechNOIOZY RECOIS .....uuvviiiiiiiiiiirieiieeee ettt e e e e enaaraaeees 37
StaNdard 5: LEEAl RECOIUS....uuiiiiiiiiiiriiiieeeeeecittreee e e e eeeetrereeeeeeseesntbrrereeeeeseseassraneeeeeeseenansrrsnnes 43
Standard 6: PersONNEl RECOMAS......ccuuvvriiiieeiiiiiiiireeeeeeeeeieiireeeeeeeeeeesetrrrereseeeeeesassreseeeeeessessnsrssenes 50
Standard 7: Public RElations RECOIAS .......ccoviicuiriiiiiieeieiiiiiieeeee e e e eeriirree e e e e e eeeeabareeeeeeeeseennareeeees 67
Standard 8: Risk Management RECOIUS.......ccovurrrieiieeiiiiiiiieeeee e e eerirrree e e e e eebbreeeeeeeeseennareeees 71
Standard 9: Workforce Development RECOIUS......uuiiiiiiiiireeeieeeeieiiiirreeeeeeeeeeinrreeeeeeeeseennareeeees 75
Appendix
DI (Ul et aTo] oI} il U1 o] [Toll R{=Tele] o -y SR PRPUPPPPRRPPRPPPRt 76
Sample Destructions LOZ ....cociviiiiiiiiiii 77
Electronic Records: E-mail, Born Digital Records, and Digital IMaging .......cccccvvevevvveverereverveevennnns 78
GeoSPAtial RECOIAS .coiiiiiiiiiiii 80
1Y/ ETel o) 1Ty o P POPUPUPPUPPPRPPPIRt 82
DR R =] Y 1] = ] o =Rt 84
) = i = 1T T =T 85
Request Forms
Request for Change in Records SChEAUIE .......uuvviveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieiererererrreeerererererereraaeae—.. 86
Request for Disposal of Unscheduled RECOIS.......uuuuiivrirrriieriiiiiriiiieriierereeeeereeeeererereeee. 87
Request for Disposal of Original Records Duplicated by Electronic Means .........cccvvvvvee. 88
LTI 2 5T OSSP OPUPRPPRPPPRPPPRt 89

[T 1= TR OTPPRURRPPRRRN 90



2019 Local Government Agencies
General Records Retention and Disposition Schedule

The records retention and disposition schedule and retention periods governing the records series listed herein are
hereby approved. In accordance with the provisions of Chapters 121 and 132 of the General Statutes of North
Caroling, it is agreed that the records do not and will not have further use or value for official business, research, or
reference purposes after the respective retention periods specified herein and are authorized to be destroyed or
otherwise disposed of by the agency or official having custody of them without further reference to or approval of
either party to this agreement. The local government agency agrees to comply with 07 NCAC 04M .0510 when
deciding on a method of destruction. Confidential records will be destroyed in such a manner that the records
cannot be practicably read or reconstructed. However, records subject to audit or those legally required for ongoing
official proceedings must be retained until released from such audits or official proceedings, notwithstanding the
instructions of this schedule. Public records, including electronic records, not listed in this schedule are not
authorized to be destroyed.

All local government agencies and the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources agree that certain records
series possess only brief administrative, fiscal, legal, research, and reference value. These records series have been
designated by retention periods that allow these records to be destroyed when “reference value ends.” All local
government agencies hereby agree that they will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention
periods for the records that Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy
when reference value ends.” If alocal government agency does not establish internal policies and retention periods,
the local government agency is not complying with the provisions of this retention schedule and is not authorized
by the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources to destroy the records with the disposition instruction “destroy
when reference value ends.”

All local government agencies and the Depariment of Natural and Cultural Resources concur that the long-term
and/or permanent preservation of electronic records requires additional commitment and active management by
the agency. Agencies agree to comply with all policies, standards, and best practices published by the Department
of Natural and Cultural Resources regarding the creation and management of elecironic records.

It is further agreed that these records may not be destroyed prior to the time periods stated; however, for sufficient
reason they may be retained for longer periods. This schedule supersedes the general standards in all previous local
government retention and disposition schedules and is to remain in effect from the date of approval unti it is
reviewed and updated.

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

\%&}\m@v ¢. Qﬁm\!@

Muncipal/County Clerk or Manager Sarah E. Koonts, Director
Title: Division of Archives and Records
APPROVED W —
Head of Governing Body "Eus‘ H. Hamlite{n Secretary
Title: Department of Natural and Cultural
Resources

Municipality/County:




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

According to G.S. § 121-5(b) and G.S. § 132-3, you may destroy public records only with the
consent of the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources (DNCR). The State Archives
of North Carolina is the division of DNCR charged with administering a records
management program. This schedule is the primary way the State Archives of North
Carolina gives its consent. Without approving this schedule, your agency is obligated to
obtain the State Archives of North Carolina’s permission to destroy any record, no matter
how insignificant.

Each records series listed on this schedule has specific disposition instructions that will
indicate how long the series must be kept in your office. In some cases, the disposition
instructions are simply “retain in office permanently,” which means that those records
must be kept in your office forever. In other cases, the retention period may be “destroy
in office when reference value ends.” An agency may have reference copies of materials,
meaning “a copy of a record distributed to make recipients aware of the content but not
directing the recipient to take any action on the matter” (from Richard Pearce-Moses, A
Glossary of Archival and Records Terminology). Your agency must establish and enforce
internal policies by setting minimum retention periods for the records that the State
Archives of North Carolina has scheduled with the disposition instructions, “destroy when
reference value ends.”

E-mail is a record as defined by G.S. § 121-5 and G.S. § 132. It is the content of the e-mail
that is critical when determining the retention period of a particular e-mail, including
attachments, not the media in which the record was created. It is important for all agency
employees and officials to determine the appropriate records series for specific e-mails
and retain them according to the disposition instructions.

The State Archives of North Carolina recommends that all agency employees and officials
view the tutorials that are available online through the State Archives website in order to
familiarize themselves with records management principles and practices. The State
Archives of North Carolina’s online tutorials include topics such as records management
and scanning guidelines.

The State Archives of North Carolina provides microfilming services for the minutes of
major decision-making boards and commissions. Once those records are filmed, we will
store the silver halide negative (original) in our security vault. There is a nominal fee for
filming and duplicating film. Contact the Records Management Analyst in charge of
microfilm coordination for the most current information.



MANAGING PUBLIC RECORDS IN NORTH CAROLINA

What is this “records retention and disposition schedule”?

A. This document is a tool for the employees of local government agencies across North Carolina to use
when managing the records in their offices. It lists records commonly found in agency offices and gives an
assessment of their value by indicating how long those records should be retained. This schedule is also
an agreement between your agency and the State Archives of North Carolina.

This schedule serves as the inventory and schedule that the State Archives of North Carolina is directed by
G.S. § 121-5(c) and G.S. § 132-8 to provide. It supersedes all previous editions, including all amendments.

How do | get this schedule approved?

A. This schedule must be approved by your governing body for use in your agency. That approval should be
made in a regular meeting and recorded as an action in the minutes. It may be done as part of the
consent agenda, by resolution, or other action.

Am | required to have all the records listed on this schedule?

A. No, this is not a list of records you must have in your office.

What is “reference value”?

A. ltems containing “reference value” in the disposition instructions are generally records that hold limited
value, which is typically restricted to those documenting routine operations within the office. A minimum
retention period should be established by the office for any items containing the phrase “destroy in office
when reference value ends” in the disposition instructions.

Do the standards correspond to the organizational structure of my agency?

A. Records series are grouped into standards to make it easier for users to locate records and their
disposition instructions. You may find that the groupings reflect the organizational structure of your
agency, or you may find that records are located in various standards depending on the content of the
record. The intent of the schedule’s organization is to provide an easy reference guide for the records
created in your agency.

What if | cannot find some of my records on this schedule?

A. Sometimes the records are listed in a different standard than how you organize them in your office. Be
sure to check the Index and utilize the search function on the PDF version of the schedule to facilitate the
location of records series. If you still cannot locate your records on the schedule, contact a Records
Management Analyst. We will work with you to amend this records schedule so that you may destroy
records appropriately.

What are public records?
A. The General Statutes of North Carolina, Chapter 132, provides this definition of public records:

“Public record” or “public records” shall mean all documents, papers, letters, maps, books,
photographs, films, sound recordings, magnetic or other tapes, electronic data-processing records,
artifacts, or other documentary material, regardless of physical form or characteristics, made or
received pursuant to law or ordinance in connection with the transaction of public business by any
agency of North Carolina government or its subdivisions. Agency of North Carolina government or its
subdivisions shall mean and include every public office, public officer or official (State or local, elected
or appointed), institution, board, commission, bureau, council, department, authority or other unit of
government of the State or of any county, unit, special district or other political subdivision of
government.



Q. Is any person allowed to see my records?

A.

Yes, except as restricted by specific provisions in state or federal law. G.S. § 132-6 instructs:

“Every custodian of public records shall permit any record in the custodian’s custody to be inspected
and examined at reasonable times and under reasonable supervision by any person, and shall, as
promptly as possible, furnish copies thereof upon payment of any fees as may be prescribed by law.
... No person requesting to inspect and examine public records, or to obtain copies thereof, shall be
required to disclose the purpose or motive for the request.”

Q. What about my confidential records?

A.

Not all government records are open to public inspection. Exceptions to the access requirements in G.S.
§ 132-6 and the definition of public records in G.S. § 132-1 are found throughout the General Statutes.
You must be able to cite a specific provision in the General Statutes or federal law when you restrict or
deny access to a particular record.

Q. Am | required to make available to the public copies of drafts that have not
been approved?

A.

Yes, even if a report, permit, or other record has not been finalized, it is still a public record subject to
request. Any record that is not confidential by law must be provided when a request is received, whether
it is “finished” or not.

Q. What do | do with permanent records?

A.

Permanent records should be maintained in the office that created the records, forever.

The Department of Natural and Cultural Resources (DNCR) is charged by the General Assembly with the
administration of a records management program (N.C.G.S. §121-4 (2) and §132-8.1) and the
maintenance of “a program for the selection and preservation of public records considered essential to the
operation of government and to the protection of the rights and interests of persons” (§132-8.2).
Permanent records with these characteristics require preservation duplicates that are human-readable
(paper or microfilm). Some examples of these characteristics include:

= Affect multiple people, without regard to relation
= Have significance over a long span of time

= Document governance

= Document citizenship

Examples of records with these characteristics:

= Minutes of governing bodies at the state and local levels are the basic evidence of our system of
governance, and are routinely provided for the public to read.

= Records, such as deeds and tax scrolls, about land document changes in ownership and condition.
Counties maintain offices expressly for the purpose of making those records available to the public.
Other records in local and state governments document potential public health hazards, such as
hazardous materials spills.

= Adoptions, marriages, and divorces document changes in familial relationships and document
citizenship. Though adoptions are confidential (not available for public inspection), they document
citizenship and changes in inheritance and familial succession.

®  Court records, such as wills, estates, and capital cases, affect people within and across family groups,
are made available for public inspection, and often involve transactions related to the examples above.

See the Human-Readable Preservation Duplicates policy issued by the North Carolina Department of

Natural and Cultural Resources (https://archives.ncdcr.gov/documents/human-readable-preservation-

duplicates) and check with a records analyst to determine whether your permanent records require a

preservation duplicate.



https://archives.ncdcr.gov/documents/human-readable-preservation-duplicates
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/documents/human-readable-preservation-duplicates

What is historical value?

A. Historical records document significant events, actions, decisions, conditions, relationships, and similar
developments. These records have administrative, legal, fiscal, or evidential importance for the
government or its citizens. Call a Records Management Analyst for further assistance in assessing
historical value.

What if | do not have any records?

A. Nearly every position in government generates, receives, or uses records. Computer files of any kind,
including drafts and e-mail, are public records. Even if your records are not the official or final version,
your records are public records. Not all records have high historical, legal, or fiscal value, but they all must
be destroyed in accordance with the provisions of the appropriate records schedule.

May | store our unused records in the basement, attic, shed, etc.?

A. Public records are public property. Though we encourage agencies to find places to store records that do
not take up too much valuable office space, the selected space should be dry, secure, and free from pests
and mold. Your office must ensure that records stored away from your main office area are well
protected from natural and man-made problems while remaining readily available to your staff and the
public.

Our old records are stored in the attic, basement, or off-site building, etc.
Are we required to provide public access to these records?

A. Yes, as long as the records are not confidential by law. You should also be aware that confidentiality can
expire.

Aren’t all our old records at the State Archives of North Carolina?

A. Probably not. The State Archives of North Carolina collects only very specific types of records from local
government offices. Contact a Records Management Analyst for more information about which records
are held or can be transferred to the State Archives of North Carolina for permanent preservation.

| found some really old records. What should | do with them?

A. Call a Records Management Analyst. We will help you examine the records and assess their historical
value.

Can | give my old records to the historical society or public library?

A. Before you offer any record to a historical society, public library, or any other entity, you must contact a
Records Management Analyst. Permanent records must be kept either in your offices or at the State
Archives of North Carolina.

Whom can | call with questions?

A. Ifyou are located west of Statesville, call our Western Office in Asheville at (828) 296-7230 extension 224.
If you are east of Statesville, all the way to the coast, call our Raleigh office at (919) 814-6900.



AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION

Q. Why is there an asterisk in the disposition instructions of so many items on
this schedule?

A. No record involved in a pending or ongoing audit, legal, or other official action may be
destroyed before that audit or action is resolved.

A legal hold or litigation hold means that records that are the subject of the legal hold or litigation hold
must be preserved and thus must not be destroyed until officially released from the hold. A legal hold or
litigation hold is placed when either an official discovery order is served on the agency requesting the
production of the records in question (for a litigation, regulatory investigation, audit, open records
request, etc.) or litigation is pending and the agency is thus on notice to preserve all potentially relevant
records. You must also ensure that for a claim or litigation that appears to be reasonably foreseeable or
anticipated but not yet initiated, any records (in paper or electronic formats) relevant to such a claim or
litigation are preserved and not destroyed until released by your General Counsel. The records in
guestion must not be destroyed until the completion of the action and the resolution of all issues that
arise from it regardless of the retention period set forth in this schedule.

We have used an asterisk (*) in the disposition instructions to mark records series that are commonly
audited, litigated, or may be subject to other official actions. However, any record has this potential.
Records custodians are responsible for being aware of potential actions, and for preventing the
destruction of any record that is, or may be reasonably expected to become, involved in an audit, legal, or
other official action.

Records used during routine audits may be destroyed when the governing body accepts the audit, if the
records have completed the retention period listed in this schedule. If time remains in the retention
period, the records must be maintained for the remainder of the period. The auditor’s working papers
must be kept according to the schedule. (See AUDITS: PERFORMANCE, page 2, item 8, and AUDITS:
FINANCIAL, page 19, item 6.) Should a dispute arise over an audit, the records that were audited should
be retained until that dispute is resolved.

The attorney representing the agency should inform records custodians when legal matters are concluded
and records will no longer be needed. Following the conclusion of any legal action, the records may be
destroyed if they have met the retention period in the schedule. Otherwise, they should be kept for the
remaining time period.

Vi



TRANSITORY RECORDS

Transitory records are defined as “record[s] that [have] little or no documentary or evidential value and that need
not be set aside for future use.”?!

According to North Carolina General Statutes § 121 and § 132, every document, paper, letter, map, book,
photograph, film, sound recording, magnetic or other tape, electronic data processing record, artifact, or other
documentary material, regardless of physical form or characteristics, made or received in connection with the
transaction of public business by any state, county, municipal agency, or other political subdivision of government
is considered a public record and may not be disposed of, erased, or destroyed without specific approval from the
Department of Natural and Cultural Resources.

The Department of Natural and Cultural Resources recognizes that some records may have little or no long-term
documentary or evidential value to the creating agency. These records are often called “transitory records.” The
following questions and answers discuss types of transitory records commonly created in state government. They
may be disposed of according to the guidance below. However, all public employees should be familiar with the
General Schedule for State Agency Records, their office’s Program Records Retention and Disposition Schedule,
and any other applicable guidelines for their office. If any of these documents require a different retention period
for these records, follow the longer of the two retention periods. When in doubt about whether a record is
transitory, or whether it has special significance or importance, retain the record in question and seek guidance
from the analyst assigned to your agency.

Q. What do I do with routing slips, fax cover sheets, “while you were out”
slips, memory aids, etc.?

A. Routing slips and transmittal sheets adding no information to that contained in the transmitted material
have minimal value after the material has been successfully transmitted. These records may be destroyed
or otherwise disposed of after receipt of the material has been confirmed.

Similarly, “while you were out” slips, memory aids, and other records requesting follow-up actions
(including voicemails) have minimal value once the official action these records are supporting has
been completed and documented. Unless they are listed on the General Schedule for State Agency
Records or your office’s Program Records Retention and Disposition Schedule, these records may be
destroyed or otherwise disposed of once the action has been resolved.

Q. What about research materials, drafts, and other working papers used to
create a final, official record?

A. Drafts and working papers are materials, including notes and calculations, gathered or created to assist in
the creation of another record. All drafts and working papers are public records subject to all provisions
of General Statute § 132, but many of them have minimal value after the final version of the record has
been approved, and may be destroyed after final approval, if they are no longer necessary to support the
analysis or conclusions of the official record. Drafts and working documents which may be destroyed
after final approval include:

e Drafts and working papers for internal and external policies

e Drafts and working papers for internal administrative reports, such as daily and monthly
activity reports

e Drafts and working papers for internal, non-policy-level documents, such as informal
workflows and manuals; and

L A Glossary of Archival and Records Terminology, Richard Pearce-Moses (2005)

Vi



e Drafts and working papers for presentations, workshops, and other explanations of agency
policy that are already formally documented.

Q. What if | have forms designed and used solely to create, update, or modify
records in an electronic medium?

A. If these records are not required for audit or legal purposes, they may be destroyed in office after
completion of data entry and after all verification and quality control procedures. However, if the forms
contain any analog components that are necessary to validate the information contained on them (e.g. a
signature or notary’s seal), they should be retained according to the disposition instructions for the
records series encompassing the forms’ function.

See also the State Archives of North Carolina’s guidance on digital signatures found at:
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/documents/digital-signature-policy-guidelines

viii


https://archives.ncdcr.gov/documents/digital-signature-policy-guidelines

LEGEND FOR RECORDS SCHEDULE

This records retention and disposition schedule applies to records in all media, unless otherwise
specified.

7
'

t

- — symbol designating that one or more records in this series may be confidential or may include

confidential information.

Item # — an identifying number assigned to each records series for ease of reference.

Series — “a group of similar records that are . . . related as the result of being created, received, or used
in the same activity.” (From Richard Pearce-Moses, A Glossary of Archival and Records
Terminology). Series in this schedule are based on common functions in government offices.

Records Series Title — a short identification of the records in a series, based on their common function.

Series Description — a longer description of the records in a series, often including the types of records
that can frequently be found in that series. This information is included underneath the Records
Series Title.

Disposition Instructions — instructions dictating the length of time a series must be retained and how
the office should dispose of those records after that time.

Citation — a listing of references to statutes, laws, and codes related to the records series. Citations can

include:

e Authority: governing the creation of records
e Confidentiality: limiting access to public records
e Retention: setting a retention period

Throughout this schedule, items that cross-reference other items within this schedule are indicated with
bold, uppercase letters. If you hover your cursor over one of these items, you will see the hand tool that
will enable you to click on the item to follow the link to that location.
AUDITS: PERFORMANCE

Records concerning internal and external audits
conducted to assess the function of government
programs. Includes reports, working papers,

corrective measures, and other related records.

See also AUDITS: FINAMCIAL, page 20, item &.

Sample records series title and description with cross-reference
included

No destruction of records may take place if litigation or audits are pending or reasonably anticipated.
See also AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTIONS, page vi.



H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS
Official records pertaining to the authority, operating philosophy, methods, primary functions, and routine office administration of local agencies.

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

1 ABSTRACTS OF MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS Destroy in office when reference value ends.{ éusth;rllgé 300
Copies of abstracts prepared by the County Board of - i

- o Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
Elections and forwarded to the municipal clerk.

Retention Note: Official record maintained permanently by the
County Board of Elections.

2. ACCREDITATION RECORDS Destroy in office 5 years after superseded or obsolete. Authority:

Records documenting accreditations and certifications 10A NCAC 488

received by the agency. Includes applications, final
reports, and other related records.

3. ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTIVES, REGULATIONS, AND a) Retain in office official copy permanently.

RULES b) Destroy in office remaining records after 3 years.

4. AGENDA AND MEETING PACKETS a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Includes agendas and copies of supporting b) Destroy in office remaining records when reference value
documentation submitted and discussed during ends.t
meetings of public bodies. Also includes
documentation of outside meetings attended by Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

agency personnel.

See also MINUTES OF PUBLIC BODIES, page 11, item
42.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.



H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS

Records concerning internal and external audits
conducted to assess the function of government
programs. Includes reports, working papers,

corrective measures, and other related records.

See also AUDITS: FINANCIAL, page 19, item 6.

compliance or operational audits, hazardous material, or
those that document a significant change in agency
practices.

b) Destroy in office remaining audit reports after 10 years.

c) Destroy in office documentation of corrective measures 2
years after their implementation.

d) Destroy in office working papers and remaining records
when superseded or obsolete.

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
5. APPLICATIONS FOR APPOINTMENT a) Destroy in office records concerning appointed individuals
Applications and related records received from 1 year after expiration of term.
individuals applying for appointments to serve on b) Destroy in office remaining records when reference value
public boards, commissions, councils, and committees.
ends.f
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
6. APPOINTMENT REPORTS Destroy in office after 2 years. Authority:
Includes annual appointment reports filed with the NC G.5.§143-157.1
Department of the Secretary of State.
7. AUDIO AND VIDEO RECORDINGS OF MEETINGS Destroy in office after approval of official written minutes.
NoTE: If these serve as the official minutes, as allowed by G.S. §
See also MINUTES OF PUBLIC BODIES, page 11, item 143-318.10(e), their retention should be permanent. These
42. disposition instructions apply to recordings produced solely for
the purpose of generating official written minutes.
8. AUDITS: PERFORMANCE a) Retain in office permanently reports related to internal

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
9. BLUEPRINTS AND SPECIFICATIONS a) Transfer as-built drawings to new owner when agency Confidentiality:
A Blueprints and specifications of agency owned relinquishes ownership of building or facility. G.S.§132-17
t o - .
buildings and facilities. Includes as-built plans and b) Retain in office as-built drawings for life of structure and
related records concerning approved changes. then destroy.
c) Destroy in office blueprints, floorplans, and other
preliminary design and construction documents when
superseded or obsolete.
10. BONDS Destroy in office 5 years after expiration or cancellation.
Records documenting written guarantees from a third
party, including bid bonds, payment bonds,
performance bonds, and surety bonds.
See also BIDS FOR PURCHASE, page 20, item 10, and
PROJECTS, page 14, item 53.
11. BULLETINS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.
Internal information sharing materials that circulate
information within the agency. Also includes
memoranda and newsletters.
12. BUSINESS CERTIFICATION RECORDS a) Destroy in office all documentation 3 years after most
Applications and supporting documentation submitted recent recertification.
by busir'1esses to be certified asa Small Business b) If certification was never issued, destroy in office all
Enterprise (SBE) or other classification. documentation when reference value ends.T
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
13. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SUBJECT FILE Destroy in office after 3 years.
14. CALENDARS OF EVENTS AND APPOINTMENTS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS

Applications, receipts, and related records concerning
rebate programs sponsored by the agency. These
records document programs and incentivized actions
that citizens may opt into.

b) Destroy in office applications 1 year after approval.

c) Destroy in office denied applications when reference value
ends.T

Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
15. CENSUS PROJECT RECORDS Destroy in office when reference value ends.
Records cre_ated to assist the U.S. Census Bureau with Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
the decennial census.
16. CHARTER RECORDS Retain in office permanently.
Charter and charter proceedings related to adoption,
amendment and/or repeal.
17. CITIZEN COMMENTS, COMPLAINTS, PETITIONS, AND a) Transfer records as applicable to LITIGATION CASE Authority:
SERVICE REQUESTS RECORDS, page 47, item 17. 42 USC12132
Records concerning objections, dissatisfaction, or b) Destroy in office comments, informal complaints,
disagreements with actions or positions taken or not petitions, and requests 1 year after resolution.*
taken by the agency. Includes comments and ' ' ' '
petitions submitted by citizens requesting action as c) Destroy in office accommodation requests and complaints
well as routine requests for service. Also includes 2 years after resolution.*
requests for reasonable accommodation under Title Il
of the Americans with Disabilities Act, including survey
of agency buildings to determine accessibility to the
physically handicapped, federal regulations, proposals
for implementing the act, correspondence (including
e-mail), resolutions, and solutions to access problems.
See also CIVIL RIGHTS RECORDS, page 44, item 5.
18. CITIZEN REBATE PROGRAM RECORDS a) Destroy in office financial records 3 years after approval.*

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS

For information on handling e-mail and text or instant
messages, see ELECTRONIC RECORDS, page 78.

Retention Note: The correspondence (including e-mail) of the
most senior administrator has historical value and should be
retained permanently.

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
19. CITIZEN SURVEYS Destroy in office when reference value ends.
Surv.eys and _rglated records addressing agency Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
services, policies, and other concerns.
20. COLLECTED DATA Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete. If data contains
. - . confidential
Information and statistics compiled and analyzed for . . .
. information, abide
research purposes or to support the functions of the
by relevant
agency. .
restrictions.
21. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN a) Retain in office comprehensive plans and strategic plans
Long-range plan outlining policies, guidelines, and permanently.
plalnls for future developmer_1t of the agency. Includes | 1)) pestroy in office background surveys, studies, reports, and
official copy of comprehensive plan and all drafts 5 years after adoption of plan.
background surveys, studies, reports, and draft ' ' ' '
versions of plans. Also includes strategic plans and c) Destroy in office business plans 2 years after execution of
business plans, as well as goals and objectives. plan.
d) Destroy in office goals and mission statements when
superseded or obsolete.
22. CORRESPONDENCE AND MEMORANDA a) Transfer correspondence (including e-mail) with historical
Administrative and management value to HISTORY RECORDS, page 8, item 32, after 3 years.
correspondence/memoranda (including e-mail) b) Destroy routine administrative correspondence and
written or received by the office concerning agency memoranda after 1 year.
authority, operating philosophy, purpose, methods,
and any other function. c) Destroy in office remaining records after 3 years.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.




H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
23. CUSTOMER CALL CENTER RECORDINGS Destroy in office after 30 days.
Recordings of calls to customer service centers made
for quality assurance and training purposes.
24, EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, a) Destroy in office records documenting routine inspections,
AND INSPECTION RECORDS janitorial cleaning, and routine maintenance of equipment
Records concerning the maintenance, repair, routine and vehicles after 1 year.*
testing, and inspection of agency owned equipment b) Destroy in office records documenting all other

and vehicles. Also includes warranties. maintenance and repairs after 3 years.*

c) Destroy in office warranties 1 year after expiration.
See also GRANTS, page 8, item 31, and SYSTEM

MAINTENANCE RECORDS: HARDWARE REPAIR OR
SERVICE, page 40, item 15.

25. EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE REFERENCE RECORDS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.

Includes operation, specification, and technical
manuals. Also includes brochures, bulletins, and
related documentation.

26. EQUIPMENT, FACILITY, AND VEHICLE USAGE a) Destroy in office after 3 years if records are used for
RECORDS allocating costs or determining payment under rental or
Records documenting the assignment, request, and lease agreements.*
usage of agency assets. Also includes mileage and b) Destroy in office remaining records after 1 year.

checkout logs, fuel consumption reports, reservation
requests, authorizations, utility usage logs, and similar
records.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.



H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

27. FACILITY MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND INSPECTION a) Destroy in office records documenting routine inspections,
RECORDS janitorial cleaning, environmental monitoring, and routine
Records documenting maintenance, repair, and maintenance of facilities after 1 year.
inspection of agency-owned facilities. b) Destroy in office records documenting system repair and

improvement (including plumbing, electrical, fire, and
See also CONTRACTS, LEASES, AND AGREEMENTS, other systems) after 3 years.
page 45, item 8.
28. FORMS AND TEMPLATES Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.
Blank forms, templates, and letterhead used to create
agency records.

29. GOVERNING AND ADVISORY BODY MEMBER FILES a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Recorc_ls Foncerning _members of p.ublic boards, b) Destroy in office 1 year after superseded or obsolete
commissions, councils, and committees. Includes waivers from board members choosing not to receive
codes of conduct, ethics statements, agreements, stipend/per diem payments.
notices of resignation, and other related records. Also _ . o .
includes biographical information and waivers. c) Destroy in office remaining records 1 year after service

ends.
See also APPLICATIONS FOR APPOINTMENT, page 2,
item 5, and OATHS OF OFFICE, page 47, item 18.

30. GRANT PROPOSALS a) Transfer records concerning approved grants to GRANTS,
Proposals submitted for grants, including applications, page 8, item 31.
correspondence (including e-mail), and other related b) Destroy in office rejected or withdrawn grant proposals
records. when reference value ends. T

Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
31. GRANTS a) Destroy records supporting the expenditure of federal Retention:
Records concerning approved federal, state, and funds passed through NC DHHS on a fiscal year basis when | 09 NCAC03M .0703
private grants. File includes applications, reports, the DHHS Office of the Controller provides written 2 CFR 200.333
records of equipment purchased with grant funds, and guidance that records are released from all audits and
all relevant programmatic records. Also includes other official actions.
documentation about grants issued by the agency b) Destroy in office records of state and private grants 5 years
along with research records generated as part of a after final financial report is filed.*
grant project.
c) Destroy in office records of other federal grants 3 years
after final financial report is filed.
See also GRANTS: FINANCIAL, page 24, item 27.
d) Destroy in office records not relating to a specific grant
after 1 year.
Retention Note: According to 2 CFR 200.333(c), records for real
property and equipment acquired with Federal funds must be
retained for 3 years after disposition of the
property/equipment.
32. HISTORY RECORDS (AGENCY AND EMPLOYEES) a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Records concerning the history of the agency and its b) Destroy in office remaining records when reference value
employees. Includes published and unpublished ends.T
histories, biographical data, photographs, newspaper '
clippings, and other related records. Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
33. IMPROPER CONDUCT INVESTIGATIONS Destroy in office 3 years after resolution.
Records concerning investigations triggered by
questions about ethics or conduct within an agency,
such as whistleblower reports or allegations of fraud.
Includes complaints, reports, investigations, and other
related records. Also includes records from an ombuds
office.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.




H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

34. INDICES Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.

Listings of where specific information can be found.

35. INTERAGENCY PROGRAMS Destroy in office when reference value ends.
Records of programs involving more than one
government agency. Includes resource materials,
program information, and other related records.

Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

36. INVENTORIES a) Destroy in office lists of properties, facilities, fixed assets,

Inventories describing the type of property (including supplies, and surplus property when superseded or

equipment and facilities other and fixed assets), its obsolete.
location, and related information. Also includes b) Destroy in office inventory control and usage records after
inventory control and usage records, such as 3 years.

requisitions/draw tickets, mileage logs, request forms,
and other related records.

37. LEGISLATION AND REGULATORY RECORDS Destroy in office when reference value ends.

Notices and copies of proposed or adopted state or

o ” " Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
federal legislation or regulations affecting the agency.

38. LOGISTICS MATERIALS Destroy in office after 1 year.

Records concerning scheduled plans of agency
personnel. Includes routine notices, task lists, and
arrangements.

39. MAIL: UNDELIVERABLE/RETURNED Destroy in office after 30 days.

Outgoing agency mail returned by the post office for
any reason, including insufficient postage, incorrect
address, forwarding order expired, etc. Also includes
outgoing e-mail returned for any reason.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.



H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS

Records concerning associations, organizations,
groups, etc., with which the agency is involved.
Includes records concerning memberships or
registrations on behalf of the agency or agency
personnel.

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
40. MAILING AND DISTRIBUTION RECORDS a) Destroy in office Sunshine Lists when superseded or Confidentiality:
A Includes mailing and meeting notification lists, e-mail obsolete. g: g i;_ig
r distribution lists, Sunshine Lists, and related b) Destroy in office remaining records when reference value
documentation of transactions with the U.S. Postal ends T
Service, state courier, or private carriers. '
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
41. MEMBERSHIP RECORDS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

10




EEE NC DEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
42, MINUTES OF PUBLIC BODIES a) Retain in office permanently official minutes of the Authority:
Includes minutes of the governing board and all governing board and its subsidiary boards as well as "a\ll G.S.§143-318.10
subsidiary and advisory boards. Subsidiary boards are attachments necessary to understand the body’s actions.
definf:d as b.oar(_:ls that faxercise_ orare aL_J’Fho_ri?ed to b) The official minutes of advisory boards may be destroyed
exercise legislative, policy-making, quasi-judicial, or only upon approval by the State Archives of North
administr?tive functions. Alsz? includes minutes of Carolina. The State Archives reserves the right to
subcommittees of the governing board and its designate the minutes of any advisory board as
subsidiary and advisory boards. permanent.
. c) Destroy in office minutes of committees or subcommittees
.See the_MICROFII?M S?Ct'_on on page 82 for when reference value ends, if the minutes or actions and
instructions on microfilming. decisions of the committee are entered as part of the
minutes of the parent board. If minutes or actions and
See also AGENDA AND MEETING PACKETS, page 1, decisions of the committee or subcommittee in question
item 4, and AUDIO AND VIDEO RECORDINGS OF are not entered as part of the minutes of the parent board,
MEETINGS, page 2, item 7. If there are other boards the State Archives reserves the right to designate the
in the operational standard(s) or if the Workforce minutes as permanent.§
Development standard is included, add references to Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
those boards here.
43, MINUTES (STAFF MEETINGS) a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Minutes of staff meetings, including all referenced and b) Destroy in office remaining records after 1 year.
attached documentation.
44, MISCELLANEOUS (NON-BUILDING) APPLICATIONS, a) Destroy in office 1 year after expiration of license/permit. Authority:
G.S. §66-77
LICENSES, AND PE'R“',"TS o ' b) Destroy in office applications for which a license/permit
Includgs, but th Ilmlteq to, applications and permits was never issued when reference value ends.
regarding burning, special events, and landscape
establishment. Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

11




H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

45, NOTICES OF PUBLIC MEETINGS Destroy in office after 1 year.

Includes notices and regular meeting schedules.

See also AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, page 43, item

1, and PUBLICITY RECORDS, page 69, item 12.
46. OFFICE SECURITY RECORDS a) If the recording becomes evidence in a personnel Confidentiality:

A Records concerning the security of agency offices, investigation or Iaw_suit, transfer to DISCIPLINARY G.S.§132-1.7
- facilities, vehicles, equipment, and personnel. ACTIONS, page 54, item 12, or LITIGATION CASE RECORDS,

Includes visitors’ register; security, employee, or page 47, item 17.

contractor access to facilities or resources; and b) Destroy in office recordings not required to support known

surveillance system reports and recordings. investigations or litigation after 30 days.

c) Destroy in office remaining records after 1 year.

47. ORDINANCES a) Retain in office official copy permanently.

Includes code of ordinances. b) Destroy in office ordinance development records when

ordinance is no longer in effect.
.See the_MICROFII?M s?cti.on on page 82 for c) Destroy in office additional copies (including tabled or
instructions on microfilming. failed ordinances) when reference value ends.
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

48. PEST CONTROL Destroy in office after 3 years.*

Records concerning pest abatement or eradication

programs overseen by the agency.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

12




H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
49. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Records documenting the formulation, planning, and b) Destroy in office remaining records when superseded or
adoption of policies, procedures, and functions of the obsolete.
agency and its departments. File also includes
organizational charts, reorganization studies, and
similar records describing the arrangement and
administrative structure of the agency.
See also CIVIL RIGHTS RECORDS, page 44, item 5,
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (PERSONNEL), page 62,
item 31, and ELECTRONIC RECORDS POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES, page 38, item 7.
50. POLL LIST/REGISTRATION LIST/ROSTER/ Contact State Archives of North Carolina prior to destroying old Authority:
AUTHORIZATION TO VOTE (ATV) poll books and voter registration books. G.S.§ 163 Art. 15A
. . . G.S. §163-166.7
Lists documenting registered electors and votes cast
. . . 08 NCAC 10B .0103
prior to County Board of Elections taking over
. . . 52 USC Chap. 205
municipal elections. Includes electronic or paper ATV
related records such as ATV books, forms, unused
stickers, lists, registers, indexes, or similar records
used to verify persons are registered voters at each
polling location.
51. PRICE QUOTATIONS Destroy in office when reference value ends.t
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
52. PROCLAMATIONS AND ORDERS a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Proclamations and orders issued by the governing b) Destroy in office remaining records when reference value
board. ends.t
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

13




B NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
53. PROJECTS a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Includes project correspondence (including e-mail), b) Destroy in office remaining records 3 years after
feasibility studies, final reports, specifications, completion of project.
assessments, notices to proceed, cost estimates,
change orders, statements of work, and similar
documentation.
See also PROJECT DOCUMENTATION, page 39, item
11.
54. PROPERTY MANAGEMENT RECORDS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.
Includes appraisals of the financial valuation of
agency-owned property as well as surveys, plats, and
maps.
55. RATE AND FEE SCHEDULES Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.
Records relating to rates, fees, and regulations
concerning agency services.
56. RECORDS MANAGEMENT a) Retain in office documentation concerning the final
Includes correspondence (including e-mail) with state disposition of records permanently.
and/or federal agencies with regards to records b) Destroy in office remaining records when superseded or
retention. Also includes records disposition obsolete.
documentation, file plans, and copies of records
retention and disposition schedules.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

14




H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

57. REFERENCE (READING) FILE Destroy in office when reference value ends.}
Subject files containing informational copies of records
organized by areas of interest. Also includes materials
that have no regulatory authority for the recipient and
are received from outside the agency or from other
units within the agency as well as reference copies of
documents where another individual or agency is
responsible for maintaining the record copy.

Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

58. REPORTS AND STUDIES a) Retain in office permanently 1 copy of all annual and

Records concerning the performance of a department, biennial reports written by the agency.

program, or project, as well as those created for b) Retain in office permanently reports and studies prepared

planning purposes. Includes all annual, sub-annual, or by request of an agency’s governing body or a court.
irregularly prepared research studies, reports, and

studies generated by an agency or prepared by
consultants hired by the agency. Also includes reports

c) Destroy in office after 3 years reports prepared monthly,
bimonthly, or semi-annually.

required to be submitted to the agency. d) Destroy in office after 1 year activity reports concerning

workload measurements, time studies, number of jobs
See also CIVIL RIGHTS RECORDS, page 44, item 5, and completed, etc., prepared on a daily or other periodic
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, page 5, item 21. basis.

e) Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete reports
required to be submitted to the agency.

f)  Destroy in office remaining reports and studies when
reference value ends.

Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

Retention Note: Reports and studies listed elsewhere in this
schedule should be retained the specified period of time.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

15



H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

59. REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION Destroy in office after 1 year after resolution.

Requests received and responses issued by the
agency.

See also PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS, page 69, item
11.

60. REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) Destroy in office when reference value ends. T
Proposals submitted by vendors in response to Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
requests from agency.

See also BIDS FOR PURCHASE, page 20, item 10, and
PRICE QUOTATIONS, page 13, item 51.

61. RESOLUTIONS a) Retain in office permanently one copy of final resolution.
File consists of resolutions indicating date, issues or b) Retain in office permanently resolution development
policy involved, and appropriate signatures. records with historical value.

' c) Destroy in office additional copies of resolutions (including
;ee the'MICROFIITM S('ect|'on on page 82 for those tabled or failed) along with all remaining
instructions on microfilming. development records when reference value ends. T
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

62. SURPLUS PROPERTY Destroy in office 3 years after disposition of property.*
Inventories and reports of agency property to be
surplussed.

63. TRACKING MATERIALS Destroy in office when reference value ends.t
Records intended to verify the receipt of information, Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
such as certified mail receipts.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

16




H_EEE
l= = NC DEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
64. TRAVEL REQUESTS Destroy in office after 1 year.*
Requests and authorizations for travel. Includes forms
and itineraries.
See also TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTS, page 28, item
45, and PRICE QUOTATIONS, page 13, item 51.
65. VEHICLE REGISTRATION CARDS Destroy in office when superseded.
North Carolina registration cards for vehicles in the
agency fleet.
See also VEHICLE TITLES, page 49, item 23.
66. WORK ORDERS a) Destroy in office 1 year after work is completed.*
Includes date and location of work, cost of materials b) If this is the only record documenting completed work,
used and labor, type Of work perfo'rmed, an<':l other follow disposition instructions for FACILITY
related records regarding the repairs of equipment, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND INSPECTION RECORDS, page
facilities, and vehicles. 7, item 27, or EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE MAINTENANCE,
REPAIR, AND INSPECTION RECORDS, page 6, item 24.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

17




H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS

Records created and accumulated concerning the managerial control, budgeting, disbursement, collection, and accounting of the agency.

Note: Per 26 CFR 1.148-5(d)(6)(iii)(E), all records necessary to support the tax-exempt status of an agency debt issue must be retained for the life of the debt
plus 3 years.

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS
ITEM #

RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

1. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Destroy in office 3 years after payment.*

Records concerning the status of accounts in which
the agency owes money to firms or individuals.
Includes invoices, reimbursements, receipts or bills of
sale, check registers, and subsidiary registers. Also
includes stop payment notices.

2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Destroy in office 3 years after collection.*

Records concerning receivables owed and collected.
Includes billing statements, records of payment
received, remittances, subsidiary registers,
overpayment or refund records, deposits, fines and
fees assessed, and collection of past due accounts.

3. ACCOUNTS UNCOLLECTABLE Destroy in office 3 years after account is determined to be

Records of accounts deemed uncollectable, including uncollectable.*
returned checks, write-off authorizations, and other
related records.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

18



H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

4, ANNUAL BUDGET a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently. | Authority:

. G.S. § 159-11
Annual budget and budget message submitted to b) Destroy in office remaining records after 3 years.
governing board for approval.
Retention Note: Annual budgets should be entered into the
minutes of the governing board.
See also BUDGET REPORTS, page 21, item 16.

5. ARBITRAGE RECORDS Destroy in office 3 years after final redemption date of the Authority:
Records concerning arbitrage rebate calculations and bonds and after all related debts and obligations have been 26 CFR 1.148-3
funds rebated. satisfied.

6. AUDITS: FINANCIAL a) Retain in office reports permanently final reports related to | Authority:
Records concerning internal and external internal compliance or operational audits or those that G.5.§159-34
audits. Includes reports, working papers, and related document a significant change in agency practices or have
records. significant administrative value.

b) Destroy in office after 10 years final reports related to
See also AUDITS: PERFORMANCE, page 2, item 8. internal accounting systems and controls and those with
limited administrative value.
c) Destroy in office working papers and remaining records
when superseded of obsolete.*

7. AUTHORIZATION FORMS Destroy in office after 3 years.*
Authorization to purchase materials.

8. BANK STATEMENTS AND RECONCILIATIONS Destroy in office after 3 years.*
Includes bank statements, canceled checks, deposit
slips, and reconciliation reports.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

19



H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

ITEM #

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS

RECORDS SERIES TITLE

DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS

CITATION

BIDS FOR DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY

Records concerning the disposal of surplus property.
Includes information about various disposition
procedures used, such as sealed bids and public
auction.

See also ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, page 18, item 2.

Destroy in office all records after the disposition of property
has been recorded in governing board’s minutes.*

Authority:
G.S. § 153A-176

10.

BIDS FOR PURCHASE

Records documenting quotes to supply products and
services. Includes advertisements, tabulations, awards
letters, records of bids, good faith effort
documentation, and related records concerning
accepted and rejected bids.

a) Transfer records to CONTRACTS, LEASES, AND
AGREEMENTS, page 45, item 8 when bid is approved.

b) Destroy in office bid records not awarded or opened after
1vyear.*

Authority:
G.S. § 143 Article 8

11.

BOND CLOSING RECORDS

Includes applications, agreements, tax records,
contracts, official statements, legal opinions, rating
letters, public hearing bonds, title insurance, deeds of
trust, and other related records concerning bonds
issued by the agency. Also includes records concerning
expenditure and/or investment of bond proceeds.

Destroy in office 3 years after entire issuance has been
satisfied.*

Authority:
G.S. § 159 Article 7

12,

BOND REGISTER

Records of all bonds, notes, and coupons issued by the
agency detailing the purpose of issuance, the date of
issue, serial numbers (if any), denomination, maturity
date, and total principal amount.

Retain in office permanently.

Authority:
G.S. § 159-130

13.

BONDS, NOTES, AND COUPONS

Destroy in office 1 year from date of payment.

Authority:
G.S. § 159-139

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

20




H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF

=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

14. BUDGET ADMINISTRATION RECORDS Destroy in office after 2 years.*

Records of budget administration. Includes research,
correspondence, and other related records.
15. BUDGET EXECUTION RECORDS Destroy in office when released from audits.
Records of authorizations to move funds between
budget codes.

16. BUDGET REPORTS a) Destroy in office daily detail reports after 1 year.*
Includes daily detail reports and monthly budget b) Destroy in office remaining reports after 3 years.*
reports. Also includes contract budget and
expenditure reports and summaries of tax allocations.

See also ANNUAL BUDGET, page 19, item 4.

17. BUDGET REQUESTS AND WORKING PAPERS Destroy in office after 3 years.* Authority:
Includes budget requests, cost estimates, G.5.§159-10
expenditures, program requests, salary and wage lists,
correspondence (including e-mail), and related
records.

18. BUDGET RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES a) Retain official copies in the minutes of the governing Authority:
Includes project ordinances, budget resolutions, and board. g; g 123:;
amendments. b) Destroy in office remaining copies when reference value G:S: §159-13.2

ends. T G.S. § 159-15
Z;e also MINUTES OF PUBLIC BODIES, page 11, item Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

21




H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

19. COST ALLOCATION PLANS Destroy in office after 3 years.*

Accounting report that calculates and spreads agency-
wide indirect costs to departments and funds that
receive a service from other departments.

20. CREDIT/DEBIT/PROCUREMENT CARD RECORDS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.* Confidentiality:
A . . . G.S. §132-1.2(2)
- Records of assignation of agency credit cards and

purchasing cards along with authorization logs.

21. DONATIONS AND SOLICITATIONS a) Destroy in office records supporting approved donations 1
Records concerning requests made to agency by year after payment.
outside organizations. Includes applications and other | 1)) pestroy in office rejected applications after 30 days.
related records.

See also FUND DRIVE AND EVENT RECORDS, page 68,
item 6.

22. ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFERS (EFT) Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete. Confidentiality:
. . G.S. §14-113.20
R Includes forms authorizing electronic transfer of

Y monies via wire transfer or automated clearing house
(ACH) as well as ACH bank reports.

23. ESCHEATS AND UNCLAIMED PROPERTY a) Destroy in office after 10 years if report was filed prior to Authority:
Records containing information required to be July 16, 2012.* G.5.§116B-60
included |’n hoI'der reports submitted to the State b) Destroy in office after 5 years if report was filed on or after | ratention:
Treasurer’s office. " :

JuIy 16, 2012. G.S. § 116B-73
For more information, see the State Treasurer’s
memo, “Annual Reporting of Unclaimed Property.”

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.



https://www.nctreasurer.com/upp/Forms/Annual%20Reporting(All%20Except%20Life%20Insurance%20Companies).pdf

H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
24, FINANCIAL JOURNALS AND LEDGERS a) Destroy in office year-end summaries of receipts and
disbursements after 3 years.*
b) Destroy in office daily, monthly, or quarterly transaction
detail journals and ledgers after 1 year.*
25. FINANCIAL REPORTS a) Destroy in office annual financial reports or other reports
generated to inform decision-making after 3 years.*
b) Destroy monthly or quarterly reports generated for
operational purposes after 1 year.
c) Destroy logs and distribution repots generated to track
transactions when released from audits.
26. GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM Destroy in office when reference value ends.
MONTHLY REPORTS
) Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
Reports produced by the North Carolina Department
of State Treasurer regarding the Teachers’ and State
Employees’ Retirement System (TSERS) and the Local
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(LGERS).

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

23



H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
27. GRANTS: FINANCIAL a) Destroy records supporting the expenditure of federal Retention:

Records concerning approved federal, state, and funds passed through NC DHHS on a fiscal year basis when | 09 NCAC03M .0703
private grants received or issued by the agency. the DHHS Office of the Controller provides written 2 CFR 200.333
Includes all relevant accounting, purchasing, payroll, guidance that records are released from all audits and
and other financial records. other official actions.

b) Destroy in office records of state and private grants 5 years
See also GRANTS, page 8, item 31. after final financial report is filed.*

c) Destroy in office records of other federal grants 3 years

after final financial report is filed.
d) Destroy in office records not relating to a specific grant or
to grants not funded after 1 year.

Retention Note: According to 2 CFR 200.333(c), records for real

property and equipment acquired with Federal funds must be

retained for 3 years after disposition of the

property/equipment.

28. INVESTMENTS a) Destroy in office transaction schedules after 2 years.* Authority:
. . T G.S. §159-30

Includes fund information, portfolio listings and b) Destroy in office performance investment reports when
reports, balance sheets, exchange or consent reference value ends.
instructions, broker confirmations, notices, and other
documentation related to agency investments. Also c) Destroy in office all remaining records after 3 years.*
includes transaction schedules for projecting revenue
on investments as well as performance investment
reports issued by broker or investment firm.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

24




H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS

Records containing information such as the name,
Social Security number, number of hours worked,
compensation rate, deductions, and total wages paid
each employee per payroll period. Also includes
individual and group employee earnings records and
payroll registers showing earnings and deductions for
each pay period.

See also TIME SHEETS, CARDS, AND ATTENDANCE
RECORDS, page 28, item 44.

necessary for retirement or similar benefits verification.

b) Destroy in office remaining records after 3 years.*

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
29. LOAN RECORDS Destroy in office 5 years after satisfaction or cancellation of
Records concerning loans received by the agency. loan.*
Includes documentation of intent to proceed, loan
agreements, promissory notes, letters of credit,
statements, notices of principal and interest due, and
other related records.
30. LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION FINANCIAL Destroy in office after 3 years.* Authority:
STATEMENTS G.S.§159-33
31. LONGEVITY PAY Destroy in office after 3 years.*
32. PAYMENT CARD DATA Destroy in office after processed.* Confidentiality:
. L G.S. §132-1.2(2)
i Records created in association with payment card G.5. § 132-1.10(b)(5)
g transactions entered by third parties for the purchase - '
of goods or services from the agency.
33. PAYROLL AND EARNINGS RECORDS a) Destroy in office 30 years from date of separation records | Authority:

29 CFR 516.30(a)

Confidentiality:

G.S. §132-1.10

G.S. § 115C Art. 21A
G.S. § 122C-158
G.S. § 130A-45.9
G.S. § 153A-98

G.S. § 160-168

G.S. § 161E-257.2
G.S. § 162A-6.1

Retention:
29 CFR 516.5(a)
29 CFR 1627.3(a)

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

25




H_EEE
uE =
T

| LIS}

ErEEN

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
34, PAYROLL DEDUCTION RECORDS a) Destroy in office tax withholding forms 4 years after Confidentiality:
A Records used to start, modify, or stop all voluntary or termination of deduction.* 22 g EzgjrstéﬂA
t re.quired .deductions from payroll. IncIuFIes tax b) Destroy in office authorizations for deductions for G:SZ § 130A-45.9
W'tthOI‘f“ng (NC-4, W-4), savings plans, insurance, retirement contributions, bank payments, savings plans, G.S. § 153A-98
association dues, orders of garnishment, etc. Used as insurance, and dues 2 years after termination of G.S. § 160-168
proof the employee approved of the deduction(s). deduction. G.S‘ § 161E-257.2
c) Destroy in office remaining records 3 years after G.S.§162A-6.1
termination of deduction.*
Retention:
IRS Publication 15
29 CFR 516.6(c)(1)
35. POWELL BILL RECORDS Destroy in office after 3 years.
Records include certified statements, expenditures
reports, information sheets, financial statements
submitted to the North Carolina Department of
Transportation, and all other related records.
36. PURCHASE ORDERS Destroy in office after 3 years.*
Records, forms, packing slips, and attached documents | potention Note: Packing slips may be destroyed upon
concerning purchased supplies, equipment, and verification of items received if they are not the only record of
Services. the purchase of the item.
See also GRANTS: FINANCIAL, page 24, item 27.
37. QUALIFIED PRODUCTS LISTS (QPL) Destroy in office 3 years after superseded or obsolete.*
Records identifying products approved for purchase by
the agency.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

26




u_Em
om

| |
B8 NC DEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
38. REQUISITIONS Destroy in office after 1 year.*
Requests for payment or to acquire goods or services.
See also INVENTORIES, page 9, item 36.
39. SCHOLARSHIP RECORDS a) Destroy in office after 3 years records documenting the
Records concerning scholarships awarded by the awarding of scholarships.
agency. Includes f:\pplic'ations, award letters, b) Destroy in office 1 year after notification of applicant
conditions and stipulations, agreements and contracts, records concerning applications that are denied by the
disbursement statements, progress reports, and other agency or awards that are declined by the recipient.
related records.
40. SHIFT PREMIUM PAY Destroy in office after 3 years.*
Authorizations and other related records concerning
employees receiving shift premium pay.
41. STATEMENTS OF BACK PAY Destroy in office 3 years after payment.*
Forms used to determine the gross pay an employee
would have earned during a specified period for back
pay in a grievance decision, settlement agreement, or
other order.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

27




o _mEm
| el

]

EEEEE

u mEE

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
42, TAX FORMS Destroy in office 4 years after submitted to taxpayer and/or Confidentiality:
A . . IRS. * G.S. §132-1.10
'-'-- Tax information returns generated by the agency (e.g., : G.S. § 115C Art. 21A
1098, 1099, W-2, W-3) to be reported to the Internal G.S. 5 122(:_152';
s:;/i:aunesjcetri\c/:rc]e and furnished to the other party to G.S. § 130A-45.9
’ G.S. § 153A-98
G.S. § 160-168
G.S. § 161E-257.2
G.S. § 162A-6.1
Retention:
IRS Publication 15
43, TAX RETURNS Destroy in office 6 years after filed.*
Tax returns filed by the agency.
4a4. TIME SHEETS, CARDS, AND ATTENDANCE RECORDS Destroy in office after 2 years.* Retention:
. 29 CFR 516.6(a)(1)
Records documenting the work hours and attendance
of employees.
See also PAYROLL AND EARNINGS RECORDS, page 25,
item 33.
45, TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTS Destroy in office after 3 years.*
Includes requests and authorizations for
reimbursement for travel and related expenses.
See also GRANTS: FINANCIAL, page 24, item 27, and
TRAVEL REQUESTS, page 17, item 64.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

28




H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
46. VENDORS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.
A Files maintained on specific vendors authorized or
r— debarred from doing business with the agency.
Includes name and address, correspondence (including
e-mail), and other related records.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

29



H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

GIS databases.

STANDARD 3: GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) RECORDS
Official records received and created by agency geographic information system programs. See G.S. § 132-10 for information about providing public access to

STANDARD 3: GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) RECORDS

DOCUMENTATION (METADATA)

Records created during development or modification
of an automated system which are necessary to
access, retrieve, manipulate, and interpret data in that
system; and records that explain the meaning,
purpose, structure, local relationships, and origin of
the data elements. Includes data element
dictionaries, file layout, codebooks and tables, and
definition files.

system data has been transferred to a new operating
environment (platform).

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

1. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) CORE Retain in office parcel, boundary, zoning, and orthoimagery

DATA layers (with accompanying data sets) permanently.

Geo-referenced da’Fa anq metadata'to facilit?te the Retention Note: Other datasets should be kept according to

managemeryt, manlpulat!on, anaIYS|s, modeling, standards and procedures set by the North Carolina Geographic

representation, z?nd spatlall analysis of complex Information Coordinating Council (http://www.ncgicc.com/).

problems regarding planning and management of See also GEOSPATIAL RECORDS, page 80.

resources.
2. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) DATA Destroy in office when the system is discontinued or when

3. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) INTERNAL
STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES

Includes requirements that are intended to make
hardware, software, and data compatible and that
cover data capture, accuracy, sources, base categories,
output, and data element dictionaries.

Retain in office permanently.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

30



http://www.ncgicc.com/

o _mEm
| el

]

EEEEE

u mEE

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 3: GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
4, GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) Destroy in office after 1 year.
MONITORING RECORDS
Includes system security, quality assurance,
transaction tracking, and other related activity
monitoring records.
5. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) Destroy in office when the system is discontinued or when
OPERATIONAL RECORDS system data has been transferred to a new operating
Includes user guides, system flowcharts, job or environment (platform).
workflow records, system specifications, and similar
documentation.
6. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) PROJECT a) Retain in office GIS datasets and accompanying
RECORDS documentation (metadata) with historical and/or legal
value permanently.
b) Destroy in office remaining items when reference value
ends.f
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

31




H_EEE
l= = NC DEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 3: GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) RECORDS
ITEM #

RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

7. LAYERS: ADDRESS POINTS Paper: Retain in office permanently.

GIS dataset: Create a snapshot of dataset annually. To
See also GEOSPATIAL RECORDS, page 80. maintain permanently,

Either: Transfer snapshot to NCOneMap according to
established procedures, complying with standards and
procedures adopted by the North Carolina Geographic
Information Coordinating Council.

Or: If retained in office, your agency must comply with
standards (for metadata, file naming, data sharing, and
long term preservation) and procedures adopted by the
North Carolina Geographic Information Coordinating
Council.

8. LAYERS: CORPORATE LIMITS Paper: Retain in office permanently.

GIS dataset: Create a snapshot of dataset annually. To maintain
See also GEOSPATIAL RECORDS, page 80. permanently,

Either: Transfer snapshot to NCOneMap according to
established procedures, complying with standards and
procedures adopted by the North Carolina Geographic
Information Coordinating Council.

Or: If retained in office, your agency must comply with
standards (for metadata, file naming, data sharing, and
long term preservation) and procedures adopted by the
North Carolina Geographic Information Coordinating
Council.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

32


http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/

H_EEE
l= = NC DEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 3: GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) RECORDS
ITEM #

RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

9. LAYERS: EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTIONS Paper: Retain in office permanently.

GIS dataset: Create a snapshot of dataset annually. To
See also GEOSPATIAL RECORDS, page 80. maintain permanently,

Either: Transfer snapshot to NCOneMap according to
established procedures, complying with standards and
procedures adopted by the North Carolina Geographic
Information Coordinating Council.

Or: If retained in office, your agency must comply with
standards (for metadata, file naming, data sharing, and
long term preservation) and procedures adopted by the
North Carolina Geographic Information Coordinating
Council.

10. LAYERS: ORTHOIMAGERY Create a snapshot of dataset when created. To maintain
permanently,

See also GEOSPATIAL RECORDS, page 80. Either: Transfer snapshot to NCOneMap according to
established procedures, complying with standards and
procedures adopted by the North Carolina Geographic
Information Coordinating Council.

Or: If retained in office, your agency must comply with
standards (for metadata, file naming, data sharing, and
long term preservation) and procedures adopted by the
North Carolina Geographic Information Coordinating
Council.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

33


http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/

H_EEE
l= = NC DEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 3: GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) RECORDS
ITEM #

RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

11. LAYERS: STREET CENTERLINE Paper: Retain in office permanently.

GIS dataset: Create a snapshot of dataset annually. To
See also GEOSPATIAL RECORDS, page 80. maintain permanently,

Either: Transfer snapshot to NCOneMap according to
established procedures, complying with standards and
procedures adopted by the North Carolina Geographic
Information Coordinating Council.

Or: If retained in office, your agency must comply with
standards (for metadata, file naming, data sharing, and
long term preservation) and procedures adopted by the
North Carolina Geographic Information Coordinating
Council.

12. MAPPING PROJECT RECORDS Paper: Retain in office permanently.
Includes contract maps and all deliverable products for
aerial photography, orthophotography, cartographic,
cadastral, and digital mapping projects.

GIS dataset: Create a snapshot of dataset annually. To
maintain permanently,

Either: Transfer snapshot to NCOneMap according to
established procedures, complying with standards and
procedures adopted by the North Carolina Geographic
Information Coordinating Council.

See also GEOSPATIAL RECORDS, page 80.

Or: If retained in office, your agency must comply with
standards (for metadata, file naming, data sharing, and
long term preservation) and procedures adopted by the
North Carolina Geographic Information Coordinating
Council.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

34


http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/

H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 3: GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) RECORDS

Includes park boundaries, facilities, landscaping,
topography, and other pertinent information. Also
includes maps and drawings stored and generated by
Geographic Information System (GIS) and computer-
aided design (CAD) systems.

See also GEOSPATIAL RECORDS, page 80.

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
13. MAPS: PARCEL Paper: Destroy in office upon State Archives approval.
Maps, including cadastral maps, and surveys of GIS dataset: Create a snapshot of dataset quarterly. To
boundaries and measurements of each parcel, and maintain permanently,
information about encroachments, right-of-ways, and
structures. Either: Transfer snapshot to NCOneMap according to
established procedures, complying with standards and
procedures adopted by the North Carolina Geographic
See also GEOSPATIAL RECORDS, page 80, and Information Coordinating Council.
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT RECORDS, page 14, item
54. Or: If retained in office, your agency must comply with
standards (for metadata, file naming, data sharing, and
long term preservation) and procedures adopted by the
North Carolina Geographic Information Coordinating
Council.
14. MAPS: PARKS Paper: Retain in office permanently.

GIS dataset: Create a snapshot of dataset annually. To maintain
permanently,

Either: Transfer snapshot to NCOneMap according to
established procedures, complying with standards and
procedures adopted by the North Carolina Geographic
Information Coordinating Council.

Or: If retained in office permanently, your agency must
comply with standards (for metadata, file naming, data
sharing, and long term preservation) and procedures
adopted by the North Carolina Geographic Information
Coordinating Council.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

35



http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/
http://www.ncgicc.com/

H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 3: GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) RECORDS

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

15. MAPS: ALL OTHER a) Retain in office maps, including GIS datasets and
accompanying documentation (metadata), with historical

Includes field maps, soil, topographic, sales,
and/or legal value permanently.

subdivision plats, right-of-way, sectional, highway, etc.
b) Destroy in office remaining items when reference value
ends.T

Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

36



H_EEE
BB NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 4: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) RECORDS

Information technology encompasses all activities undertaken by agency to design, develop, and operate electronic information systems. This section covers
records for which Information Technology personnel are responsible, including administrative records and those used to process data and monitor and control
operations.

Note: Administration, use, and retention of records concerning computer and information security should comply with applicable provisions of G.S. § 132-6.1 on
the confidentiality of records regarding “hardware or software security, passwords, or security standards, procedures, processes, configurations, software, and
codes.” (G.S. § 132-6.1 (c))

STANDARD 4: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RECORDS

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

1. AUDITS: IT SYSTEMS a) Destroy in office after 1 year fixity check documentation. Confidentiality:

- . . . G.S.§132-6.1(c)
a) Records documenting user actions affecting the b) Destroy in office remaining records after disposition of

t contents of monitored systems. Also includes fixity record.*
checks and other periodic tests of data validity.

2. COMPUTER AND NETWORK USAGE RECORDS Destroy in office after 1 year.

Records documenting usage of electronic devices and
networks. Includes login files, system usage files,
individual program usage files, and records of use of
the Internet by employees.

3. DATA DOCUMENTATION RECORDS Destroy in office 3 years after system is discontinued and/or

Records concerning data in automated systems. replaced.
Includes data element dictionary, file layout, code
book or table, entity relationships tables, and other
records related to the structure, management, and
organization of data.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

37



H_EEE
BB NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 4: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RECORDS

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

4, DATA MIGRATION RECORDS Destroy in office 1 year after completion of data migration.

Technical records documenting data migrations.

Note: The data itself is subject to the disposition
instructions indicated for its relevant records series;
these are merely records about migrating said data.

5. DATA WAREHOUSES Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete. Maintain confidentiality
consistent with any

restrictions placed on
the data provider.

Federated data gathered by the agency from other
sources for the purposes of comparison and

distribution.

6. DIGITIZATION AND SCANNING RECORDS Destroy in office 10 days after digitization.
Record_s concerning data e_zntry and imaging Note: The digital surrogate becomes the record copy and must
operations. Includes quality control records. be retained according to the disposition instructions for that

record type.

See Request for Disposal of Original Records
Duplicated by Electronic Means, page 88.

7. ELECTRONIC RECORDS POLICIES AND PROCEDURES Destroy in office 3 years after superseded or obsolete. Confidentiality:
G.S. § 132-1.7(b)

a) Includes procedural manuals as well as an Electronic G.5. §132-6.1(c)

Y Records and Imaging Policy and a Security Backup
Policy.

8. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ASSISTANCE RECORDS Destroy in office 1 year after work is completed.

Records documenting troubleshooting and problem-
solving assistance provided by agency information
systems personnel to users of the systems. Includes
help desk assistance requests, resolution records, and
related documentation.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

38



H_EEE
BB NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 4: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
9. NETWORK AND SYSTEM SECURITY RECORDS a) Destroy in office finalized cyber incident reports 5 years Confidentiality:
a Records documenting the security of network and after resolution. G.5.§132:6.1(c)
t L .
system. Includes rec.ords concerning firewalls, anti- b) Destroy in office after 2 years records documenting
virus programs, and intruder scanning logs. incidents involving unauthorized attempted entry or
probes on data processing systems, IT systems,
telecommunications networks, and electronic security
systems.
c) Destroy in office after 1 year records concerning firewalls,
anti-virus programs, and other related records.
10. NETWORK DIAGRAMS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete. Confidentiality:
M Records documenting the logical and physical G.5.§132:6.1(c)
8 relationships of network components for purposes of
organization, deployment, troubleshooting,
monitoring of access, and management of day-to-day
operations.
11. PROJECT DOCUMENTATION a) Retain in office permanently records with historical value.
Records created to design, develop, control, or b) Destroy in office remaining records 3 years after
monitor a specific project or group of IT projects. completion of project.
Includes statements of work, assessments,
maintenance agreements, and testing records.
See also PROJECTS, page 14, item 53.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

39




H_EEE
uE =
T

| LIS}

ErEEN

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 4: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RECORDS

ITEM #

RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS

CITATION

12,

SOFTWARE LICENSE AND COPYRIGHT PROVISIONS Destroy in office 1 year after software is superseded or
RECORDS obsolete.

Records documenting compliance with agency
software license and copyright provisions. Includes
software licenses, correspondence (including e-mail),
and related documentation.

13.

SYSTEM ACCESS RECORDS Destroy in office 1 year after superseded or obsolete.

Records documenting access requests and
authorizations, system access logs, and other related
records.

14.

SYSTEM DOCUMENTATION RECORDS Destroy in office 3 years after superseded or obsolete.

Records documenting operating systems, application
programs, structure and form of datasets, system
structure, and system-to-system communication.
Includes system overviews, dataset inventories, server
name, IP address, purpose of the system, vendor-
supplied documentation, installed software, and
current source code.

Confidentiality:
G.S. §132-1.1(g)
G.S. § 132-6.1(c)

15.

SYSTEM MAINTENANCE RECORDS: HARDWARE a) Destroy in office records documenting routine inspections
REPAIR OR SERVICE and maintenance of equipment after 1 year.

Records documenting inspections, maintenance, and b) Destroy records documenting all other equipment

repairs of agency computer systems that are owned or maintenance and repairs upon the final disposition of the
leased. Includes computer equipment inventories and equipment.

service records.

See also EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE MAINTENANCE,
REPAIR, AND INSPECTION RECORDS, page 6, item 24.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

40




i NC DEPARTMENT OF
m NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 4: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
16. SYSTEM MAINTENANCE RECORDS: RECORDS Destroy in office in accordance with your office’s established,
BACKUPS regular backup plan and procedures.
Records documenting regular or essentlél system Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
backups. Includes backup tape inventories, relevant
correspondence (including e-mail), and related
documentation.
See Also: Security Backup Files as Public Records in
North Carolina: Guidelines for the Recycling,
Destruction, Erasure, and Re-use of Security Backup
Files, available on the State Archives of North Carolina
website.
17. TECHNICAL PROGRAM DOCUMENTATION Destroy in office 1 year after superseded or obsolete.
Records concerning program code, program
flowcharts, program maintenance logs, systems
change notices, and other related records that
document modifications to computer programs.
18. VOICE OVER INTERNET PROTOCOL (VolP) RECORDS a) Destroy in office records concerning line registration when
Records concerning line registrations, calls logs, and superseded or obsolete.
voicemail records. b) Destroy in office call logs after 1 year.
c) Destroy in office voicemail records after 30 days.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

41



https://archives.ncdcr.gov/documents/security-backup-files-public-records-north-carolina
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/documents/security-backup-files-public-records-north-carolina
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/documents/security-backup-files-public-records-north-carolina
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/documents/security-backup-files-public-records-north-carolina

H_EEE
BB NCDEPARTMENT OF

mmsmE NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES
S EEN

ITEM #

STANDARD 4: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RECORDS

RECORDS SERIES TITLE

DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS

CITATION

19.

WEB MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS RECORDS:
STRUCTURE

Site maps that show the directory structure into which
content pages are organized, and commercial, off-the-
shelf software configuration or content management
system files used to operate the site and establish its
look and feel. Includes server environment
configuration specifications.

See also WEBSITE (ELECTRONIC), page 70, item 15.

Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

42




o _mEm
| el

]
EEEEE
u mEE

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 5: LEGAL RECORDS
Official documentation created or accumulated to substantiate the rights, obligations, or interests of the agency or their individual employees or clients.
Please note the confidentiality that G.S. § 132-1.1(a) confers to communications by legal counsel expires three years after receipt of such communication.
STANDARD 5: LEGAL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION a) Retain in office permanently if record provides sole Authority:
Proof of publication provided by newspapers evidence of publication. G.S. §1-600
re'gard'ln.g pybllcatlon of ordlna'nceS, pl.jbhc hearings, b) Destroy in office remaining records after 3 years.*
bid solicitations, payment of bills, public sales, etc.
See also NOTICES OF PUBLIC MEETINGS, page 12, item
45,
2. ANNEXATION RECORDS Retain in office permanently.
Records concerning annexation of property into the
city. Includes petitions, reports, correspondence, Retention Note: Annexation maps and ordinances must be filed
including email, maps, ordinances, and public with the County Register of Deeds office. G.S. §160A-29,
hearings. G.S. §160A-58.61 and G.S. §160A-58.90.
3. AUTHENTICATIONS Retain in office permanently.
Certificates of authentication issued by the agency.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

43




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 5: LEGAL RECORDS

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
4. CIVIL RIGHTS CASE RECORDS Destroy in office 1 year after final disposition of the charge or Retention:
Records concerning discrimination complaints by the action.* ;g EEE 1:8;;1
employees or former employees and requests for Retention Note: 29 CFR 1602.14 defines final disposition of the .
reasonablle accommodatl_on. Includes equal charge or the action as “the date of expiration of the statutory
opportunity (EO) complaints. period within which the aggrieved person may bring an action
in a U.S. District Court or, where an action is brought against an
See also PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY), page employer either by the aggrieved person, the Commission, or by
61, item 29. the Attorney General, the date on which such litigation is
terminated.”
5. CIVIL RIGHTS RECORDS Destroy in office 3 years after superseded or obsolete. Authority:

29 CFR 1602.1
29 CFR 1602.7
29 CFR 1608.4

Records concerning documentation of personnel
policies and procedures to comply with the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA), the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the Equal Pay
Act, the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act
(GINA), Section 504 of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act, and
the 1964 Civil Rights Act. Includes reports required by
the Equal Employment Opportunity (EEQ) Commission
and affirmative action planss.

Retention:
29 CFR 1602.30
29 CFR 1602.32

See also CITIZEN COMMENTS, COMPLAINTS,
PETITIONS, AND SERVICE REQUESTS, page 4, item 17,
CIVIL RIGHTS CASE RECORDS, page 44, item 4, and
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (PERSONNEL), page 62,
item 31.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

44



H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

ITEM #

STANDARD 5: LEGAL RECORDS

RECORDS SERIES TITLE

DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS

CITATION

CONDEMNATION RECORDS

Settled and pending condemnation cases.

See also ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, page 18, item 1 for
disposition of financial records.

Retain in office permanently.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND CONFLICT OF
COMMITMENT DISCLOSURE STATEMENTS

Completed by the elected agency officials as well as
designated staff members in order to disclose an
official’s status or ownership interests.

Destroy in office 1 year after completion of term or separation.

CONTRACTS, LEASES, AND AGREEMENTS

Contracts and agreements for construction,
equipment, property, supplies, special programs, and
projects. Includes franchise agreements, hold
harmless agreements, good faith effort
documentation, contractor compliance monitoring,
leases, and memoranda of understanding.

See also SOFTWARE LICENSE AND COPYRIGHT
PROVISIONS RECORDS, page 40, item 12.

a) Retain in office contracts and agreements with historical
value permanently.

b) Destroy in office sealed contract records 10 years after
expiration of contract.*

c) Destroy in office capital improvement contracts and
business associate agreements 6 years after completion,
termination, or expiration.*

d) Destroy in office records documenting restrictions and
compliance with license and copyright provisions for
products and services purchased by the agency 1 year after
superseded or obsolete.*

e) Destroy in office all other contracts and agreements 3
years after completion, termination, or expiration.*

Retention:

G.S. §1-47(2)
G.S. § 1-50(a)(5)
45 CFR 164.316
G.S. §1-52

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

45




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 5: LEGAL RECORDS

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

9. DECLARATORY RULINGS Retain in office permanently.

Records concerning declaratory rulings issued by the
agency to interpret statutes or rules as applied to a
specified set of facts.

10. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY RECORDS Destroy in office 1 year after superseded or obsolete.

Records documenting delegations of power to
authorize agency business. Includes signature
authorities and powers of attorney.

11. EASEMENTS AND RIGHT-OF-WAY AGREEMENTS Destroy in office 10 years after expiration of agreement.
Granted to the agency.

See also ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, page 18, item 1 for
disposition of financial records.

12. ENCROACHMENTS a) Retain in office permanently records concerning
Records concerning agreements granted by or to the agreements granted by outside entities to the agency.
agency. A'|5° includes maps or drawings detailing b) Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete records
construction plans attached to agreements. concerning agreements granted to utilities, businesses,
and private citizens to encroach upon agency property.
13. LAND OWNERSHIP RECORDS Destroy in office 1 year after agency relinquishes ownership of
Includes deeds and titles. land.*
14. LEGAL CORRESPONDENCE Destroy in office after 5 years. Confidentiality:

- . . . G.S. §132-1.1(a)
A\ Correspondence (including e-mail) and related records | For information on handling e-mail, see ELECTRONIC RECORDS,
p concerning legal matters not related to specific legal page 78.

cases or official opinions.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

46



H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 5: LEGAL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
15. LEGAL OPINIONS Retain in office permanently.
Formal legal opinions written by counsel in response
to requests concerning the governance and
administration of the agency.
16. LEGAL REVIEW RECORDS a)  Retain in office records with historical value permanently. | Confidentiality:
. G.S. §132-1.1(a)
Includes legal reviews of by-laws and charges to b) Destroy in office remaining records after expiration of
'-"'i? boards and commissions, conflicts of interest, and all relevant statute of limitations.
other agency matters as requested.
See also LEGAL OPINIONS, page 47, item 15.
17. LITIGATION CASE RECORDS a) Retain in office cases having precedential or historical Confidentiality:
Civil suits to which the agency is a party. Includes value permanently. 22 g 1;;:1‘;(3)
M affidavits, agreements, appeals, bills, briefs, citations, | p)  pestroy in office adjudicated cases 6 years after final o .
t commitments, complaints, discharges, motions, disposition.
notices, pleas, releases, statements, testimony,
verdicts. waivers. warrants. and writs. c) Destroy in office non-adjudicated cases (out-of-court
claims) 6 years after final disposition or expiration of
relevant statute of limitations.
18. OATHS OF OFFICE Transfer official copy of oath of office to the Clerk to the Board. | Authority:
G.S. § 153A-26
Retention Note: The Clerk to the Board should present a copy of
See also GOVERNING AND ADVISORY BODY MEMBER | the oaths of elected officials to the Clerk of Superior Court for Retention:
FILES, page 7, item 29. recording. The Clerk to the Board maintains the original oaths. G.S. § 7A-103(2)

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

47




H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 5: LEGAL RECORDS

Records concerning agency efforts to provide
reasonable accommodations to the general public
under Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act,
Housing and Urban Development Act, 1973
Rehabilitation Act, and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964. Includes constituent requests, survey of
agency buildings to determine accessibility to the
physically handicapped, proposals for implementation,
and resolutions.

See also CITIZEN COMMENTS, COMPLAINTS,
PETITIONS, AND SERVICE REQUESTS, page 4, item 17,
and CIVIL RIGHTS CASE RECORDS, page 44, item 4.

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

19. PERMISSIONS a) Retain in office permanently records conferring perpetual

Records conferring legal permission. Includes legal permission as well as records documenting

copyright permission requests and requests for copyrights, patents, and trademarks held by the agency.

permission to publish intellectual property or holdings b)  Destroy in office 3 years after expiration records

of the agency. Also includes copyrights, patents, and concerning one-time copyright permissions granted by

trademarks held by the agency. the agency.
20. PRE-TRIAL RELEASE PROGRAM RECORDS Destroy in office 3 years after trial.

Records documenting supervision for defendants who

do not pose a risk to the community as they await

trial.
21. REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS Destroy in office after 2 years.* Authority:

42 USC 12132

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

48




H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 5: LEGAL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

22, RELEASE FORMS Destroy in office 5 years after termination of release/waiver.

Records documenting consent and waiving the

individual’s right to hold the agency responsible for

injuries or damages occurring while voluntarily

participating in events or activities.
23. VEHICLE TITLES Dispose of in accordance with Division of Motor Vehicles Authority:

Titles of agency owned vehicles. procedures for title transfer upon disposition of vehicle. G.5.§20-72

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

49



o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS

personnel records.

Official records and materials created and accumulated incidental to the employment, qualifications, training, and pay status of agency employees. Comply
with applicable provisions of G.S. § 115C Article 21A (LEAs), G.S. § 122C-158 (area authorities), G.S. § 130A-45.9 (public health authorities), G.S. § 153A-98
(county), G.S. § 160A-168 (municipal), G.S. § 161E-257.2 (public hospitals), and G.S. § 162A-6.1 (water and sewer authorities) regarding confidentiality of

ITEM #

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS

RECORDS SERIES TITLE

DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS

CITATION

ABOLISHED POSITIONS

Destroy in office after 1 year.

ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATIONS
Records concerning the investigation of conduct
problems among agency personnel.

See also DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, page 54, item 12.

a)

b)

c)

Destroy in office after 3 years records concerning
complaints against agency personnel that are resolved
without an internal investigation.

Destroy in office after 5 years records concerning
complaints lodged against agency personnel that are
exonerated. Destroy in office 5 years after final disposition
or expiration of relevant statute of limitations complaints
lodged against agency personnel that are settled out-of-
court.

Transfer investigation reports, disciplinary actions, and
other related internal affairs case records to PERSONNEL
RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY), page 61, item 29.

Confidentiality:

G.S. § 115C Art. 21A
G.S. § 122C-158
G.S. § 130A-45.9
G.S. § 153A-98

G.S. § 160-168

G.S. § 161E-257.2
G.S. § 162A-6.1

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

50




H_EEE
uE =
T

| LIS}

ErEEN

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
3. APPLICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT a) Transfer applications, resumes, transcripts, and similar Confidentiality:
i i ; records as applicable to PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL | G-S- § 115CArt. 21A
A Records submitted by job applicants for vacant PRI ( G.S. § 122C-158
' " ; COPY), page 61, item 29.
positions or by current employees for promotion, G.S. § 130A-45.9
transfer, or training opportunities. Includes b) Destroy in office after 2 years unsolicited application G.S. § 153A-98.
applications, transcripts, resumes, letters of reference, materials from individuals hired. G.S. § 160-168
and other related records. e
c) Destroy in office records concerning individuals not hired 2 G.S. §161E-257.2
years after date of receipt, if no charge of discrimination G.S.§162A-6.1
has been filed. If charge has been filed, destroy in office 1 .
year after resolution of charge.* Retention:
29 CFR 1602.31
d) Destroy in office 2 years after receipt unsolicited
applications/resumes and those received after posted
closing dates.
4, APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM RECORDS Destroy in office 5 years after the making of the record or the Authority:
Records concerning registered apprenticeship personnel action involved, whichever occurs later. 29 CFR 30.4(a)
. . 29 CFR 1602.20
programs. Includes applications and selection
materials as well as aggregated data. Also includes Retention:
apprenticeship affirmative action plans. ’
29 CFR 30.12(d)
29 CFR 1602.21

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

51




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
5. APTITUDE AND SKILLS TESTING RECORDS Destroy in office after 2 years. Confidentiality:
M Records concerning aptitude and skills tests required 22 g EggﬁrstéZIA
r of job applicants or of current employees to qualify for G.S. § 130A-45.9
promotion or transfer. Includes civil service e ’
examinations G.5.§153A-98
' G.S. § 160-168
G.S. § 161E-257.2
See also EMPLOYMENT SELECTION RECORDS, page G.S. § 162A-6.1
56, item 17.
Retention:
29 CFR 1602.31
29 CFR 1627.3(b)(1)(iv)
6. ASBESTOS TRAINING a) Destroy in office employee-specific records 1 year after Retention:
Records concerning training programs about the separation. 2913?3 1001(m)(4)
proper management of asbestos. b) Destroy in office remaining records when superseded or .
obsolete.
See also BLOODBORNE PATHOGEN TRAINING, page
53, item 8, and HAZARDOUS MATERIALS TRAINING
RECORDS, page 58, item 21.
7. BENEFITS RECORDS a) Destroy in office approved claims forms after 2 years.* Retention:
L . N 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2)
Records concerning life, health, accident, and disability b) Destroy in office rejected requests 6 months after decision.
insurance plans as well as seniority and merit systems.
Includes records concerning systems in which c) Destroy in office notifications to employees or dependents
employees can select fringe benefits from a cafeteria informing them of their rights to continue insurance
plan, including flexible spending plans. File also coverage after termination or during disability or family
includes notifications, election and claim forms, leave 3 years after employee returns or eligibility expires.
rejection letters, and other records related to COBRA | ) pestroy in office remaining records 1 year after plan is
(Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act). terminated.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

52




H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
8. BLOODBORNE PATHOGEN TRAINING Destroy in office after 3 years. Retention:
Includes records showing date of training, sessions 29 CFR
contents or summaries of sessions, names of 1910.1030(h)(2)(ii
employees attending, and names and qualifications of
instructors.
See also ASBESTOS TRAINING, page 52, item 6, and
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS TRAINING RECORDS, page
58, item 21.
9. CERTIFICATION AND QUALIFICATION RECORDS a) Destroy in office certificates 5 years after date of Confidentiality:
ff;‘-;': Records concerning certification or qualification as separation. 22 g E;Ejr;g 21A
requireq for employment, continued employment, or b) Destroy in office instructional materials, assessments, and G:SZ § 130A-45.9
promotion. other related records when superseded or obsolete. G.S. § 153A-98
G.S. § 160-168
See also APPLICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT, page 51, G.S. § 161E-257.2
item 3. G.S. § 162A-6.1
Retention:
29 CFR 1602.31
10. DIRECTORIES, ROSTERS, OR INDICES Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.
Includes records listing employees, their job titles,
work locations, phone numbers, e-mail addresses, and
similar information.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

53




H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

11. DISABILITY SALARY CONTINUATION CLAIMS a) Transfer original forms to Local Government Employees’

Forms used by disabled employees to apply for salary Retirement Syst'em (LGERS) or Teachers’ and S'tate
continuation benefits. Also include short-term Employees’ Retirement System (TSERS) for action when
disability claims forms and other related records. received.

b) Destroy in office remaining records after 3 years.

12. DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS a) Transfer records as applicable to PERSONNEL RECORDS Authority:
Correspondence (including e-mail) and other records (OFFICIAL COPY), page 61, item 29. 22 g 1;;2_’?;21/_\
concerning disciplinary actions tak_en against . _ b) Destroy in office all remaining records 2 years after G:SZ § 130A-45.9
employees by personnel or supervisory staff, including resolution of all actions. G.S. § 153A-98
records documenting terminations. Includes records e

. . S G.S. § 160-168
created by civil service boards when considering, or
reconsidering on appeal, an adverse action against an G.5.§ 161E-257.2
§ on appeal, & G.S. § 162A-6.1
employee.
Retention:
29 CFR 1602.31
Subject to the public
information provision
delineated in the above
authorities.

13. DUAL EMPLOYMENT a) Destroy in office approved requests and related records 1
Records concerning employees’ requests and year after employee terminates additional employment.
authorizations to accept employment with another b) Destroy in office denied requests and related records after
local government agency. 6 months.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

54




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
14, EDUCATIONAL LEAVE AND REIMBURSEMENT a) Transfer records documenting approved leave requests to | Confidentiality:
A Includes records requesting educational leave and PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY), page 61, item 29. 22 g E;E-/i;tézm
t tuition assistance, reimbursements, and other related b) Destroy in office records concerning denied requests 6 G:S: § 130A-45.9
records. months after denial.* Destroy in office records concerning | Gs. § 153A-98
ap'proved tuition reimbursements 3 years after G.S. § 160-168
See also LEAVE RECORDS, page 58, item 24. reimbursement.* G.S. § 161E-257.2
G.S. § 162A-6.1
15. ELIGIBILITY RECORDS a) 19 forms have mandatory retention throughout the Confidentiality:
A Includes the 1-9 forms, employment authorization duration of an individual’s employment. After separation, G.S.§ 115CArt. 21A
- documents filed with the U.S. Department of Labor, destroy records in office 3 years from date of hire or 1 year | G-5.§122C-158
petitions filed by the agency, E-Verify documentation, from separation, whichever occurs later. g: g Egﬁ:g:g
and Selective Service Registration compliance forms. b) Destroy in office after 5 years employment authorization G:S: § 160-168
documents filed with the U.S. Department of Labor. G.S.§ 161E-257.2
c) Destroy in office immigrant or nonimmigrant petitions filed G.S.§162A-6.1
by the agency 3 years after employee separation.
Retention:
d) Destroy in office remaining records 1 year after employee 8 USC 1324a(b)(3)
separation.
16. EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS Destroy in office after 3 years. Confidentiality:
. . . G.S. § 115C Art. 21A
M Records documenting assistance and counseling G.S. § 122C-158
r opportunities. Includes requests for information, e
G.S. § 130A-45.9
referrals, forms, releases, correspondence, and other
related records G.5.§153A-98
' G.S.§160-168
G.S. § 161E-257.2
G.S. § 162A-6.1

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

55




H_EEE
l= = NC DEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
17. EMPLOYMENT SELECTION RECORDS a) Destroy in office background and criminal history checks Confidentiality:
A Records concerning the selection of applicants for after 5 years. g: g E;Ejr;g 21A
Y vacant Positions or of C””‘_’”_t employees fc.>r b) Destroy in office remaining records 2 years after hiring G:SZ § 130A-45.9
promotion, transfer, or training opportunities. decision.*
. . . - : G.S. § 153A-98
Includes interview documentation, rosters, eligibility G.S. § 160-168
lists, test ranking sheets, justification statements, e
background and criminal history checks, and similar G.5.§ 161E-257.2
& y ’ G.S. § 162A-6.1
records.
Retention:
See also APPLICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT, page 51, 29 CFR 1602.31
item 3, and APTITUDE AND SKILLS TESTING RECORDS, 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(1)
page 52, item 5.
18. EXIT INTERVIEW RECORDS Destroy in office after 1 year. Confidentiality:
. . G.S. § 115CArt. 21A
M Includes feedback from employees planning to
r separate from the agency G.S.§122C-158
’ G.S. § 130A-45.9
G.S. § 153A-98
G.S. §160-168
G.S. § 161E-257.2
G.S. § 162A-6.1

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

56




o _mEm
| el

]
EEEEE
u mEE

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
19. FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) RECORDS Destroy in office 3 years after leave ends.* Authority:
A ] . 29 CFR 825.110
- Records concerning leave taken, premium payments,
employer notice, medical examinations considered in
connection with personnel action, disputes with Confidentiality:
employees over FMLA, and other related records. G.S. § 115C Art. 21A
G.S. §122C-158
G.S. § 130A-45.9
See also LEAVE RECORDS, page 58, item 24. G.S. § 153A-98
G.S. § 160-168
G.S. § 161E-257.2
G.S. § 162A-6.1
Retention:
29 CFR 825.500(b)
20. GRIEVANCES Destroy in office after 2 years.* Confidentiality:
L . . N G.S. § 115C Art. 21A
M Includes initial complaint by employee, investigation,
g action, summary, and disposition. G.5.§122C-158
! ! G.S. § 130A-45.9
G.S. § 153A-98
See also DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, page 54, item 12, G.S. § 160-168
and PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY), page 61, G.S. § 161E-257.2
item 29. G.S. § 162A-6.1

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

57




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

21. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS TRAINING RECORDS Destroy in office after 5 years. Authority:
Includes records showing date of training, sessions, 291(;2 120(p)(8)1iii)
contents or summaries of sessions, names of 10A NC.AC 15p
employees attending, and names and qualifications of
instructors.
See also ASBESTOS TRAINING, page 52, item 6, and
BLOODBORNE PATHOGEN TRAINING, page 53, item 8.

22, INTERNSHIP PROGRAM Destroy in office after 2 years.
Records concerning interns and students who work for
the agency.

23. LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING Retain in office permanently.
Records concerning internal training for law
enforcement personnel.

24, LEAVE RECORDS a) Destroy in office denied requests after 6 months. Confidentiality:

. . . G.S. § 115C Art. 21A
a Records concerning employee leave, including b) Destroy in office approved requests 3 years after return of | 55 §122¢-158

requests for and approval of sick, vacation, overtime, employee or termination of employment.* G.S. § 130A-45.9
buy-back, shared, donated, etc. Also includes records G.S‘ 5 153A-98.
documenting leave without pay. G.S. § 160-168
See also EDUCATIONAL LEAVE AND G.S. §161E-257.2
REIMBURSEMENT, page 55, item 14, FAMILY G.S. §162A-6.1
MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) RECORDS, page 57, item
19, and MILITARY LEAVE, page 59, item 26.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

58



H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
25. MEDICAL RECORDS a) Destroy in office exposure records 30 years after date of Authority:
Records concerning asbestos, toxic substances, and exposure.* 29 CFR 1910.1020(e)
" bloo<_:lborne pathogen exposure; medical examirllajcions b) Destroy in office records pertaining to first-aid job-related | confidentiality:
required by state or federal law; and records of injury illness and injury after 5 years. 29 CFR 1630.14(c)(1)
orillness. (Does not include worker’s compensation or ’
health insurance claim records.) c) Provide medical records to employees who have worked 29 CFR
for less than 1 year at time of separation. 1910.1030(h)(1)(iii)
d) Destroy in office after 1 year records concerning physical Retention:
examinations or health certificates. 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(1)(v)
e) Destroy in office remaining records 30 years after 29 CFR 1910.1020(d)
employee separation. 42 USC 12112(d)(3)
Retention Note: Records must be maintained separately from
an employee’s personnel jacket. If part of a worker’s
compensation claim, follow disposition for WORKERS’
COMPENSATION PROGRAM CLAIMS, page 66, item 50.
26. MILITARY LEAVE Destroy in office 3 years after leave ends or employee Authority:
Records concerning military leave, as established by separates from agency.* > CFR 1208
the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA).
See also LEAVE RECORDS, page 58, item 24.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

59




H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
27. PERFORMANCE REVIEWS Destroy in office after 3 years. Confidentiality (applies
e Information used to establish employees’ goals and only to .performance
g rimary tasks. Records used to evaluate each evaluations):
Zm onee’s w.ork erformance G.5.§ 115C Art. 21A
ploy P ' G.S.§122C-158
G.S. § 130A-45.9
See also PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY), page G.S. § 153A-98
61, item 29. G.S. § 160-168
G.S. § 161E-257.2
G.S. § 162A-6.1
28. PERSONNEL ACTION NOTICES Transfer records to PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY), §ubject t? the pu.bllic
Records used to create or change information in the page 61, item 29. qurmatlorT provision
N . delineated in relevant
personnel records of individual employees concerning
. . o General Statutes.
such issues as hiring, termination, transfer, pay grade,
and position or job title.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

60




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
29. PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY) a) Destroy in office after 30 years from date of separation Authority/
Official copy of personnel file maintained on each information needed to document: date and amount of Confidentiality:
permanent and temporary agency employee. Includes each increase or decrease in salary with that agency; date G.S.§115CArt. 21A
","; basic employee information and records and forms and type of each promotion, demotion, transfer, G.5.§122C-158
relating to the selection or non-selection, promotion, suspension, separation, or other change in position G.5. 5§ 130A-45.3
transfer, leave, salary, suspension, and termination of classification with that agency; date and general G.5.§153A-98
employment. description of the reasons for each promotion with that G.5.§160-168
agency; date and type of each dismissal, suspension, or G.S. §161E-257.2
demotion for disciplinary reasons taken by the agency; G.5.§162A-6.1
Note: For agencies responsible for maintaining and, if the disciplinary action was a dismissal, a copy of the
personnel files for criminal justice officers, please written notice of the final decision of the agency setting
consult 12 NCAC 09C .0307 for the mandatory records forth the specific acts or omissions that are the basis of the
of certification that must be housed in the personnel dismissal.
fle b) Destroy in office information necessary to verify benefits
30 years after date of separation.
See also MEDICAL RECORDS, page 59, item 25.
c) Destroy in office remaining records when individual
retention periods are reached as noted in individual items
in the Records Retention and Disposition Schedule.
30. PERSONNEL RECORDS (SUPERVISOR COPY) a) Transfer records as applicable to PERSONNEL RECORDS Confidentiality:
" Person.nel jacket that is often maintained by (OFFICIAL COPY), page 61, item 29. gz g Eig-/-l\r;én/-\
SUpervisors. b) Destroy in office remaining records when reference value G.S. § 130A-45.9
ends. T G.S. § 153A-98
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after G.5.§160-168
G.S. § 161E-257.2
G.S. § 162A-6.1

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

61




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
31. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (PERSONNEL) a) Retain in office internal agency personnel policies and
procedures permanently.
b) Destroy in office remaining records when superseded or
obsolete.
32. POLYGRAPH RECORDS Destroy in office 3 years from the date the test was given, or Confidentiality:
A Includes statements informing employee of the time, from the date the test was requested if no examination was G.S.§ 115C Art. 21A
t place, and reasons for the test; copy of notice sentto | &iven. G.5.§122C-158
L e G.S. § 130A-45.9
examiner identifying employee to be tested; and
. . . G.S. § 153A-98
copies of opinions, reports, or similar records
enerated by the examiner and provided to the G.5. §160-168
i o y P G.S. § 161E-257.2
gency: G.S. § 162A-6.1
Retention:
29 CFR 801.30
33. POSITION CLASSIFICATION, CONTROL, AND HISTORY | a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Records concerning personnel actions and position b) Destroy in office remaining records when superseded or
control, status of each established permanent, obsolete.
temporary full-time, or part-time position, and other
related topics. Also includes listings providing
classification, titles, and position numbers.
See also POSITION DESCRIPTIONS, page 62, item 34.
34, POSITION DESCRIPTIONS Destroy in office 2 years after superseded. Retention:
. . S . 29 CFR 1620.32
Includes information on job title, grade, duties, agency
assigned, and responsibilities.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

62




H_EEE
uE =
T

| LIS}

ErEEN

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

35. POSITION EVALUATIONS Destroy in office after 1 year.

Forms used to evaluate the primary purpose of a
position.

36. RECRUITMENT RECORDS Destroy in office 1 year from date of record. Retention:

. . . 29 CFR 1627.3(b)
Includes ads and notices of overtime, promotion, and
training. Also includes employment listings.

37. RETIREMENT RECORDS a) Destroy in office records documenting deferred Retention:
Includes plans and related records outlining the terms compensation 3 years after payment.* 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2)
of employe_e pension and other deferred b) Destroy in office descriptive information about retirements
compensation plans. plans 1 year after plan is terminated.

c) Destroy in office records concerning employer-sponsored
retirement plans 7 years after payment.*

d) Transfer Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement
System (LGERS) forms to Department of State Treasurer.

e) Transfer applicable records to PERSONNEL RECORDS
(OFFICIAL COPY), page 61, item 29.

38. SEASONAL AND CONTRACT WORKER RECORDS Destroy in office 5 years after date of separation. Confidentiality:

. G.S. § 115CArt. 21A
M Records concerning seasonal or contractual
N . . . G.S. §122C-158
employees who are not provided with or eligible for G.S. § 130A-45.9
benefits. .S. -45,
enetits G.S. § 153A-98
G.S. § 160-168
G.S. § 161E-257.2
G.S. § 162A-6.1

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

63




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

39. SECONDARY EMPLOYMENT a) Destroy in office approved requests and related records 1
Records concerning employees’ requests and year after employee terminates outside employment.
authorizations to accept employment with a private b) Destroy in office denied requests and related records after
entity. 6 months.

40. SERVICE AWARDS AND COMMENDATIONS Destroy in office 2 years from date of record creation or the
Includes award and selection committee reports, personnel action involved.
nominations, selection criteria, and similar
administrative records relating to employee
recognition or incentive programs.

See also PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY), page
61, item 29.

41. SUGGESTIONS AND SURVEYS Destroy in office after 1 year.
Recommendations and feedback submitted by agency
employees.

42, TRAINING AND EDUCATIONAL RECORDS a) Transfer records as applicable to PERSONNEL RECORDS Retention: _
Includes employee-specific records (certificates, (OFFICIAL cogv), page 61, item 29, if such training and 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(1)(iv)
transcripts, test scores, etc.) relating to the training, testing is required for the position held or could affect
testing, or continuing education of employees. career advancement.

b) Destroy in office remaining records after 1 year.
See also CONFERENCES AND WORKSHOPS, page 68,
item 4, and EDUCATIONAL LEAVE AND
REIMBURSEMENT, page 55, item 14. Other required
trainings are handled in ASBESTOS TRAINING, page
52, item 6, BLOODBORNE PATHOGEN TRAINING, page
53, item 8, and HAZARDOUS MATERIALS TRAINING
RECORDS, page 58, item 21.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,
page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

64



o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
43, UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION CLAIMS Destroy in office after 3 years.* Confidentiality:
Claim forms and other related records concernin G.5.§115C Art. 21A
I.'.I: unemployment compensation cases ¢ G.5.§122C-158
ploy P ‘ G.S. § 130A-45.9
G.S. § 153A-98
G.S. § 160-168
G.S. § 161E-257.2
G.S. § 162A-6.1
44, UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION REPORTS Destroy in office after 3 years.*
Quarterly reports showing month-to-date wages,
month-to-date compensation, year-to-date wages,
and year-to-date compensation for each employee.
May be filed with NC Division of Employment Security.
45, UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE Transfer to the N.C. Department of Commerce, Division of
Forms submitted to the Department of Commerce to Employment Security.
report wage records of terminated employees.
46. VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT RECORDS Destroy in office after 1 year.
Inquiries and responses concerning verification of an
employee’s prior or current employment with the
agency.
47. VOLUNTEER RECORDS Destroy in office 2 years after completion of assignment.
Records concerning individuals who volunteer to assist
with various agency activities.
48. WORK SCHEDULES AND ASSIGNMENTS Destroy in office after 1 year.
Records concerning work, duty, shift, crew, or case
schedules, rosters, or assignments.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

65




o _mEm
| el

]
EEEEE
u mEE

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 6: PERSONNEL RECORDS

Records concerning workers’ compensation claims
filed by employees’ supervisors concerning accidental
injuries or illnesses suffered on the job. Includes
Employer’s Report of Injury to Employee (Form 19),
accident investigation reports, medical reports, claim
cost reports, reference copies of medical invoices, and
other related records.

Note: All official copies of claims records should be
transferred to the North Carolina Industrial
Commission in compliance with G.S. § 97-92(a).

compensation claims by its employees 5 years after employee
returns to work or separates from agency.

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
49. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
ADMINISTRATION b) Destroy in office remaining records when superseded or
Includes program policies, guidelines, and related obsolete.
administrative documentation.
50. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM CLAIMS Destroy in office agency’s working file for workers’ Confidentiality:

G.S.§8-53
G.S. §97-92(b)

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

66




o _EEE
m =
u

.

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 7: PUBLIC RELATIONS RECORDS

Official records and materials created and accumulated by internal public relations programs operated by the agency.

STANDARD 7: PUBLIC RELATIONS RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION

1. AGENCY PUBLICATIONS a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Publications created at agency expense. Also includes | ) pestroy publications management records after 5 years.
correspondence and other related records regarding ' ' o
the design and creation of agency publications. c) Destroy in office remaining records when reference value

ends.f
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

2. AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDINGS a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Recordings (including digital) and films produced by b) Destroy in office remaining records when reference value
the agency. This does not include recordings of public ends T
meetings or security videos. '

Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
See also AUDIO AND VIDEO RECORDINGS OF
MEETINGS, page 2, item 7, and OFFICE SECURITY
RECORDS, page 12, item 46.

3. COMMUNITY AWARDS a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Records concerning awards by the agency recognizing | ) pestroy in office remaining records when reference value
community contributions. ends T

Agency Policy: Destroy in office after

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

67




H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

ITEM #

STANDARD 7: PUBLIC RELATIONS RECORDS

RECORDS SERIES TITLE

DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS

CITATION

CONFERENCES AND WORKSHOPS

Records concerning conferences and workshops
conducted by agency employees. Includes slides,
charts, transparencies, handouts, and other related
records used in presentations.

See also TRAINING AND EDUCATIONAL RECORDS,
page 64, item 42.

a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.

b) Destroy in office remaining records when superseded or
obsolete.

EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS

Materials produced for usage by teachers or tour
groups. Includes lesson plans, activities, and other
related records.

Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.

FUND DRIVE AND EVENT RECORDS

Records documenting the promotion and organization
of fund drives and other special events in which the
agency participated. Includes records concerning
solicitations requesting and donations providing
money or in-kind donations for agency programs. Also
includes invitations, registration materials, agendas,
handouts, presentations, and programs.

See also DONATIONS AND SOLICITATIONS, page 22,
item 21.

a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.

b) Destroy in office remaining records when superseded or
obsolete.

INVITATIONS

Invitations sent and received concerning agency and
external functions.

Destroy in office after event occurs.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.




i NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 7: PUBLIC RELATIONS RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
8. MEDIA FILE Destroy in office when reference value ends.
Refe.renc.e c_oples of new_spaper, magazine, and other Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
media clippings concerning the agency, agency
officials, and other topics of interest.
9. POPULAR ANNUAL FINANCE REPORT a) Retain records with historical value permanently.
Comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) b) Destroy in office remaining records when superseded or
obsolete.
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS a) Retain in office minutes permanently.
Includes agendas, minutes, notices, speaker sign-up b) Destroy in office remaining records after 1 year.
sheets, and similar documentation.
11. PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS Destroy in office 2 years after resolution.*
Formal requests submitted by persons seeking access
to agency records along with documentation of Note: These disposition instructions apply only to the request,
agency response. internal agency records related to searching for and preparing
responsive records, and communication of response; the
documents that are responsive to public records requests
should be handled according to their respective disposition
instructions. However, if the agency also retains separate
copies of the documents that are responsive to public records
requests, they may also be destroyed 2 years after completion
of the request.
12. PUBLICITY RECORDS a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Records concerning overall public relations of agency. | p) Dpestroy in office remaining records when superseded or
Includes advertisements, announcements, obsolete. *
correspondence (including e-mail), photographic
materials, news and press releases, and other related
records.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.




H_EEE
uE =
T

| LIS}

ErEEN

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 7: PUBLIC RELATIONS RECORDS

first. Retain captured content in office permanently. Can
be maintained as website snapshots or via Web crawler.

electronic formats concerning the creation and
maintenance of the agency’s presence on the World
Wide Web. Includes correspondence (including e- b) Destroy in office remaining records when superseded or
mail), procedures, instructions, website designs, obsolete.

HTML/XHTML, or other web-based file formats, and
other related records.

See also WEB MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS
RECORDS: STRUCTURE, page 42, item 19.

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
13. SOCIAL MEDIA See APPENDIX (page 79) for guidance in handling social media.
14. SPEECHES a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently.
Speeches made by agency officials. b) Destroy in office remaining records when reference value
ends. T
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after
15. WEBSITE (ELECTRONIC) a) Capture website annually or whenever a major revision in
Records created and maintained in paper and design and/or content has taken place, whichever occurs

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

70




H_EEE
HE"E NCDEPARTMENT OF
=I.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 8: RISK MANAGEMENT RECORDS

Official records created and accumulated to manage risks in the agency.

STANDARD 8: RISK MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
1. ACCIDENT/INCIDENT REPORTS (CUSTOMER AND a) Transfer records resulting in workers' compensation to
EMPLOYEE) WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM CLAIMS, page 66,
item 50.
See also WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM b) Destroy in office remaining employee claims 3 years after
CLAIMS, page 66, item 50. settlement or denial of claim.*
c) Destroy in office adult non-employee reports 3 years after
settlement or denial of claim.*
d) Destroy in office reports that do not result in claims or
official action after 3 years.
e) Destroy in office reports of minors after minor has reached
age of 21.
2. ASBESTOS MANAGEMENT PLAN a) Destroy in office 1 year after building is demolished. Retention:
29 CFR
b) If building is sold, transfer records to new owner. 1910.1001(j)(3)(ii)
3. DECLARATIONS AND TERMINATIONS OF STATES OF Retain in office permanently. Authority:
EMERGENCY G.S. § 166A-19.22

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

71




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 8: RISK MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
4. DISASTER AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLANS | Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete. Confidentiality:
. . G.S. §132-1.7
A Records concerning preparedness, evacuations, and
t operations in the event of a disaster (natural,
accidental, or malicious). Includes background
surveys, studies, reports, and records concerning the
process of notifying personnel in the event of an
emergency. Also includes Continuity of Operations
Plans (COOP) and Business Continuity Plans (BCP).
5. DISASTER RECOVERY a) Retain in office permanently records documenting major
Administrative records documenting recovery efforts. agency disaster recovery efforts
b) Destroy in office after 3 years records concerning minor or
routine agency recovery operations that are managed with
minimal disruption to normal operations.
6. EMERGENCY DRILLS AND EQUIPMENT RECORDS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.
Includes test records for fire suppression, defibrillator,
respirator fit, and other emergency equipment. Also
includes records concerning agency emergency and
fire drills.
7. EMPLOYEE SECURITY RECORDS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.
Records concerning the issuance of keys, identification
cards, parking assignments, passes, etc., to employees.
8. FIRE, HEALTH, AND SAFETY RECORDS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.
Records concerning agency safety measures. Includes
reports, logs, and other related records documenting
inspections of agency facilities.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

72




o _EEE
l= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 8: RISK MANAGEMENT RECORDS
ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
9. FUEL OIL STORAGE TANK RECORDS Destroy in office closure records 3 years after completion of Authority:
permanent closure. 40 CFR 280.34
Retention:
40 CFR 280.74
10. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS MANAGEMENT a) Destroy in office after 30 years records related to
Records related to hazardous materials and hazard hazardous materials, including biowaste.
mitigation plans. b) Destroy in office after 5 years records concerning the
receipt, maintenance, and disposal of radioactive
materials.
c) Destroy in office 3 years after superseded or obsolete
records concerning hazard mitigation plans.
11. INSURANCE POLICIES a) Destroy in office records concerning automobile and other
Records concerning automobile, theft, fire, and all liability insurance policies 10 years after superseded or
other insurance policies purchased by agency. Also obsolete.*
includes insurance audits, claims reports, surveys, b) Destroy in office certificates of insurance after 1 year.
endorsements, certificates of insurance, and waivers.
c) Destroy in office self-insurer certifications 6 years from
date of termination of policy or settlement of all claims.
d) Destroy in office remaining records after 1 year after
superseded or obsolete.
12. LOSS CONTROL INSPECTION REPORTS Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.
Self-inspections to identify potential liabilities or
hazards that may exist in agency owned buildings or
property.

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

73




H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 8: RISK MANAGEMENT RECORDS

Forms supplied to agencies from manufacturers and
distributors of hazardous materials for materials held
by the agency.

according to manufacturer’s instructions.

Retention Note: A data sheet for a mixture may be discarded if
the new data sheet includes the same hazardous chemicals as
the original formulation. If the formulation is different, both
data sheets must be retained for 30 years. Data sheets may
also be discarded if some other record identifying the
substances used, where they were used, and when they were
used is retained the required 30-year period.

ITEM #
RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION
13. LOST, STOLEN, OR DAMAGED PROPERTY REPORTS Destroy in office after 2 years.*
Includes citizen reports of property lost or stolen at
agency. Also includes reports and employee
narratives of vandalism to agency property.
14. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH Destroy in office after 5 years. Retention:
ADMINISTRATION (OSHA) 29 CFR 1904.33
S . 29 CFR 1904.44
Records concerning injury or iliness, extent and
outcomes, summary totals for calendar year, and
OSHA forms. Includes ergonomic assessments for
employees.
15. SAFETY DATA SHEETS Destroy in office 30 years after materials have been disposed of | Retention:
29 CFR

1910.1020(d)(1)(ii)(B)

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

74




H_EEE
.= B NC DEPARTMENT OF
=l.== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

STANDARD 9: WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT RECORDS

Official records created and accumulated by the agency to manage workforce development programs. Relevant legislation includes the Comprehensive
Employment and Training Act, the Job Training and Partnership Act, the Workforce Investment Act, and the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act.

ITEM #

STANDARD 9: WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT RECORDS

RECORDS SERIES TITLE

DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS

CITATION

AUDIT/AUDIT RESOLUTIONS

Records concerning reports from financial and
compliance audits conducted on WIA programs in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133. Includes audit
reports and correspondence concerning audits and
audit resolutions for the local area. Also includes
federal and state audits.

Destroy in office after 3 years.

Authority:
OMB Circular A-133
29 CFR 97.26

LOCAL AREA JOB TRAINING PLAN RECORDS

Records concerning the local board’s bid process for
contracting workforce development programs.

Destroy in office when superseded or obsolete.

Authority:
20 CFR 652.8

PARTICIPANT RECORDS

Records concerning applicants, registrants, eligible
applicants/registrants, participants, terminees, and
employees who submit requests for services of the
Dislocated Workers Program and Workforce
Investment Act programs. Includes applications, client
history, Employability Development Plans, program
referral, monitoring notes, pay authorizations, release
forms, and WIA follow-up questionnaires.

Destroy in office 3 years after close of audit/final year
expenditure.*

Authority:
20 CFR 652.8

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION,

page vi.

T See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided.

75




DESTRUCTION OF PUBLIC RECORDS

Q.

When can | destroy records?

A. Each records series listed on this schedule has specific disposition instructions that indicate how long the
series must be kept in your office. In some cases, the disposition instructions are “Retain in office
permanently,” which means that those records must be kept in your offices forever.

Q.

How do | destroy records?

A. After your agency has approved this records retention and disposition schedule, records should be
destroyed in one of the following ways:

1) burned, unless prohibited by local ordinance;

2) shredded, or torn so as to destroy the record content of the documents or material concerned;

3) placed in acid vats so as to reduce the paper to pulp and to terminate the existence of the documents
or materials concerned;

4) sold as waste paper, provided that the purchaser agrees in writing that the documents or materials
concerned will not be resold without pulverizing or shredding the documents so that the information
contained within cannot be practicably read or reconstructed.

The provision that electronic records are to be destroyed means that the data, metadata, and
physical media are to be overwritten, deleted, and unlinked so that the data and metadata may not
be practicably reconstructed.

The data, metadata, and physical media containing confidential records of any format are to be
destroyed in such a manner that the information cannot be read or reconstructed under any means.

— N.C. Administrative Code, Title 7, Chapter 4, Subchapter M, Section .0510

Without your agency’s approval of this records schedule, no records may legally be destroyed.

Q.

How can | destroy records if they are not listed on this schedule?

A. Contact a Records Management Analyst. An analyst will discuss the nature of the records with you to
determine if the records have historical value. If the records do have historical value, we will discuss the
possibility of transferring the records to the State Archives of North Carolina to be preserved
permanently.

If the records do not have historical value, we will ask you to complete a Request for Disposal of
Unscheduled Records (page 87) if the records are no longer being created. If the records are an active
records series, an analyst will help you develop an amendment to this schedule so that you can destroy
the records appropriately from this point forward.

Q.

A.

Am | required to tell anyone about the destructions?

We recommend that you report on your records retention activities to your governing board on an annual
basis. This report does not need to be detailed, but it is important that significant destructions be entered
into the minutes of the Board. See a sample destructions log that follows (and is available online at the State
Archives of North Carolina website, https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/forms-government).

76


https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/forms-government

..=.= NC DEPARTMENT
HIE OF NATURAL AND

HENEE CuULTURAL RESOURCES
ENEER

919-814-6900

archives.ncdcr.gov

4615 Mail Service Center, Raleigh NC 27699-4165

Destructions Log

Agency
Division | Section | | Branch |
Location(s)
of Records

Vol Media

. Required Date A (Paper, Date of Method of | Authorization for
Records Series - (file drawers Electronic) i i i
Retention Range or MB) Destruction | Destruction Destruction
P E
DivisioN oF ARCHIVES AND RECORDS — GOVERNMENT RECORDS SECTION
http://archives ncder.gov
MAILING ADDRESS: Telephone (919) 814-6900 LOCATION: 77

4615 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, N.C. 27699-4615

Facsimile (919) 715-3627
State Courier 51-81-20

215 N. Blount Street
Raleigh, N.C. 27601-2823



ELECTRONIC RECORDS:
E-MAIL, BORN-DIGITAL RECORDS, AND DIGITAL IMAGING

Q. When can | delete my e-mail?

A.

E-mail is a public record as defined by G.S. § 121-5 and G.S. § 132. Electronic mail is as much a record as
any paper record and must be treated in the same manner. It is the content of each message that is
important. If a particular message would have been filed as a paper memo, it should still be filed (either
in your e-mail program or in your regular directory structure), and it should be retained the same length
of time as its paper counterparts. It is inappropriate to destroy e-mail simply because storage limits
have been reached. Some examples of e-mail messages that are public records and therefore covered by
this policy include:

e  Policies or directives;
e  Final drafts of reports and recommendations;
e Correspondence and memoranda related to official business;
e  Work schedules and assignments;
e Meeting agendas or minutes
e Any document or message that initiates, facilitates, authorizes, or completes a business transaction;
and
e Messages that create a precedent, such as issuing instructions and advice.
From the Department of Cultural Resources E-Mail Policy (Revised July 2009),
available at the State Archives of North Carolina website

Other publications (available online at the State Archives of North Carolina website) that will be
particularly helpful in managing your e-mail include tutorials on managing e-mail as a public record and on
using Microsoft Exchange.

Q. May | print my e-mail to file it?

A.

We do not recommend printing e-mail for preservation purposes. Important metadata are lost when e-
mail is printed.

Q. | use my personal e-mail account for work. No one can see my personal e-
mail, right?

A.

The best practice is to avoid using personal resources, including private e-mail accounts, for public
business. G.S. § 132-1 states that records “made or received pursuant to law or ordinance in connection
with the transaction of public business by any agency of North Carolina government or its subdivisions”
are public records (emphasis added). The fact that public records reside in a personal e-mail account is
irrelevant.

Q. We have an imaging system. Are we required to keep the paper?

A.

You may scan any record, but you will need to receive approval from the Government Records Section in
order to destroy paper originals that have been digitized. Your agency must develop an electronic records
policy and then submit a Request for Disposal of Original Records Duplicated by Electronic Means. You
can find these templates in the Digital Imaging section of the State Archives of North Carolina website
(https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/digital-records/digital-records-policies-and-guidelines#digital-
imaging). Contact a Records Management Analyst for further instructions on how to develop a compliant
electronic records policy.

Permanent records must have a security preservation copy as defined by State Archives of North
Carolina’s Human-Readable Preservation Duplicate Policy (G.S. § 132-8.2):

78


https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/digital-records/digital-records-policies-and-guidelines
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/digital-records/digital-records-policies-and-guidelines#digital-imaging
https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/digital-records/digital-records-policies-and-guidelines#digital-imaging

Preservation duplicates shall be durable, accurate, complete and clear, and such duplicates
made by a photographic, photo static, microfilm, micro card, miniature photographic, or
other process which accurately reproduces and forms a durable medium for so reproducing
the original shall have the same force and effect for all purposes as the original record
whether the original record is in existence or not. ... Such preservation duplicates shall be
preserved in the place and manner of safekeeping prescribed by the Department of Natural
and Cultural Resources.

The preservation duplicate of permanent records must be either on paper or microfilm.

Non-permanent records may be retained in any format. You will need to take precautions with electronic
records that you must keep more than about 5 years. Computer systems do not have long life cycles.
Each time you change computer systems, you must convert all records to the new system so that you can
assure their preservation and provide access.

Q. Computer storage is cheap. Can I just keep my computer records
permanently?

A.

The best practice is to destroy all records that have met their retention requirements, regardless of
format.

Q. What are the guidelines regarding the creation and handling of electronic
public records?

A.

There are numerous documents available on the State Archives of North Carolina website
(https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/digital-records/digital-records-policies-and-guidelines). Topics
covered include shared storage, cloud computing, e-discovery, trustworthy digital public records, digital
signatures, e-mail, social media, text messages, websites, digital imaging, metadata, file formats, database
indexing, and security backups.

Note that e-mail, text messages, and social media should be handled according to their content.
Therefore, this schedule does not include a records series that instructs you on how to handle one of
these born-digital records by format; instead of focusing on how the information is disseminated,
consider what content is contained in the e-mail, text message, or social media post. For instance, an e-
mail requesting leave that is sent to a supervisor should be kept for 1 year (see LEAVE RECORDS, page 58,
item 24).

79


https://archives.ncdcr.gov/government/digital-records/digital-records-policies-and-guidelines

GEOSPATIAL RECORDS

Q. Why should geographic information system (GIS) datasets be retained and
preserved?

A.

Geospatial records are public records and need to be retained and preserved based on their legal, fiscal,
evidential and/or historical value according to an established retention schedule. Local agencies involved
in GIS operations should work with the State Archives of North Carolina in order to appraise, inventory,
and preserve their geospatial records according to established best practices and standards to insure both
their short- and long-term accessibility.

Due to the complexity and transitory nature of these records, geospatial records retention and long-term
preservation is a community-wide challenge. GIS files have become essential to the function of many
local agencies and will continue to frequently be utilized in agency decision-making processes in the near
and far future. Accessibility of GIS records over time has legal, fiscal, practical, and historical implications.
The availability of GIS records can help safeguard the local government’s legal and fiscal accountability
and aid agencies in conducting retrospective and prospective studies. These studies are only possible
when essential data from the past are still available.

Q. What GIS datasets should be preserved by local governments?

A.

The following types of geospatial records have been designated as having archival value:

e Parcel data

e  Street centerline data

e Corporate limits data

e  Extraterritorial jurisdiction data
e Zoning data, address points

e  Orthophotography (imagery)

e  Utilities

e Emergency/E-911 themes

Q. How often should we capture the datasets retained for their legal, fiscal,
evidential or historical value?

A.

Consult the retention schedule for frequency of capture. The frequency of capture is based on the
significance of the record as well as its alterability.

Q. What data formats, compression formats, and media should be used to
preserve the data?

A.

Archiving practices should be consistent with North Carolina Geographic Information Coordinating
Council (GICC) approved standards and recommendations. (Examples: Content Standards for Metadata;
Data Sharing Recommendations). Consult the GICC website at http://www.ncgicc.com/

You should also comply with guidelines and standards issued by the State Archives of North Carolina,
which are available on its website.

80


http://www.ncgicc.com/

Q. Who should be responsible for creation and long-term storage of
archived data?

A. The creating agency, NCOneMap, and the State Archives of North Carolina may all have responsibility for
archiving data. If you choose to upload your data to NCOneMap, consult with your county’s GIS
department to determine whether data will be uploaded by your agency or by the whole county. If you
choose not to upload your data to NCOneMap, your agency must comply with standards (for metadata,
file naming, data sharing, and long term preservation) and procedures adopted by the North Carolina
Geographic Information Coordinating Council.

81



MICROFILM

Q. Why do you still use microfilm?

A. Microfilm is a legally acceptable replacement for original records, as outlined in G.S. § 8-45.1 and
§ 153A-436. Microfilm can be read with nothing more sophisticated than a magnifying glass, and there is
no software to keep current. Usually, deterioration in the film itself can be detected by visual inspection.
The State Archives of North Carolina provides a publication, Micrographics: Technical and Legal
Procedures, on our website. It explains the four groups of national standards for the production of
archival quality microfilm:

e manufacture of raw film

e filming methods

e processing (developing) film
e storage methods

That publication also provides sample forms, targets, and procedures that you or your vendor can use in
producing film of your records.

Q. What film services do you provide?

A. The Department of Natural and Cultural Resources provides microfilming services for minutes of major
decision-making boards and commissions. We will also film records of adoptions for Social Services
agencies. Once those records are filmed, we will store the silver negative (original) in our security vault.
Contact the Records Management Analyst in charge of microfilm coordination for the most current
information.

Q. How do I get my minutes filmed?

A. We have two processes to film minutes. First, you can send photocopies of your approved minutes to us
in the mail. Simply include a copy of the Certification of the Preparation of Minutes for Microfilming
form (available online at the State Archives of North Carolina website) with each shipment. For more
detailed instructions, contact a Records Management Analyst.

Alternately, you can bring us your original books. We will film them and return them to you. This process
is most useful when you have more minutes to film than you are willing to photocopy. It is important to
remember that a representative of your office or ours must transport the original books in person so that
the custody of the records is maintained. You should not mail or ship your original minutes. Call a
Records Management Analyst to make arrangements for an appointment for your books to be filmed. We
will make every effort to expedite the filming so that your books will be returned to you as quickly as
possible.

Q. What if | need my books while they are being filmed?

A. Call the Raleigh Office at (919) 814-6900, and ask for the Records Management Analyst in charge of
microfilm coordination.

Q. Can | send you my minutes electronically?

A. We are working on standards and procedures for an electronic transfer system for minutes. Please
contact the Records Management Analyst in charge of microfilm coordination for more information.

Q. | have some old minutes that are not signed. Can they still be filmed?

A. If the only copy you have available is unsigned, and you use it as the official copy, we will film it.

82


https://archives.ncdcr.gov/documents/certificate-preparing-minutes-microfilming

Q. What if my books are destroyed after they have been filmed?

A. Call a Records Management Analyst who will help you make arrangements to purchase copies of the
microfilm from our office. You can then send those reels to a vendor who can either make new printed
books or scan the film to create a digital copy.

83



DISASTER ASSISTANCE

Q. What should I do in case of fire or flood?

A. Secure the area, and keep everyone out until fire or other safety professionals allow entry. Then, call our

Raleigh office at (919) 814-6903 for the Head of the Government Records Section or (919) 814-6849 for
the Head of the Collections Management Branch. If you're in the western part of the state, call our
Asheville Office at (828) 296-7230 extension 224. On nights and weekends, call your local emergency
management office.

DO NOT ATTEMPT TO MOVE OR CLEAN ANY RECORDS.

Damaged records are extremely fragile and require careful handling. Our staff are trained in preliminary

recovery techniques, documenting damage to your records, and authorizing destruction of damaged
records. Professional vendors can handle larger disasters.

Q. What help do you give in case of an emergency?

A. We will do everything we can to visit you at the earliest opportunity in order to provide hands-on
assistance. We can assist you in appraising the records that have been damaged so that precious
resources (and especially time) are not spent on records with lesser value. We can provide lists of
professional recovery vendors that you can contact to preserve your essential and permanent records.

Q. What can | do to prepare for an emergency?

A. We provide training on disaster preparation that includes a discussion of the roles of proper inventories
staff training, and advance contracts with recovery vendors. If you would like to have this workshop
presented, call a Records Management Analyst.

’

Q. What are essential records?

A. Essential records are records that are necessary for continuity of operations in the event of a disaster.
There are two common categories of records that are considered essential:

e Emergency operating records — including emergency plans and directives, orders of
succession, delegations of authority, staffing assignments, selected program
records needed to continue the most critical agency operations, as well as related
policy or procedural records.

e Legal and financial rights records — these protect the legal and financial rights of
the Government and of the individuals directly affected by its activities. Examples
include accounts receivable records, Social Security records, payroll records,
retirement records, and insurance records. These records were formerly defined as
“rights-and-interests” records.

Essential records should be stored in safe, secure locations as well as duplicated and
stored off-site, if possible.

84



STAFF TRAINING

Q.

What types of workshops or training do you offer?

A. We have a group of prepared workshops that we can offer at any time at various locations throughout the
state. Contact a Records Management Analyst if you are interested in having one of the workshops
presented to your agency. We will work with you directly to develop training suited to your specific
needs. Our basic workshops are:

e  Managing public records in North Carolina
e Scanning/digital imaging

e Disaster preparedness and recovery

e Confidentiality

e Organizing paper and digital files

e E-mail

e Digital communications

Q.

Will you design a workshop especially for our office?

A. Yes, we will. Let a Records Management Analyst know what type of training you need.

Q.

Are workshops offered only in Raleigh?

A. No, we will come to your offices to present the workshops you need. We have no minimum audience
requirement. We will also do presentations for professional associations, regional consortiums, and the
public.

Q.

Is there a fee for workshops?

A. Not at this time.

Q.

Are the workshops available in an online format?

A. Not at this time. However, there are several online tutorials available on the State Archives of North
Carolina website, including managing public records, electronic records, and scanning.

85



GOVERNMENT RECORDS SECTION

NC DEPARTMENT OF
NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES STATE RECORDS CENTER

archives.ncdcr.gov 4615 Mail Service Center, Raleigh NC 27699-4165 919-814-6900

Request for Change in Local Government Records Schedule
Use this form to request a change in the records retention and disposition schedule governing the records of
your agency. Submit the signed original and keep a copy for your file. A proposed amendment will be prepared
and submitted to the appropriate state and local officials for their approval and signature. Copies of the signed
amendment will be sent to you for insertion in your copy of the schedule.

Requestor name

Location and Agency [e.g., County/Municipality + Department of Social Services]

Phone and email

Mailing Address

Specify title and edition of records retention schedule being used:

Add a new item
Delete an existing item Standard Number Page Iltem Number _
] Change a retention period Standard Number Page Iltem Number _
Title of Records Series in Schedule or Proposed Title:

Inclusive Dates of Records: Proposed Retention Period:

Description of Records:

Justification for Change:

Requested by:

Signature Title Date
Approved by:
Signature Requestor's Supervisor Date
DiviSION OF ARCHIVES AND RECORDS — GOVERNMENT RECORDS SECTION 86
http://archives.ncdcr.gov
MAILING ADDRESS: Telephone (919) 814-6900 LOCATION:
4615 Mail Service Center Facsimile (919) 715-3627 215 N. Blount Street

Raleigh, N.C. 27699-4615 State Courier 51-81-20 Raleigh, N.C. 27601-2823



o_mEE GOVERNMENT RECORDS SECTION

EECE NC DEPARTMENT OF
=IE=E NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES STATE RECORDS CENTER

archives.ncdcr.gov 4615 Mail Service Center, Raleigh NC 27699-4165 919-814-6900
Request for Disposal of Unscheduled Records

Requestor name

Location and Agency [e.g., County/Municipality + Department of Social Services]

Phone and email

Mailing Address

In accordance with the provisions of G.S. § 121 and § 132, approval is requested for the destruction of records
listed below. These records have no further use or value for official administrative, fiscal, historical, or legal
purposes.

RECORDS TITLE INCLUSIVE QUANTITY RELEVANT PROPOSED
AND DESCRIPTION DATES STATUTORY RETENTION
REGULATIONS PERIOD

Requested by:

Signature Title Date
Approved by:

Signature Requestor’s Supervisor Date
Concurred by:

Signature Assistant Records Administrator Date

State Archives of North Carolina

DiviSION OF ARCHIVES AND RECORDS — GOVERNMENT RECORDS SECTION 87
http://archives.ncdcr.gov
MAILING ADDRESS: Telephone (919) 814-6900 LOCATION:
4615 Mail Service Center Facsimile (919) 715-3627 215 N. Blount Street

Raleigh, N.C. 27699-4615 State Courier 51-81-20 Raleigh, N.C. 27601-2823



O 1] GOVERNMENT RECORDS SECTION
NE-E NC DEPARTMENT OF

=l:== NATURAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES STATE RECORDS CENTER

archives.ncdcr.gov 4615 Mail Service Center, Raleigh NC 27699-4165 919-814-6900

Request for Disposal of Original Records Duplicated by Electronic Means
If you have questions, call (919) 814-6900 and ask for a Records Management Analyst.

This form is used to request approval from the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources to dispose of non-permanent
paper records that have been scanned, entered into databases, or otherwise duplicated through digital imaging or other

conversion to a digital environment. This form does not apply to records that have been microfiimed or photocopied or to
records with a permanent retention.

Agency Contact Name: Date (MM-DD-YYYY):
Phone (area code): Email:

County/Municipality: Office:

Mailing address:

Records Series Title Description of Records Inclusive Approx. Volume Retention
A group of records as listed | Specific records as referred Dates of Records Period
in records retention to in-office (1987-1989; (e.g. “1file As listed in records
schedule 2005-present) | cabinet,” “5 boxes”) | retention schedule

Requested by:

Signature Title Date
Approved by:

Signature Requestor’s Supervisor Date
Concurred by:

Signature Assistant Records Administrator Date

State Archives of North Carolina

DiviSION OF ARCHIVES AND RECORDS — GOVERNMENT RECORDS SECTION 88
http://archives.ncdcr.gov
MAILING ADDRESS: Telephone (919) 814-6900 LOCATION:
4615 Mail Service Center Facsimile (919) 715-3627 215 N. Blount Street

Raleigh, N.C. 27699-4615 State Courier 51-81-20 Raleigh, N.C. 27601-2823



archives.ncdcr.gov

..=.= NC DEPARTMENT
B H OF NATURAL AND

HESNEE CyLTURAL RESOURCES

4615 Mail Service Center, Raleigh NC 27699-4165

File Plan

919-814-6900

Agency
Division | Section | | Branch |
Medi
Records Owner (Pige? S
Records Series Records Creator U oee Eoa s Electronic, equire Location(s) of Records
transferred within the Scanned) Retention
agency) P | E | S

DivISION OF ARCHIVES AND RECORDS — GOVERNMENT
http://archives.ncder.gov

MAILING ADDRESS: Telephone (919) 814-6900
4615 Mail Service Center Facsimile (919) 715-3627
Raleigh, N.C. 276994615 State Courier 51-81-20

RECORDS SECTION

LOCATION:

215 N_ Blount Street
Raleigh, N.C. 27601-2823

89




1

1099 FORMS. SEE TAX FORMS

A

ABOLISHED POSITIONS, 50

ABSTRACTS OF MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS, 1

ACCIDENT/INCIDENT REPORTS (CUSTOMER AND
EMPLOYEE), 71

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, 18

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, 18

ACCOUNTS UNCOLLECTABLE, 18

ACCREDITATION RECORDS, 1

ADDRESS POINTS, 32

ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS, 1

ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTIVES, REGULATIONS, AND
RULES, 1

ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATIONS, 50

AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, 43

AGENCY PUBLICATIONS, 67

AGENDA AND MEETING PACKETS, 1

AMBULANCE SERVICE BILLS AND RECORDS FOR
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE. SEE ACCOUNTS
PAYABLE

ANNEXATION FILE, 43

ANNUAL BUDGET, 19

APPLICATIONS FOR APPOINTMENT, 2

APPLICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT, 51

APPOINTMENT REPORTS, 2

APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM RECORDS, 51

APTITUDE AND SKILLS TESTING RECORDS, 52

ARBITRAGE RECORDS, 19

ASBESTOS MANAGEMENT PLAN, 71

ASBESTOS TRAINING, 52

AUDIO AND VIDEO RECORDINGS OF MEETINGS, 2

AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDINGS, 67

AUDITS
FINANCIAL, 19
IT SYSTEMS, 37
PERFORMANCE, 2

AUTHENTICATIONS, 43

AUTHORIZATION FORMS, 19

B

BANK STATEMENTS, 19

BANK STATEMENTS AND RECONCILIATIONS, 19
BENEFITS RECORDS, 52

BENEFITS REIMBURSEMENT PLAN. SEE

INDEX

BIDS FOR DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, 20

BIDS FOR PURCHASE, 20

BIOGRAPHICAL DATA. SEE HISTORY RECORDS
BLOODBORNE PATHOGEN TRAINING, 53
BLUEPRINTS AND SPECIFICATIONS, 3

BOND CLOSING RECORDS, 20

BOND REGISTER, 20

BONDS, 3

BONDS, NOTES, AND COUPONS, 20

BUDGET ADMINISTRATION RECORDS, 21
BUDGET EXECUTION RECORDS, 21

BUDGET REPORTS, 21

BUDGET REQUESTS AND WORKING PAPERS, 21
BUDGET RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES, 21
BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS, 18
BULLETINS, 3

BUSINESS CERTIFICATION RECORDS, 3
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SUBJECT FILE, 3

C

CALENDARS OF EVENTS AND APPOINTMENTS, 3

CALL CENTER RECORDINGS. SEE CUSTOMER CALL
CENTER RECORDINGS

CANCELED CHECKS. SEE BANK STATEMENTS AND
RECONCILIATIONS

CASH REPORTS. SEE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

CENSUS PROJECT RECORDS, 4

CERTIFICATION AND QUALIFICATION RECORDS,
EMPLOYEE, 53

CHARTER RECORDS, 4

CHECK REGISTERS. SEE BANK STATEMENTS AND
RECONCILIATIONS

CHECK STUBS. SEE BANK STATEMENTS AND
RECONCILIATIONS

CITIZEN COMMENTS, COMPLAINTS, PETITIONS, AND
SERVICE REQUESTS, 4

CITIZEN SURVEYS, 5

CIVIL RIGHTS CASE RECORDS, 44

CIVIL RIGHTS RECORDS, 44

COLLECTED DATA, 5

COMMUNITY AWARDS, 67

COMPLAINTS (CITIZEN). SEE CITIZEN COMMENTS,
COMPLAINTS, PETITIONS, AND SERVICE
REQUESTS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, 5

COMPUTER AND NETWORK USAGE RECORDS, 37

CONDEMNATION RECORDS, 45

CONFERENCES AND WORKSHOPS, 68

CONFLICTS OF COMMITMENT, 45

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST, 45

90



CONTRACT BUDGET REPORTS, 21
CONTRACT WORKER RECORDS, 63
CONTRACTS, LEASES, AND AGREEMENTS, 45
CORE DATA (GIS RECORDS). SEE GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) CORE DATA
CORPORATE LIMITS, 32
CORRESPONDENCE (LEGAL), 46
CORRESPONDENCE AND MEMORANDA, 5
COST ALLOCATION PLANS, 22
CREDIT/DEBIT/PROCUREMENT CARD RECORDS, 22
CUSTOMER CALL CENTER RECORDINGS, 6

D

DAILY DETAIL REPORTS. SEE BUDGET REPORTS

DATA DOCUMENTATION (METADATA) (GIS
RECORDS). SEE GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
SYSTEM (GIS) DATA DOCUMENTATION
(METADATA)

DATA DOCUMENTATION RECORDS, 37

DATA MIGRATION RECORDS, 38

DATA WAREHOUSES, 38

DEBIT CARD PAYMENTS. SEE PAYMENT CARD DATA

DEBT FINANCING. SEE LOAN RECORDS

DECLARATORY RULINGS, 46

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY RECORDS, 46

DEPOSITS. SEE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

DESTRUCTIONS LOG, 77

DETAIL REPORT. SEE FINANCIAL REPORTS

DIGITIZATION AND SCANNING RECORDS, 38

DIRECT DEPOSIT FORMS. SEE ELECTRONIC FUNDS
TRANSFERS

DIRECTORIES, ROSTERS, OR INDICES, EMPLOYEE, 53

DISABILITY SALARY CONTINUATION CLAIMS, 54

DISASTER AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLANS,
72

DISASTER RECOVERY, 72

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, 54

DONATIONS AND SOLICITATIONS, 22

DRUG AND ALCOHOL PROGRAMS FILE. SEE
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

DUAL EMPLOYMENT, 54

E

EASEMENTS AND RIGHT-OF-WAY AGREEMENTS, 46

EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYEE, 55

EDUCATIONAL LEAVE AND REIMBURSEMENT, 55

EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS, 68

EDUCATIONAL RECORDS, EMPLOYEE, 64

ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFERS, 22

ELECTRONIC RECORDS POLICIES AND PROCEDURES,
38

ELIGIBILITY RECORDS, EMPLOYEE, 55

EMERGENCY DRILLS AND EQUPIMENT RECORDS, 72

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS, 55

EMPLOYMENT SELECTION RECORDS, 56

ENCROACHMENTS, 46

EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE MAINTENANCE, REPAIR,
AND INSPECTION RECORDS, 6

EQUIPMENT INVENTORIES, 9

EQUIPMENT REFERENCE RECORDS, 6

EQUIPMENT USAGE RECORDS, 6

ESCHEATS AND UNCLAIMED PROPERTY, 22

EXIT INTERVIEW RECORDS, EMPLOYEE, 56

EXPENDITURE REPORTS. SEE BUDGET REPORTS

EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTIONS, 33

F

FACILITY ACCESSIBILITY FILE. SEE

FACILITY MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND INSPECTION
RECORDS, 7

FACILITY SERVICE AND MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENTS. SEE CONTRACTS, LEASES, AND
AGREEMENTS

FACILITY USAGE RECORDS, 6

FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) RECORDS, 57

FEE SCHEDULES, 14

FILE PLAN, 89

FINANCIAL JOURNALS AND LEDGERS, 23

FINANCIAL REPORTS, 23

FIRE EXTINGUISHER RECORDS. SEE EMERGENCY
DRILLS AND EQUIPMENT RECORDS

FIRE, HEALTH, AND SAFTEY RECORDS, 72

FIXED ASSETS. SEE INVENTORIES

FORMS AND TEMPLATES, 7

FUEL OIL STORAGE TANK RECORDS, 73

FUND DRIVE AND EVENT RECORDS, 68

G

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) CORE
DATA, 30

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) DATA
DOCUMENTATION (METADATA), 30

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS)
INTERNAL STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES, 30

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS)
MONITORING RECORDS, 31

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS)
OPERATIONAL RECORDS, 31

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) PROJECT
RECORDS, 31

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS)
RECORDS, 30

91



GOVERNING AND ADVISORY BODY MEMBER FILES, 7
GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
MONTHLY REPORTS, 23
GRANT PROPOSALS, 7
GRANTS, 8
FINANCIAL, 24
GRIEVANCES, 57

H

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS MANAGEMENT, 73

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS TRAINING RECORDS, 58

HEALTH CERTIFICATES, EMPLOYEE. SEE MEDICAL
RECORDS

HISTORY RECORDS (AGENCY AND EMPLOYEES, 8

I

I-9 FORMS. SEE ELIGIBILITY RECORDS

IMAGING RECORDS, 38

IMPROPER CONDUCT INVESTIGATIONS, 8

INDICES, 9

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) RECORDS, 37

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ASSISTANCE RECORDS,
38

INSPECTION RECORDS. SEE EQUIPMENT AND
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND
INSPECTION RECORDS

INSPECTION RECORDS, FACILITY, 7

INSURANCE POLICIES, 73

INTERAGENCY PROGRAMS, 9

INTERNAL STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES (GIS
RECORDS) \T, 30

INTERNSHIP PROGRAM, 58

INVENTORIES, 9

INVESTMENTS, 24

INVITATIONS, 68

INVOICES. SEE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

IT DISASTER PREPAREDNESS AND RECOVERY PLANS.
SEE DISASTER AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
PLANS

L

LAND OWNERSHIP RECORDS, 46

LEAVE RECORDS, 58

LEGAL OPINIONS, 47

LEGAL RECORDS, 43

LEGAL REVIEW RECORDS, 47

LEGISLATION AND REGULATORY RECORDS, 9

LGERS MONTHLY REPORTS. SEE GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM MONTHLY
REPORTS

LITIGATION CASE RECORDS, 47

LOAN RECORDS, 25

LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS, 25

LOGISTICS MATERIALS, 9

LONGEVITY PAY, 25

LOSS CONTROL INSPECTION REPORTS, 73

LOST, STOLEN, OR DAMAGED PROPERTY REPORTS,
74

M

MAIL, UNDELIVERABLE/RETURNED, 9

MAILING AND DISTRIBUTION RECORDS, 10

MAINTENANCE RECORDS. SEE EQUIPMENT AND
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND
INSPECTION RECORDS

MAINTENANCE RECORDS, FACILITY, 7

MANAGEMENT STUDIES. SEE REPORTS AND STUDIES

MAPPING PROJECT RECORDS, 34

MAPS
\ALL OTHER, 36
\PARCEL, 35
\PARKS, 35

MEDIA FILE, 69

MEDICAL RECORDS, EMPLOYEE, 59

MEMBERSHIP RECORDS, 10

METADATA (GIS RECORDS). SEE GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) DATA
DOCUMENTATION (METADATA)

MILITARY LEAVE, 59

MINUTES (STAFF MEETINGS), 11

MINUTES OF PUBLIC BODIES, 11

MISCELLANEOUS (NON-BUILDING) APPLICATIONS,
LICENSES, AND PERMITS, 11

MONITORING RECORDS (GIS RECORDS). SEE
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS)
MONITORING RECORDS

N

NETWORK AND SYSTEM SECURITY RECORDS, 39
NETWORK DIAGRAMS, 39

NEWSPAPER CLIPPINGS. SEE HISTORY RECORDS
NOTICES OF PUBLIC MEETINGS, 12

Q)

OATHS OF OFFICE, 47

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADMINISTRATION (OSHA), 74

OFFICE SECURITY RECORDS, 12

92



OPERATIONAL RECORDS (GIS RECORDS). SEE
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS)
OPERATIONAL RECORDS

ORDINANCE DEVELOPMENT RECORDS, 12

ORDINANCES, 12

ORTHOIMAGERY, 33

OSHA, 74

P

PARKING. SEE SECURITY RECORDS, EMPLOYEE

PAYMENT CARD DATA, 25

PAYROLL AND EARNINGS RECORDS, 25

PAYROLL DEDUCTION RECORDS, 26

PENSION PLAN ENROLLMENT FORMS, EMPLOYEE.
SEE RETIREMENT RECORDS

PERFORMANCE REVIEWS, EMPLOYEE, 60

PERMISSIONS, 48

PERSONNEL ACTION NOTICES, 60

PERSONNEL RECORDS, 50

PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY), 61

PERSONNEL RECORDS (SUPERVISOR COPY), 61

PEST CONTROL, 12

PETITIONS (CITIZEN). SEE CITIZEN COMMENTS,
COMPLAINTS, PETITIONS, AND SERVICE
REQUESTS

PETTY CASH. SEE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES, 13

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (PERSONNEL), 62

POLYGRAPH RECORDS, EMPLOYEE, 62

POPULAR ANNUAL FINANCE REPORT, 69

POSITION CLASSIFICATION, 62

POSITION CONTROL, 62

POSITION DESCRIPTIONS, 62

POSITION EVALUATIONS, 63

POSITION HISTORY, 62

POSITION REQUISITION AND ANALYSIS RECORDS.
SEE POSITION CLASIFICATION, CONTROL, AND
HISTORY

POWELL BILL RECORDS, 26

PRE-TRIAL RELEASE PROGRAM RECORDS, 48

PRICE QUOTATIONS, 13

PROCEDURES (GIS RECORDS). SEE GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) INTERNAL
STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES

PROCLAMATIONS AND ORDERS, 13

PROJECT DOCUMENTATION (INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY), 39

PROJECT RECORDS (GIS RECORDS). SEE GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) PROJECT RECORDS

PROJECTS, 14

PROPERTY INVENTORIES, 9

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT RECORDS, 14

PUBLIC HEARINGS, 69

PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS, 69

PUBLIC RELATIONS RECORDS, 67

PUBLICATIONS RECEIVED. SEE REFERENCE (READING)
FILE

PUBLICITY RECORDS, 69

PURCHASE ORDERS, 26

Q

QUALIFIED PRODUCTS LISTS, 26

R

RATE SCHEDULES, 14

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS, 48

REBATE (CITIZEN) PROGRAM RECORDS, 4

RECONCILIATIONS (FINANCIAL), 19

RECORDS BACKUPS, SYSTEM MAINTENANCE
RECORDS, 41

RECORDS MANAGEMENT, 14

RECRUITMENT RECORDS, 63

REFERENCE (READING) FILE, 15

REFUND REPORTS. SEE FINANCIAL REPORTS

REGULATORY RECORDS (EXTERNAL). SEE
LEGISLATION AND REGULATORY RECORDS

RELEASE FORMS, 49

REPAIR RECORDS. SEE EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE
MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND INSPECTION
RECORDS

REPAIR RECORDS, FACILITY, 7

REPORTS AND STUDIES, 15

REQUEST FOR CHANGE IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT
RECORDS SCHEDULE, 86

REQUEST FOR DISPOSAL OF ORIGINAL RECORDS
DUPLICATED BY ELECTRONIC MEANS, 88

REQUEST FOR DISPOSAL OF UNSCHEDULED
RECORDS, 87

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION, 16

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS, 16

REQUISITIONS, 27

RESOLUTION DEVELOPMENT RECORDS, 16

RESOLUTIONS, 16

RESPIRATOR PROGRAM RECORDS. SEE EMERGENCY
DRILLS AND EQUIPMENT RECORDS

RETIREMENT RECORDS, EMPLOYEE, 63

RETURNED CHECKS. SEE ACCOUNTS UNCOLLECTABLE

RISK MANAGMENT RECORDS, 71

S

SAFETY DATA SHEETS, 74
SALES AND USE TAX REPORTS. SEE TAX RETURNS

93



SALES INFORMATION. SEE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

SCANNING RECORDS. SEE DIGITIZATION AND
SCANNING RECORDS

SCHOLARSHIP RECORDS, 27

SEASONAL WORKER RECORDS, 63

SECONDARY EMPLOYMENT, 64

SECURITY RECORDS, EMPLOYEE, 72

SECURITY VIDEO RECORDINGS. SEE OFFICE SECURITY
RECORDS

SELF-INSURER CERTICATIONS. SEE INSURANCE
POLICIES

SERVICE AWARDS AND COMMENDATIONS, 64

SERVICE REQUESTS (CITIZEN). SEE CITIZEN
COMMENTS, COMPLAINTS, PETITIONS, AND
SERVICE REQUESTS

SHIFT PREMIUM PAY, 27

SOCIAL MEDIA, 70, 79

SOFTWARE LICENSE AND COPYRIGHT PROVISIONS
RECORDS, 40

SPACE NEED STUDIES. SEE REPORTS AND STUDIES

SPECIAL EVENT RECORDS. SEE FUND DRIVE AND
EVENT RECORDS

SPEECHES, 70

STANDARDS (GIS RECORDS), 30

STATE AND OTHER COUNTY PROGRAMS. SEE
REFERENCE (READING) FILE

STATE OF EMERGENCY, 71

STATEMENTS OF BACK PAY, 27

STOLEN PROPERTY REPORTS, 74

STRATEGIC PLAN. SEE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

STREET CENTERLINE, 34

SUGGESTIONS, EMPLOYEE, 64

SURPLUS PROPERTY, 16

SURVEYS, EMPLOYEE, 64

SYSTEM ACCESS RECORDS (INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY), 40

SYSTEM DOCUMENTATION RECORDS, 40

SYSTEM MAINTENANCE RECORDS: HARDWARE
REPAIR OR SERVICE, 40

SYSTEM MAINTENANCE RECORDS: RECORDS
BACKUPS, 41

T

TAX FORMS, 28

TAX RETURNS, 28

TECHNICAL PROGRAM DOCUMENTATION, 41

TELEPHONE LOGS. SEE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE RECORDS. SEE PERSONNEL
RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY)

TEXT MESSAGES, 79

TIME SHEETS, CARDS, AND ATTENDANCE RECORDS,
28

TRACKING MATERIALS, 16

TRAINING RECORDS, EMPLOYEE, 64

TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTS, 28

TRAVEL REQUESTS, 17

TSERS MONTHLY REPORTS. SEE GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM MONTHLY
REPORTS

U

UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION CLAIMS, 65

UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION REPORTS, 65

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE, 65

UTILITY USAGE LOG. SEE EQUIPMENT, FACILITY, AND
VEHICLE USAGE RECORDS

UTILITY USAGE LOGS AND BILLS. SEE ACCOUNTS
PAYABLE

\%

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND INSPECTION
RECORDS. SEE EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE
MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND INSPECTION
RECORDS

VEHICLE MILEAGE LOG. SEE EQUIPMENT, FACILITY,
AND VEHICLE USAGE RECORDS

VEHICLE REFERENCE RECORDS, 6

VEHICLE REGISTRATION CARDS, 17

VEHICLE TITLES, 49

VEHICLE USAGE RECORDS, 6

VENDORS, 29

VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT RECORDS, 65

VETERANS COMMISSION QUARTERLY REPORTS. SEE
REPORTS AND STUDIES

VOIP RECORDS, 41

VOLUNTEER RECORDS, 65

VOUCHERS. SEE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

W

W-2 FORMS. SEE TAX FORMS

W-4 FORMS. SEE TAX FORMS

WARRANTIES. SEE EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE
MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND INSPECTION
RECORDS

WEB MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS RECORDS:
STRUCTURE, 42

WEBSITE (ELECTRONIC), 70

WORK ORDERS, 17

WORK SCHEDULES AND ASSIGNMENT RECORDS,
EMPLOYEE, 65

WORKERS' COMPENSATION PROGRAM
ADMINISTRATION, 66

94



WORKERS' COMPENSATON PROGRAM CLAIMS, 66
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

LOCAL AREA JOB TRAINING PLAN RECORDS, 75
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

AUDIT/AUDIT RESOLUTIONS, 75

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

PARTICIPANT RECORDS, 75
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT RECORDS, 75
WORKSHOPS, 68

95



AGENDA ITEM 7:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

C. Boards and Commissions

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Watauga County Library

The Watauga County Library Board has recommended the appointments of Ms. Margaret Love
and Ms. Natalie Harkey, both for first terms, and Ms. Sandra Basel, to fill the un-expired term of
Ms. Jaime Money, to the Watauga County Library Board. These are first readings.

Appalachian Regional Library

The Watauga County Library Board has recommended the appointments of Ms. Sandra Basel
and Ms. Roberta Jackson be appointed to the Appalachian Regional Library Board. These are
first readings.

Personnel Advisory Committee

The Watauga County Personnel Ordinance established a Personnel Advisory Committee which
is comprised of five (5) persons designated by the Board, authorized to hear employee
grievances, and recommend decisions to the appointing authority. The Committee consists of
one (1) Commissioner, one (1) department head and three (3) non-supervisory regular
employees. Current members of the Personnel Advisory Committee are as follows:

Employee Position

Mr. John Welch County Commissioner
Ms. Angie Boitnotte Department Head

Ms. Regina Houck Regular Employee
Ms. Amy Parsons Regular Employee
VACANT Regular Employee
Derrick Ellison Alternate Member

Mr. John Spears’ position is now vacant as he recently retired. Staff recommends appointing Mr.
Greg McGrady as the new Regular Employee Member. This is a first reading.



Appa achian

REGIONALY LIBRARY |
WILKES Y& ASHE 3% VWATAUGA

August 11, 2019

Mr. John Welch, Chair

Watauga County Board of Commissioners
Administrative Building, Suite 205

814 West King Street

Boone, NC 28607

Dear Mr. Welch:
At the regular meeting of the Watauga County Library Board on July 11, 2019, members voted
unanimously to recommend to Watauga County Commissioners that Margaret Love be
appointed to the Watauga County Public Library Advisory Board to begin a new term.
Please approve the recommendation of the local library board and notify Margaret and me of her
appointment. Thanks to you and all of the commissioners for your continued support of our
library.
Margaret resides at 427 Dutch Creek Road, Banner Elk, NC 28604.
Sincerely,
leda_
onica Caruso

Watauga County Librarian

Cc: Jane Blackburn
Director of Appalachian Regional Libraries



Appa aeliian

REGIONALY LIBRARY |
WILKES Y& ASHE 3% WATAUGA

August 11,2019

Mr. John Welch, Chair

Watauga County Board of Commissioners
Administrative Building, Suite 205

814 West King Street

Boone, NC 28607

Dear Mr. Welch:

At the regular meeting of the Watauga County Library Board on July 11, 2019, members voted
unanimously to recommend to Watauga County Commissioners that Natalie Harkey be
appointed to the Watauga County Public Library local board to begin a new term.

Please approve the recommendation of the Watauga County Public Library Advisory Board and
notify Natalie and me of her appointment. Thanks to you and all of the commissioners for your
continued support of our library.

Natalie resides at 111 Marion Avenue, Boone, NC 28607.

Monica Caruso
Watauga County Librarian

Cc: Jane Blackburn
Director of Appalachian Regional Libraries



Sincerely, . W
M//;VW\,

—

Appa aehi_an

REGIONALY LIBRARY |
WILKES Y& ASHE 3% WATAUGA

August 11,2019

Mr. John Welch, Chair

Watauga County Board of Commissioners
Administrative Building, Suite 205

814 West King Street

Boone, NC 28607

Dear Mr. Welch:

At the regular meeting of the Watauga County Library Board on July 11, 2019, members voted
unanimously to recommend to Watauga County Commissioners that Sandra Basel be appointed
to the Watauga County Public Library Advisory Board to fill the unexpired term of Jaime
Money. The board also approved her appointment to the Appalachian Regional Library Board of
Trustees for a first term to replace Susan Poorman, who is going off the board since her term has
expired.

Please approve the recommendation of the local library board and notify Sandra and me of her
appointment. Thanks to you and all of the commissioners for your continued support of our

library.

Sandra resides at 941 Vanderpool Road, Vilas, NC 28692.

Monica Caruso
Watauga County Librarian

Cc: Jane Blackburn
Director of Appalachian Regional Libraries



Appa aelﬁan

REGIONALY LIBRARY
WILKES Y& ASHE 3% VWATAUGA

August 11, 2019

Mr. John Welch, Chair

Watauga County Board of Commissioners
Administrative Building, Suite 205

814 West King Street

Boone, NC 28607

Dear Mr. Welch:

At the regular meeting of the Watauga County Library Board on July 11, 2019, members voted
unanimously to recommend to Watauga County Commissioners that Roberta Jackson be
appointed to the Appalachian Regional Library Board of Trustees to fill the term of Kathy Idol,
who is going off the board as her local term has ended.

Please approve the recommendation of the Watauga County Public Library Advisory Board and
notify Roberta and me of her appointment. Thanks to you and all of the commissioners for your
continued support of our library.

Roberta resides at 127 Wyn Way, Boone, NC 28607.

WW

Monica Caruso
Watauga County Librarian

Cc: Jane Blackburn
Director of Appalachian Regional Libraries



AGENDA ITEM 7:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

D. Announcements

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The 112th NCACC Annual Conference will be held August 22-24, 2019, in Guilford County.
Visit http://www.ncacc.org/775/2019-Annual-Conference for full information. Please let Anita

know if you plan attend.

The High Country Council of Governments’ Annual Banquet is scheduled for Friday,
September 6, 2019, at Linville Ridge. Please let Anita know if you plan attend.


http://www.ncacc.org/775/2019-Annual-Conference

Event Details

Lost

$90.00 Ser Ferson g _ s \
Date and Location s \
T"‘ E’rd:il. smtE—_nper ﬁﬁ 2019 ___; : J/
g ATt u ouse Lining Hoom f »
E ochedule of Events i Resart y N\
$ Receptian [Cash Sar) - W\
v N\ 400 - 7:00pm G+7 |
: - " Presentation of Awards ' /| &
You are cordially invited to the 700 - 730pm ) .
45" Annual Banquet s T
nnual Banque Buflet Dinner RSVP Deadline a5
and meeting of High Country Council of Governments 730 - 830pm August 23, 2019
' Nelworking
830 -1000pm

Important Information

+ Refunds cen be given if cancellations are provided prior to
RSVP deadline of August 23, 2019

If your guest is not being paid for by your local government
entity or organizalion, please remil payment wilh RSVP,

There is o slrict cap for seating capacily. Please respect
RSVP deadline

We are unable lo accept paymenls of any kind ot the door

Valel parking ncluded

ich

ountry

FJ’:
ne
B of Governt

Directions: From Gete House follow yellow stripe in road to
Club House Dining Room on the righl.

# Queslions? Please contact Victoria ol 828-265-5424 ».101 or
vpoller@megiondorg.

i sgbes. 1 ¥ Dwrnsgroed iy | reegzi




AGENDA ITEM 8:

PuBLIC COMMENT

AGENDA ITEM 9:

BREAK

AGENDA ITEM 10:

CLOSED SESSION

Attorney/Client Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)
Land Acquisition — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i)
Personnel Matters — G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6)



	Approval of Minutes:
	Approval of the August 20, 2019, Agenda
	Sheriff’s Office Vehicle Bid Awards
	Emergency Services Vehicle Bid Award and Up-Fitting
	Tax Matters
	Tax Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session
	080619 Minutes (2).pdf
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of Agenda
	Back 2 School Funding Request
	Parks and Recreation Out-of-State Travel Request
	Budget Amendments
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Public Comment
	Closed Session
	Action After Closed Session
	Adjourn

	Watauga County Landfill Greenhouse Lease Renewal 2019, 4832-1068-3028,4.pdf
	Nexus_Leased Area Estimate 4825-8648-1207 v.1.pdf
	GIS_LeasedAreaEstimate_160603
	Nexus_SitePlan_160603


	2019_local_standards_0.pdf
	Audits, Litigation, and other official action
	Transitory Records
	Q. What do I do with routing slips, fax cover sheets, “while you were out” slips, memory aids, etc.?
	Q. What about research materials, drafts, and other working papers used to create a final, official record?
	Q. What if I have forms designed and used solely to create, update, or modify records in an electronic medium?
	electronic records:
	E-mail, Born-Digital Records, and digital imaging

	See also AUDITS: FINANCIAL, page 19, item 6.
	EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND INSPECTION RECORDS  
	See also GRANTS, page 8, item 31, and SYSTEM MAINTENANCE RECORDS: HARDWARE REPAIR OR SERVICE, page 40, item 15.
	FACILITY MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND INSPECTION RECORDS 
	GRANTS
	NOTICES OF PUBLIC MEETINGS
	See also AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, page 43, item 1, and PUBLICITY RECORDS, page 69, item 12.
	b) If this is the only record documenting completed work, follow disposition instructions for FACILITY MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND INSPECTION RECORDS, page 7, item 27, or  EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND INSPECTION RECORDS, page 6, item 24. 
	AUDITS: FINANCIAL
	BIDS FOR PURCHASE
	BOND CLOSING RECORDS
	BOND REGISTER
	BONDS, NOTES, AND COUPONS
	BUDGET REQUESTS AND WORKING PAPERS
	GRANTS: FINANCIAL
	See also GRANTS, page 8, item 31.
	Retention Note: Other datasets should be kept according to standards and procedures set by the North Carolina Geographic Information Coordinating Council (http://www.ncgicc.com/). See also GEOSPATIAL RECORDS, page 80.
	Paper: Retain in office permanently.
	GIS dataset: Create a snapshot of dataset annually.  To maintain permanently,
	Paper: Retain in office permanently.
	GIS dataset: Create a snapshot of dataset annually. To maintain permanently,
	Paper: Retain in office permanently.
	GIS dataset: Create a snapshot of dataset annually.  To maintain permanently,
	Create a snapshot of dataset when created. To maintain permanently,
	Paper: Retain in office permanently.
	GIS dataset: Create a snapshot of dataset annually.  To maintain permanently,
	Or: If retained in office, your agency must comply with standards (for metadata, file naming, data sharing, and long term preservation) and procedures adopted by the North Carolina Geographic Information Coordinating Council.
	MAPS: PARKS 
	MAPS: ALL OTHER 

	WEB MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS RECORDS: STRUCTURE
	AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION 
	See also NOTICES OF PUBLIC MEETINGS, page 12, item 45.
	AUTHENTICATIONS
	Certificates of authentication issued by the agency.
	LEGAL OPINIONS
	LITIGATION CASE RECORDS
	ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATIONS
	APPLICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT
	APTITUDE AND SKILLS TESTING RECORDS 
	DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS
	EMPLOYMENT SELECTION RECORDS
	MEDICAL RECORDS
	PERSONNEL RECORDS (OFFICIAL COPY)
	POSITION DESCRIPTIONS 
	POSITION EVALUATIONS 
	TRAINING AND EDUCATIONAL RECORDS
	WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM CLAIMS 
	WEBSITE (ELECTRONIC) 
	GEOSPATIAL RECORDS
	microfilm

	Specify title and edition of records retention schedule being used: _______________________________
	File Plan

	HCCOG Annual Banquet Announcement.pdf
	Slide Number 1




